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2022
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20 15
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20.315 15.315 2038
20 15
15.315
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20 15
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30
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2021 10

27,334 102.67

207 0.78

1,617 6.07

839 3.15

61 0.23

14 0.05

6 0.02

3 0.01

3 0.01

7 0.03

30,077 112.98

3,455 12.98
26,622

3,073 100.00
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30
2021 10
C ) (¢ )
Ginnie Mae 0.982 2067 20 3,216,274.77 | 3,138,546.82 3,160,530.77 11.87]
Ginnie Mae 1.336 2070 10 20 3,088,678.71 | 2,956,107.08 3,104,540.61 | 11.66
Freddie Mac 0.790 2037 11 15 2,267,790.11 | 2,254,494.45 2,302,470.54 8.65}
Fannie Mae 3.000 2050 1,276,394.87 | 1,195,082.81 1,275,838.10 4.79
Fannie Mae 0.489 2049 25 1,251,136.81 | 1,256,628.06 1,263,108.49 4.74
Fannie Mae 3.500 2049 10 1,170,150.44 | 1,134,969.20 1,179,340.79 4.43
Freddie Mac 2.500 2051 1,043,821.95 992,249.60 1,024,125.27 3.85)
Fannie Mae 4.500 2039 11 899,013.46 842,401.74 943,381.90 3.54]
Fannie Mae 2.500 2050 11 918,294.03 867,531.91 895,769.80 3.39)
10 |Freddie Mac 0.540 2042 15 856,127.56 850,542.73 866,363.41 3.25)
11 |Ginnie Mae 0.503 2065 20 819,285.25 818,623.74 820,783.60 3.08]
12 |Fannie Mae, TBA 3.500 2036 11 796,494.14 750,000.00 795,791.72 2.99
13 |Fannie Mae 3.500 2050 676,867.78 641,341.04 676,651.79 2.54]
14 |Ginnie Mae 2.804 2066 20 651,027.56 580,812.56 613,414.27 2.30)
15 |Fannie Mae 4.500 2039 536,952.75 503,478.10 563,827.19 2.12)
16 |JPMorgan Mortgage Trust 3.000 2052 25 510,976.23 492,070.62 506,367.88 1.90)
17 |JPMorgan Mortgage Trust 3.000 2052 25 512,418.28 500,000.00 504,358.82 1.89
18 |Fannie Mae 4.000 2049 475,055.84 458,014.26 477,533.79 1.79
19 |Fannie Mae 2.500 2051 481,232.37 453,018.73 468,338.30 1.76|
20 |Freddie Mac 2.500 2050 12 472,290.27 445,155.78 458,231.32 1.72
21 |JPMorgan Mortgage Trust 2.500 2051 11 25 412,876.00 400,000.00 407,624.66 1.53]
22 |U.S. Treasury Bills 0.043 2022 24 399,932.48 400,000.00 399,913.67 1.50]
23 |Ginnie Mae 4.500 2047 20 357,274.80 346,841.46 367,143.28 1.38]
24 |Ginnie Mae 4.500 2049 20 315,829.58 305,046.65 321,264.93 1.2
25 |U.S. Treasury Bills 0.052 2022 21 299,926.61 300,000.00 299,918.06 1.13]
26 |Fannie Mae 3.000 2044 25 293,238.43 291,637.62 293,752.81 1.10)
27 |Ginnie Mae 2.715 2066 20 300,755.81 270,167.56 283,967.39 1.07]
28 |Fannie Mae 4.000 2048 263,374.87 253,735.91 272,651.12 1.02
29 |Fannie Mae, TBA 4.000 2036 12 264,609.38 250,000.00 264,345.71 0.99
30 |Freddie Mac 5.340 2037 216,921.77 203,950.91 232,213.55 0.87

2021 10

2021 10
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2022

10,934,662.85 1,262,297 10.24 1,182

2016 10
5,552,622.63 640,995 10.26 1,184

2017 10
2,339,399.12 270,060 10.37 1,197

2018 10
2,415,551.77 278,851 10.61 1,225

2019 10
8,653,726.26 998,986 10.83 1,250

2020 10
14,075,963.78 1,624,929 10.78 1,244

2021 10
2021 8,691,863.30 1,003,389 10.82 1,249
8,685,402.06 1,002,643 10.82 1,249
8,695,935.39 1,003,859 10.83 1,250
8,689,743.45 1,003,144 10.82 1,249
8,685,785.19 1,002,687 10.82 1,249
8,646,290.68 998,128 10.82 1,249
14,182,147.42 1,637,187 10.82 1,249
14,171,299.26 1,635,935 10.81 1,248
10 14,076,238.34 1,624,961 10.78 1,244
11 18,456,439.46 2,130,611 10.76 1,242
12 18,443,122.41 2,129,074 10.76 1,242
2022 18,396,953.25 2,123,744 10.73 1,239
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537,432.16 69,146 10.07 1,296

2016 10
385,970.32 49,659 9.88 1,271

2017 10
380,374.47 48,939 9.74 1,253

2018 10
377,871.29 48,617 9.68 1,245

2019 10
351,651.56 45,243 9.74 1,253

2020 10
347,235.10 44,675 9.61 1,236

2021 10
2021 350,390.03 45,081 9.70 1,248
349,872.47 45,015 9.69 1,247
350,071.36 45,040 9.69 1,247
349,618.07 44,982 9.68 1,245
349,252.28 44,935 9.67 1,244
349,159.35 44,923 9.67 1,244
348,974.55 44,899 9.66 1,243
348,486.20 44,836 9.65 1,242
10 347,241.94 44,676 9.61 1,236
11 346,510.62 44,582 9.59 1,234
12 345,754.00 44,485 9.57 1,231
2022 344,673.10 44,346 9.54 1,227
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13,973,514,725 10,118

2016 10
7,233,859,229 9,989

2017 10
3,099,529, 665 9,871

2018 10
2,386,586,502 9,824

2019 10
1,376,161,185 9,901

2020 10
1,263,677,229 9,818

2021 10
2021 1,324,389,972 9,878
1,323,031,689 9,868
1,322,195,979 9,877
1,296,507,329 9,868
1,290,734,914 9,861
1,290,866,629 9,862
1,271,079,430 9,860
1,269,738,900 9,850
10 1,265,644,615 9,818
11 1,249,931, 267 9,801
12 1,238,385,282 9,787
2022 1,206,042,987 9,760
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1,692,503.070

624,292.860

1,068,210.210

2015 10 29
1,692,503.070 624,292.860 1,068,210.210
2016 10
73,819.919 601,082.280 540,947.849
2016 11
73,819.919 601,082.280 540,947.849
2017 10
96.530 315,452.626 225,591.753
2017 11
96.530 315,452.626 225,591.753
2018 10
11,385.492 9,224.877 227,752.368
2018 11
11,385.492 9,224.877 227,752.368
2019 10
633,555.600 62,118.946 799,189.022
2019 11
633,555.600 62,118.946 799,189.022
2020 10
532,233.014 25,662.884 1,305,759.152
2020 11 1
532,233.014 25,662.884 1,305,759.152

2021 10
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53,375.294 0.000 53,375.294
2015 10 29
53,375.294 0.000 53,375.294
2016 10
0.000 14,324.802 39,050.492
2016 11
0.000 14,324.802 39,050.492
2017 10
0.000 0.000 39,050.492
2017 11
0.000 0.000 39,050.492
2018 10
0.000 0.000 39,050.492
2018 11
0.000 0.000 39,050.492
2019 10
0.000 2,928.973 36,121.519
2019 11
0.000 2,928.973 36,121.519
2020 10
0.000 0.000 36,121.519
2020 11 1
0.000 0.000 36,121.519
2021 10
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1,807,009.751 425,916.898 1,381,092.853
2015 10 29
1,807,009.751 425,916.898 1,381,092.853
2016 10
119,621.154 776,564 .932 724,149.075
2016 11
119,621.154 776,564.932 724,149.075
2017 10
502.643 410,656.119 313,995.599
2017 11
502.643 410,656.119 313,995.599
2018 10
0.000 71,051.229 242,944.370
2018 11
0.000 71,051.229 242,944.370
2019 10
0.000 103,947.160 138,997.210
2019 11
0.000 103,947.160 138,997.210
2020 10
0.000 10,282.091 128,715.119
2020 11 1
0.000 10,282.091 128,715.119
2021 10
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501
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USA
USA PATRIOT ACT The U.S. Bank Secrecy
Act

CSSF 08 387 CSSF 10 476
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2022 2023 31

100
100
10,000

0.55 0.5
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0.001 0.001
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NYSE

60

NYSE

NYSE
NYSE
NYSE
NYSE
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NOCP
BMA
BMA
100
10 31
5,000 1972 Exchange

Control Act 1972 BMA
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PIMCO 2019 11 2020 10 31
2020 11 2021 10 31
131
PIMCO
23 103
UFJ 2022 31

115.44 128.66
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2021 10 31
PINCO
2021 10 31
30,084 3,473
0 0
2 0
0 0
216 25
0 0
TBA 26,312 3,037
63 7
56,677 6,543
1,777 205
10,050 1,160
2 0
278 32
3 0
413 48
TBA 17,441 2,013
17 2
0 0
7 1
1 0
6 1
60 7
30,055 3,470
26,622 3,073
31,390 3,624
0 0
10,052 1,160

(16) (O]
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402 46
1,062 123
11,082 1,279
14,076 1,625

36

10

129

1,306
11.12 1,284
9.61 1,236
104.73 12,090

11,942
86.10 9,939

9,818
10.78 1,244
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PIMCO
2021 10 31
242 28
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1.ORGAHZATION

Each Fund distussed in this report (each & "Fund™ and collectively, the "FRunds ™). which dso indusdes each dass of units of that Fund {each a "Class™ and collectivedy,
the “Classes™), is 3 series tust of AMCOD Bermuda Trust 0 (the “Trust™), an open-ended unit trust established under the laws of Bermuda as a mult-series st

[P S

0 & st desd eoosouted by Winchester Globad Trust Comparmy Limited on Decernber 1, 2003 (38 armended fnom Gme o Geme, the "Trust Deed™). Efective

of the dase of business (Eastem fme) on September 25, 2017, Maples Trustes Senices (Bermuda) Limited (he "Trustee™) wad appointed a3 trustée of the Trust

Padfic meestment Management Company LLC (TPRCOT, the "Manager™ of the "imvestment Adviser™) & the spomsor of and was repomsible i struchuring the Tnst
Ercewn Brathers Hamiman & Co. (TBBH ™) has entered infe an sgreement with State Street Comeoraton (T50ate Smeet™) under which State Sweel will sogare EBHS
Iriveshor Sendoes busiress; which indides i custody, fund aocounting and sdmnistration, Fanster soency. depasitan, hareign exchandge, inpstee and seourines lendng
seraioes. The TAnSACnon i epeched to be completed in the fran quarter of 2022, subgect o cusbomany dodn g condibons and regulatory Appreals

The Trust is subject 10 requlasion and supervision as provided for in the Investment Funds Act 2006 and related rules relating 1o standard funds

The tenms of the Tast Deed confer upon the Trustee, with the consent of the bManager, the power, in the future, 1o establish further funds in addition 1o the Funds

currény in operation as of te date of this report

References to unithalders (eadh, 3 "Unitholder™, and aollectively, the “Unitholders™) in, or units of (or an imeestment in), the Fund shall mean Unitholders of the Fund
who hold umits, of dasses of units (a5 applncable), whach ane atnbutable 5o that Fund

Thie Fusns pretentad i this reporT ane lished beiow

Fand

PIACID Bisrmuds Buck Lows Fuend &

PIMACD Baramvuds Bark Lo fund B

PRMC Bermads Bank Lo Fond €

PRMAC Barmurty Bark Loy Fond 0

PIRACI Bermeds oo e Fund [

PARACTD Bgramouely broom # Fund E

PN Bermvuds Dy ¢ Mudnfus ot Srammgy Find®
PUOAC D Bramwely Lows Dl mcome Fond

P Esmaging Bonsd Incame Fand ||
FINKC ) Evmpgng Bond Ingome Fond |0

1Ofarsd

Dtesed by by bork weith 8 "Fored of Funk™ sicnse, a5 debred i it rules of e v et Thes Assmnas, |
Japan, of in any oftee pmdoion

| PPMAC Bermuis Bard Loan fund BA]

FIRC 0 Barmods Emer gng Macbets Bosd Fond (M)

P10 Bermoda Global Aggregae Ex-Japan Bond Fund (M}
P Bermvada broma Fund M)

PN Bermgda U 5. High Yield Ferd 8

PN Barmeuds U5 Hagh Yiekd Ferd 0 (M}

PN Emuegang Bon Incomos Find (M)

D¥ered oy 1o otfer Fondk. i cenve & an uderkying imves imend vehiols o such Furdk |

PN Bermeedy Ermargeng Wastwns Boed Fund 1)
FRRC Barmusi Global Aggregum Ex-Japan I¥en Hesigeel Boed Fend
FUNACD) Brervmvuady Glsbal Aggregune Ex-Japun Bored Furad
PN Bermands become Fund A”

FIMCID Brermunds Mongage Oppnundies Fored™™
P Carw Income Corporue Bond Ford 200010
MO U5 Righ Yebd [Yen-Hedged Ferd B

PMCO U5 High Yald Fund

PINACAI U5 Bigh Yl Strategy Fund

FRICD U5 Eigh Yeld Strapegy Fund ||

FINCD Woord High lncome ™=

Dfared] 12 Japenass wnd ofer nvenn |

PN B Term Morbgege looom s

[&ered in Jupnese aod ofer rewion. Unis of the B, Y and U0 Cless e e o®ered 0 de il iontesion
Japan by wary ol publc ofiening shrough a dis ibusor in fapan, and m ey be offlersd 1o ceher investons a1 the
decrezen of the Manager, Units of de EUR, JFY mnd 150 Clezps will be resircoed 1o enly thaee imeaion who are
appd by the Managar,

| PINBC0 Esmegung B (e Hodigand bcome Fund
PN Emeeging Bod [roomee Frond
P15 Bigh b MarvHecged Fand
PMCOU 5 Bigh Yild Fund

Dared aily 10 Fund ol Furck type Japafece s et et onganeed under th Lavw cofoeifing lnesiiment

Tres t and bnews e Compamy of Jopan (" lipares e b meeed TRok”) whioch val olhst shen waks 10 the poblicin
Japan eithar by wery ol publc offering of privine placement and which are minaged by PIMCD Japn Lo o offer

o il fcere e imves bt LA maragee ank companies and cobiect 10 g noles of de Inve et Tneis

Rgsriapon, Japm |

" e TP Dy g DT B Y LA Sy B Pl 0 DT e 9 PR SOt TG AT S 8 RN st B 2 O SO Ol o P e i B T N Ry 1 Y TN S
i N CUEET (e o LGS i D J ! i 5l ey o b a0 e e o e el b pr S Dy LS e S amd A Bl Uil o8 PO et Age dan 4 g il ool
PRI G Ty ade 14 Jabe 7 R 0SB G T B o PR S SRR B B SR e 2 iy L

== Pl s | Y Rl (it 9 FOME P e il Bt gt CIAres et Full i VR0 1 RSSO PO O B iede]

T (T 17 ) By A g by ity i 5 g 1B b T 8 R S 3 SRy 8 e, i a0 e YR BT O T BT it g

S N 1 R AT AR B w1 i R S i B A,

* fova feme Setar ) SN or (e N MO
¥ Mg e (b 15 D0y it 37, 20T

s Pagae | Dowber 1, 2021 Fal

171/396



Notes to Financial Statements

EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2.SIGHIFICART ACCOURTING POLICIES

The following is & summary of significant accouniing polidies corsistently
followeed by the Trust in the preparation of its financa statements in
confcamnity with accounting peincples generally sccepted in the United States
of Amenica ("0 5 GAAR™) Each Fund is treated 45 an imeestment comgany
under the reporting requirements of U 5 GAAF The preparation of finandal
statements in acoordance with LS. GAAR requires management i make
esfimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assels and
ligbilities and disdosure of contingent assets and liabilides at the date of the
finan el sxatements and the reporied amounts of moreases and dedredses in
niet Feets from operatons during the reporting perod. Achual results oould
dither from those estimates

{n) Acquirad Funds The Trustes and Manager may apply all or a portion of
the assets of §) FIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund A, PIMCO Bermuda Bank
Lewn Fend B, PIMICO Berrpda Bank: Loan Fund C and PFIMCO Berruda Bank
Lexam Fuend D (1) PINCO World High Incoenes; i) PIMCO Bermads Global
Aggregale Bx-lapan (Yen-Hedged) Bond Fund dnd PIMCO Bermuds Ghabal
Aggregate Bx-lapan Bond Fund; Gv) FIMCO Bermuds incame Fund A, PIMCO
Bermiuda Income Fund D and PEVCO Bermuda income Fund £ (V) BIMOO U5
High Yed |.'1'n-n-l-éajg~c‘, Fund, FIMCD U5 High Yield Fund, PIMCO LIS

High Yeeld Strategy Furnd, and PINSCE LS. High Yield Sorategy Fund 11 (1)
PIRGCC U5, High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund 1| and FRAC0 LS. Hig Yeeld Fund
I; {wilh FIMCO Emerging Bond (Yen-Hedged) income Fund, PIMICO Emerging
Bond ncome Fund, FIMCO Emerging Bond incoms Fend |1, and FIMCO
Emerging Bond income Fund 11| (each refemred to hereim as a * Fund of Funds®
o T Aoquining Furd ™, wiich imeests in other Funds) to the respective adit of
(1) PIMCO Bermuds Bank Loan Fend (M §i) PIMICO Bermuds Emerging
Markets Bond Fand (M); §ig) PFIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ec-Japan
Band Fund (M); (i FINCO Bermiada income Fund (M); () FIMICO Barmida
s ng: Yiedd Rand (M ) PEMCO Bérauda LS Hagh Tueld Fund BN}
it} PINCO Erreriging Bond Incorme Fund (W {referned §
" Acquered Fund(s)” . Any assets 5o spplied wall be held in wach Acquired
Fund{s) a8 if receved directly. Whene aseets are 50 applied, the Acquired
Funi{sy will record the issee of units 1o the refevant Aoquiring Fund af the
Fasue puice: per urdt of sudh wnits andwill repundhase such units at the
repunchase price per unin of sach units &t the Bme of repundhase. Accordngly,
the abdity of the Aoguiring Fund 1o achieve ils investment chjective will

depend upon the ability of the applicable Acquired Fund to achieve its
frvestment oljective. There can be np assurance that the investment obgecive
of the Acqguired Fund will be achieved

Ratios shosim in the Finandal Highghts do not indwde sgpenses of the
Acquired Fund(s). See Note 9, Fees and Expentes, fof further infomation
regarding fumd fees, as applicable

&) Securities Tr jans and | Inceme Securities ransactions
are reconded as of the rade date for finandal reporting puposes. Securities
purchased or sold on & when-issued or delayed-delveny basis may be

settled beyond 4 standard sefthement pericd for the security alter the trade
dane Realized gains and lostes from sedanties sold are recorded on e
identified cost basis. Dhvidend income & reconded cn the ex-drvidend date,
eept cenain chidends from foresgn sequnities whene the ex-dvidend date
rriy b passed, which are reconded &5 5000 a5 2 Fund is indommied of the
ex-chyidend date. Interest indome, sdiusted fof the aooretion of daomns and
amortization of premiums, is recorded on the acowal basis from setfement
date, with the exception of sewinities with a forward starting effective date,
whiene interest income is recoeded on the aomual basis from effective date. Fo
ooenertble seourities, premiums attibutable 1o the comversion feature are not
amortized. Estimated tax liabdiies on cenlain foreagn seamities are recanded
on an acoual basis and are reflecied 2 components of interest income or net

change in unredized Fppredation (depredaion) on investments on the
Slatements of Operations, as appropriate. Tax liabei%es realized a5 a result of
wich sequrity sales e reflected 25 2 component of net reaized gain {oss) on
inveitments on the Statements of Operations. Paydown gans and losses on
roftgage-related and other asserbacked securities, if amy, are recorded as
components of interestinoome on the Satements of Operations

Dbt biigations may be phaced on non-aoomual S0us and related interest
e My be reduced by Ceasing Qurent SConeats and writing aff interest
recereatde when the collection of 1 of & porton of inbenest Ris Do
doubtiul based on congstently applied procedures. A debt obligation is
remceveed from non-aooneat status when the issuer resumes interest payments
or when colisctabllity of interest is probable

The Enandal statements of PIMCO Care Income Corporate Bond Fund 2020
10 induded in this report are for the pericd from October 15, 2020 dnceplion
date) fo Ochober 31, 2021 Accounting policies were oonsistently apgibed for
th: pereod ended October 21, 2020 and theough thi year-ended Chibober 31,
2021 Activity af the fund during He period ended Cctober 37, 2020 induded
capital contribution s, imesiments and operaling guenes incurred bo st
and operate the fund. The Statement of Chamges in Net Assets Tor the period
from October 15, 2020 (date of inception) through October 31, 2020, for the
wear-ended Ocrober 31, 2021, and for the pedod from October 15, 2020
{date of inception) through Gciober 31, 2021 is as follows:

IRl
ez sl gy | Ecwtar Tl
Mobbe T b ] b
mm Frough ot
Pt e Somber 71 Bomiaw 15
I o el 31T oyl psil
Har imEnd raTe i ” 4 (1Y i (7
S rlkoat e . TR [ ] L+ L1
Tt (b . Fr i ]
IR B G s
] [EEE ;] (N
Pl ronin Beowsd A oo
Vs o e wre i1 ﬂ E E ] I:l-_
“alesap 7 Tk L] LR
r——— & [ E] [LED
Bt Charga i N e L -I]’F_l ] II?& 1 A i

The finandial statements of PIMCO Bermuda Dynamic Multi-hsset Strategy
Fund indieded in this report are for the period from Odober 20, 2020
(noepBon date) to October 31, 2021, Actounting policies were consistently
applied for the pericd ended October 31, 2020 and theough the year-endied
October 31, 2021 Activity of the fund during the period ended October 31,
2020 induded capitd confribuSions, investments and operaling expenses
Incufréd 10 $1am and operase the fund. The Statement of Chianges n Net
Assets for the penod from October 30, 2020 (date of inception) thiough
Cctober 31, 2020, for the year-ended October 31, 2021, and for the pesiod
from October 30, 2020 (dane of inception) through Ochober 31, 2021 15 as
foll oot

Byl gt || Diowbar J0. 201 o
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Notes to Financial Statements

FundClasa:

Functisnal

IRAY Curr sy A
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i Saaribey | et X0 P CD) Bereragdda Blank: Loam Fusd (M) U5 dollay US dolly
St X e wm PO Barmasda Bark Laas Fusd &
e Prast e f [TE4F) US dol
O Sy R . ,I.UI" 5 dollw 3 e
MRy 1,380 Py point = JUFN dipangsyn U5 dodw
«  Jish Jupanese yen US dollw
Bl s B it i LI LR e . TUMY Japanseyn US dolw
S vl o o, LT (] C i) 5] » L] agans pen LS deolly
isprrraeinkrol] FAMCD Bermuda Bank Loan Fusd B
et ] hEw s ® F (AL fatrden doflar | U3 dols
Pt e v o £t oty - T (AU Japanets yan U5 dolls
Hedung B [] AR Al
T ~ ® ¥ [BRL) Japanegs yen U5, dolls
] ¥ [MEN] Japansgs yen L5 dolls
Pembons W Tl Ll o . ® Y (RB| Japaneme van UE dolls
g o Ll ™ g - T [TRY Japanece yen U3 dolla
Ratarpras [] 4 i A4 FIMOD Bererasdy Bank Lo Fusd C
o Dot bt s 1 MER 1 w1 1 + YIS Jdapanese ven U3 dola
FIMC Bermuda Bank Loy Fusd 0
« Y (Wadd] Japanese yen U5 dollw
i) Cash and Forebgn Gurrency The fnandal statements of each Fund are FIMCD Bermuda Dyname: Kl s-Ased Sutegy Fund e
presented using the currency of the primary sconoméc ensironment in whadh it = JUPn Japsnsteyen UE dols
aperanes (the “fnctional cumency™) The functiona! curmency for eadh of the L LS doliy s B
Furds. s Bisted in e below table FIMOD Bermusda Erner ging Markets Sond Fund (W0 US dollar U3 dols

The market values of foreign sequrities, oamrency hoddings and other assets
and Babilities are transhated info each Fund™s funclionad qumency based on the
curment exchange rales eadh business day. Purchases. and sales of sequnilies
and income and expende items denaminated in foreign cemendes, if any, are
trandated into each Fund's respective funcional aerency at the exchangs
rate in effect on the transaction date The Funds donot separately report the
eftects of changes i fonegn exchange rates from change in market preces on
secufifies held. Such changes are indudéd in net realided and nit changes in
unrealized gain of (a5 rom mestmen s on te Statements of Opefatinms

FIMOD Eormudy Emer pureg M ket Bond Furd |
# Iret LIPYY
o  ImrPY Hidosd)

Jipange yen L3, dolls
Joisnmia yn L3 dolls

FIMD Bormuda Global Aggregace Ex-Japan [Yan-
Hedgnd) Bond Furd

Japanegs yen 03 dolls

PO Bermuda Ghbal Apgregaes Ex-fapan Bond Fund

Jupanse yen U5 dolly

FIMOD Bermudy Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bard Fund
1.7

Jupansie yen U5 dolly

PO Bormuda Income Fund )

LS doltw LS dollw

PIMCD Bormracda Incoms Fund &

Thie Funds may ireest in fonesgn curmency denominated securities and may « FUrg Japanese ym U35 ol
ENQIgE in fnreu.ru CUITEnCy Ban s etther on a spot (cash) basis af the . F (L5 U5 dolla US della
rate prevaling in the qurency exchange market at the time o hrough a «  JUPA Jgenessym U5 dolly
forwrded foreign aurency contred. Realized fore gn exchange Qans OfF I0sses ® Jiush Japanee yen U3 dolly
aning Trom Saes of spot .‘Ln_-ig'l QUFTERCES, CUTENCY Gans of [t realized w K G LS, dollar U5 dolla
bedween the rade and settement dates on sequrities ransactions and the o MUFY Adewong Japaneme ym UE doly
difference bebween the recorded amounts of dividends, interest, and foreign o MUSD Adveand US doltar US dollw
withiolding taces and the functional currency equivaient of the amounts «  NUPY Japaneeyn US doflw
Actually received or paid ane indhuded in riet redined gain or loas on foragn +  NiEn Japanese ym US ol
curency transactions on the Statements of Operatons Net unreali ed foreign * KN 35 U5 doliae U5 dollw
exchange gains and logses aising from changes in foreign exchange rates on +  PUFM Jopenese yn U35 doly
forsign denominated assets and Rsbiliies other than investments in seasiies L Jpaneywn | U5 dole
hield at the end of the repoeting period are incduded in net change in + RO Jopeneseyen | U5 dodle
unrialized dppidation or digradation on Rrdon QURmeny a4es and s SUMN Jpenmeyen | U3 dole
lratlitees o the Statements of Ooperaion » TLFY Jepanete yen U dolls

X - JUEE L3 dofla W3 dellsr
The Met Assel Viakae (HAY ") and 1013l retums of certain Funds {or Classes . U5 dollg U5 dolly
thereaf, a5 applicable) are presented in the oerency for which the Maw is ~ e US doll
reported {the "HAV qumency™) as detailed in each Fund’s Offering f U5 dollar U5 dlly
Memaorandum (be ~Ofering Memorandum ™), For the purpases of the . Japanece ven U5 doly
presentation of the NAV and the ot return in the MAV currency, the . Japaness ven U5 dollw
beginning and ending MAVS are comverted using the period beginning and . Jpsnee v U5 dols
ending machange ranes, redpecinvdly, and distnbubons ane convertsd uiing tee FIMCE Bormusda Incoms Fund 0 —
exchandge rate a1 the time of the disimbibion. See the iallowing tabde for the KN A0 Pantraien doflyr | US dolle
HAY curmrency of each respactive Fund a Y DWard) Japanece yen U5 dels

FIM O Barmasds Incom Fund E
& BJIEDS LY Jopane ym Japanee yen
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glocated to each Class of units based on the relatve net assets of eadh Class

Fum Clata: NV Carancy :?:.-H of the respective Fund Class spedific expenses cumenthy indude
¢« BJ IEEUPY Jupanese van Jpanese van management, advisony, adminisirative, agency, amd dsmbution fees, where
. B 1600 U5 Japanese yan Jipaneis yah aoplicablie
a -
: E J' :g:? :'IP; jx:;ﬁ j::: ::: Mb.is‘i.rihuliun Palicy The 1-:II-'_-\.-v.:.1n |,.,t-{a sk the anfigpated 1h=.c.|:-'-r.'\,-
TRICT Bammtds Upve EXsaon lecme Fand of distibutions for each Fund Distributions from each Fund may be dedared
«  Biso U5 doly U5 dolae and distributed 1o Unitholders only upon the autheei zaticn of the Manager,
TICT Bomasds @W Topwm arins Fnd winch 4 uthon Zatn Iy b wathheld ar the ?w!,]lial‘;-;l'-_-. et
i ol
JLUFY : 2 5
* T Jasnese yan U5 dollar PACT Bl Bank Lon Fiond &
+ 150 1.5 dolly 0.5 deflar FMCO Berrmuds Bark Loen Fend B
FIMCT Rastmusds 115 High Yiehd Fusdd M) 1.5 dolls .5 dollar PMCO Berrods Bark Losn Ferd ©
FIMLL] Besrrisds L5 High Yiald Fusd I (M) Japaness yai Il 5 dllar PACD Bt moieda Bank: Loan Fnd
PIE'JIII.EM i!:;u:.'lne Corparats Boad Fond 2120-10 e e P E‘nrml.!.:.‘a.hcmh.fdﬁ.
FIKCT Emengeng Bond | ¥en-Hidoed Ingome Furd Jaganiess yen U5 dollar : : :LE:';
FILICT Emenging Bond Income Fend Japaness yen U5 dollar . 10PN
FIMLL] Eergete) Hond Incarme fund (M1 1.5 dolla 1.5 doflar i 15D
FIICT Emergung Hond Indarma Fend B «  NUPA
® yTEa ] Japaness i U5 dollar 2 N LSE
® J{BRALY Japaness yen U5 dollar . WY 10
® Japanecs yan U5 diolar Iz SURY
* Jupanese yan LS dodler . XU
. Japaness wen U5 dollpe 2 Ay IL\SC;.:-
& Jaganess yan L5 dodlar YLET
H Jpanesa yan U5 dollar Y 150
* Japaness yan U5 dolar
* Japiness yan U & dollar FIMED Beemuds income Fund
FIMCT Ermargars) Bond Income Fund Bl PAMCO Bamuds borgages Dppartenibes Fund
« JiFUR Japanese ven U5 dodar = JUPY
* J|GERY Jopanese van U.5 doflar » Jisn
+  JiUsm Jupanesevan | U5 dollar L
FIMICD Shait-Term Moegyags bacome PICT Emmasaging Bond (Yen-Hisdigesh Incoma Fund
« EUR Ewo U5 dollar PMICT Essergerg Bond Inceme Fund
. _::"'r Jipnegs e U5 dodwr PIMCO Eevtgirg Borvd brses Fnd 11
: L'S'B'Jﬁ' hiediged: il";‘a":;"*" 3 g f;: F!.‘J-CUE:.-:a!:rfq H-md:!-;-nn!!mu_a
PILICTI 5 Fih Tld (Yan Maiged] furd Jngoress an | 115 doflr AL LR Pl o (el bt
ML U S Fich Yes [an-Hedoed) Fund i Japaneseyen | U 5 dollu RMCTUS High Yield Fund
FHUICO 1 5 High Yold Funsd Jnzanese ven U 5 dollar PIMCTG Hagh Yead Strategy Fusd
FILCT 115 High Yesld Furd Il | paness van U5 dollar FMCO S Hagh Yield Stramgy Fusd ||
FIMCO LS Huh Yald Sramgy Fand PUICT Werkd Fgh Ircome:
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e el iy
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id] Mudticlass Operations Each Class of 4 Fund oftered by the Trusthas
rights bo the assets of the Fund equal to that of other Classes of the same
Fund, except for spedfic asens and gainG and krises designated o & Chiss
relating to curmendy edging operstions. Income, non-Clas spedfic expentes,
and non-Class spedific reakzed and pnredized capetad gains and losses are
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The Manager dows nat expect i deslare dhtributions with respect 1o thisa
Funds (or Class e theresl, il applicable, bwt may, in ite discretses, declare and
pay distribusass 1o the Unitholdws af a=y time,

PRICD Bermeds Bk Loan Fand (M)
PRI Bermds Emenging Mk s Bond Fund (M)
PRIID) Bermeada Emengeg Madk ess Bend Fund 11
PRICT] Bermada Global Agooegam Ex-Japan | Fen-Hedgedh Boad Fund
PRSI Bermoda Gobal Aggoegem ExJapan Bond Fond
FRID Bermoda Globsl Aggpegemn Ex-Japan Bond Fund (M)
PRILT] Bermrmsda irensme Fund A
- K L5
* M UPY Adbasongh
L W (USD Advisoogh

. TLIPT
- U s
® WL
- P 5]

PRILT] Besmmada rcome Fand (M)
PID Bermuda Low Duraton |noome Fund
PINIET Bermusda Morigage Oppersones Fund

*  |nin LFY Hadged)
PRUCD Bermasds 15 Hegh Yiedd Frnd fi)
PRET Bermmods LS Hugh Yiekd Furd 8 (M)
PRLD o Income Corgorase Band Fued 2000-10
PRI Ermegeg Bond Inoame Fusd (M)
PRACO LS Fgh Yiekd [VerH edgad) Fund ||
PILECD 115, Hagh Yiekd Fund 1

* Ay dearibuitone with eaepect e [l L D500 Uram of S Fond vl ba declared i
sooatdarca with 4 e sgpssment batnveen the Masger a5d Ba weet tor 0 such (e

Distribsions, if any, will generally be made from e redevant Fund's {oe
Class's, if spplicable) net investment ncome. In adddion, the Manager may
Auhoeize the payment of nel redized capital gans adaalatie for dstribubion
Adchtional deributons mdy be dedined 45 the Manager detnms spprograe
DistribuSons paid with respect 10 amy Fund (or Class tereof, | applicable)
will reeduce the N&V of sudh Fund (or Class thereof, if applcable) At the
discretion of the Unitholders, cash distributions from a Fund for Class thereod,
if applicable) may either be reinvested in addiionad wnits of a Fund (oe Clas
therect, if applicable) or pad to a Unitholder in cah. Cash payments will be
paid in the: MAY currency of the Fund. Each Fund {cr Olass theref, if
appiicabds) may dedare further distributions if considened neceseany in onder
to mamntain a reasonable kel of distribuGons for a Fund {or Class thereof if
Appiecabie), In the event that there i4 inddequate nel i oome and et reali xd
cagatal gaird 10 pay a destribution of & Fund (or Class teeneal, if appicabie)
reduined by the Oflering Memorandum, the Manager may pay 4 detibution
consisting of a portion of the cagital of such Fund {or Class thereod, if
apphcabie), Drstributions not collected within s yesrs from thelr due date
il lapee and will soorue to the benefit of the relevant Fund (or Class thereof,
i agplicable)

il News Accounting Prenouncements and Aequlatory Updates In Manch
2020, the Anandal Accounting Standands Boand {"FASE™) istued an
AccamEng Sandands Updage ("ASU), ASU 2020-04, which provides
optional guidance 1o eass the patential accounting bunden assodated with
Irannoning away from the London interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR") and
Qs reference raes that sne expected bo be discontinued The ASLI s
effecte mmmediately upon releate of the update on March 12, 2020 thiough

Decermber 31, 2022 Al this tme, management is evaluating the implicamons
of these dhanges on the financa statements

3. INVESTMENT VALUATION AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

) Investment Vabuation Policies The price of a Fund's units & based on
the Funid's MAV. The NAN of 3 Furd, of eadh of its Classes, a3 applicable, 13
deterrened by dindding the ol value of postiolo imvestments and othes
Fisets amrbutable 1o hat Fund or Class, liss any Babilites, by the ot
e of units outstanding of that Fund or Class. On each Fund's Dealing
[y (35 desaibed in the aevent Offering Memogandism of the

Trusth, Fiend units are ondinarly valued & of the dose of reguiar trading on
the Mew York Stod: Exchangs ("HYSE Close™) nhormaton that bedomes
ko 1o the Funds or their agents siter the time a5 of which NAY has been
calcufated on a particular day wall not generally be wsed to reroacively adjust
the price of a security o the NAY determined earier that day Each Fund
Pesanvies the fioht 1o change the G a8 of which it NAV is caleu ated i

the Fund doses earlier

For punposes of caloulating WAY, partfolio sequrites and other assets for
wihech market quotes e readiy avallable are valied at market valie, Market
walue is generally devermined on the Desis of offidal dosing prces or the last
reported sales prices, of if no sales are reported, based on quotes obtained
from established market makers or prices (nduding evaluated prices) supplied
by the Funds' approved pricing services, quotaion repoeting systems and
gther thard-party sources (hogether, ~Pricng Senvices ™). The Funds wil
mormmally e pridng data for domestic equity Secwities recehed horthy after
the W SE Clorse and do nof nommally Lake inlo acount rading, dearandes o
setllements that take place after the NYSE Close. B market value pridng is
usied, a foreign (Ron-LL 5.} equaly security raded on 3 foreign exchange of on
mcre Biam one echange 15 pecally vialued using pnang anfarmation from the
exchange omsidensd by PIMCO 1o be thi primay exchange. A foeedn (bon-
LES.) sty securing will be valued a5 of the dose of rading on the foreion
exchange, of the NYAE Close, if the Ny 3E Close oonurs before the end of
tracing on the foreign exchangs Domestic and foreign inen-U 5.} fixed
InCome seqities, non-exdhange Taded denvatives, and equity oplioeds are
nommaly valugd on the basis of quates obtaned from brobers and dealers o
Fricing Services using such data reflecting the prindpal markets for those
seurities. Prices obtained from Pridng Services may be based on, among
other things, information peosided by market makers of estimates of market
walups Gbtaned from yeeld 4313 felating 10 invesImshls of Lecurifed with
srmilar characerisics. Certain fined inoome seawrites purdeased on 4

del ayededelivery hasis are marbed 10 market dady until sertiement at the
forward setement date. Exdhange-traded opfions, except equity cptions,
futures and options. on futures e valued at the seqement price detemned
by the relevant exdhandge, quabes obtaned oM 4 qUoTataon Peporiing Yysiem,
el ablrshid marcet makers of prong serices Swap agreements afe valed
o the Baat of markel-based paices wppled by Pricng Senioss of quales
obtained from brokers and dealers. A Fund's investments im open-end
management imvestment companies. ofher tan exdhange-raded funds
{TETFS™), e valusd 3t the HANS of such investments

It a foreign fnon- U 5. ) equity seamity’s value has malerally changed after the
dose of the security’s primary emchange or prindpal market but before the
WYSE Clase, the security may b valued an tirvalue based on prodidunes

el ablihed and approved By the Manager. Foreign (non-U 5.) equaty

sweiites that do ot rade when the NYSE is open are Jso valosd at Laie
walue With respect 10 foreign (non-LU 5. ) equity securitied, & Fund may
determine the fair value of mvestments based on information privided by
Pruang Services and other therd-pany vendors, wheth may recommend far
walu OF Busuments with referende 10 other seduniies, ndsces o 35315 In
considening whether fair valuation & required and in determining fair
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vaues, a fund may, among other things, consider significant events (which
may be considered boinclisde changes in thevalve of 15 seaities or
sequrilties indices) that occur after e dose of the relevant market and befiore
the NYSE Clode. A Fund mdy utiine modeling tools provided by tird-party
wenidons 1o deterrmine fair values of foreign (non-U5 ) seaxities. Fof these
pUrporses, any movement in Se applicable reference index of irdFument

(" zertr trigger™) between the earlier dose of the applicable foreign market
and the NYSE Close may be deemed 10 be & sgnificant event, prompiing the
appticason of the peing model (effecthely resulting in daly e

vauaBon). Foregn exch andges may permal trading e fotegn (ron-L.5.)
EOUATY Secuilies on days wiven the Tiost i Aot open Bor busingss, whidh may
resultin @ Fund's portfolio Enestments being affected when Unitholders are
unable bo buy or sell units

Senior seared flnating rate lans forwhich an adive secondany market exiske
to a reliable degree will be valued at the mean of the last available bidfask
piices in the market for such loans, as provided by a Prioing Serdce. Senicr
secuted Aoating rate loans for which an active Seoondany marker doss not
exsl 10 a reliable deqres wall be valued at tar vale, which 15 intended to
Approximate markel value I valung a serior secured Boating rane loan at
fair value, the factors condidered mayindude, but e not limited bo, the
fidicwing: 1) the credisworthiness of the bomower and any intermedaate
partegpants, (b the terms of the loan, () recent peices in the merket for
shivelas loans, if ary. and {) recem pices in the market for nstruments of
simalar quality, rate, period undil nextinterest rate reset and maturity

vestments valued in qurendies other than the functional currency

ol a Fund are corverted 10 the funchional aumenty wng exchange ranes
obitained from Pridng Services. As aresslt, he value of sudh investments and,
in fum, the KAV of the Fund™s units may be affected by dhanges in the valus
of crrencies in refation Bo the functional qumendy. The value of investments
trianded in Toreign markens of denofminabed in cufrendies ather than

the functional currenicy may be atfected significantly on a day that the Tnsstis
fiail open hor busifess. Ad a nesult, 1o the axient that 4 Fund holds forégn
{non-L % ) investments, the valee of those investments may change at times
when you cannol purchase, redeem of exchange uets and the value of asch
irvesameents will be reflected in the Fund's next calodated May

Ivestmenks for which market quotes or market-based valuations e not
readly avzlable are valwed at fair value as determined in good faith by

the Manager or persons acting at their direction The Manager has adopted
rrethods fof valuing sequfites and other 255818 in onumstanoss white
rharket quotes ae not readily avadlable, and has delegated 1o PIMCO the
respontibility for apphing the fair valuation methods. In the &vent that market
quotes o market-fased valsations are not readly vallsbde, and the sequrity
oF 35561 Candion b valued pursuant 104 Manager approved valuaton
rroeehced, the value of the seasity o assetwil be detemmined in good Bith by
the Valwation Comnrathes. Markel quobes are aofvidensd nol readly dailable
In droumstances where there & an absence of ourent or reliable markes-
based data {2 g., rade information, bidask information, indicative market
quotations. (" Broker Cuotes™), Pridng Serdces’ preces), induding where
events oooar after te dose of the refevant market, bt prior o the NYSE
Close, that materially affect the values of the Fund's securities or assels in
addition, market quotes are considersd not readily avatable when, dus o
extraprdinany droumrstances, the exchanges or markets on which the
crurilies (rade Ao not open Tor irading for the entine day and no other
markel proes are svailable The Manacer 5 responabie for monitanng
significant events that may matenially atfect the values of the Fund™s securities
o assets and for determining whether the value of the applicable securiies o
Assets should e reevaluated i light of such gnificant events

When 3 Fund uses far valwation o deterrmime the valse of 3 portlilio Seunty
of other asset for purposes of caloulating its MAY, sudh imvestments will not

be priced on the basis of quotes from the pimary market in which they are
traded, bust rather may bé priced by another method that the Manager or
persons acting at their direction believe reflects fair value Far valuation may
rigquine ubjective determinasons aboul the vaiue of & waanity. While

the Tewst's policy 5 intended i result in 2 caboulasion of a Fund's MAY that
fairy reflects security values as of the time of pridgng, the Trust cannot ensure
that fair values determined by the Manager of persons &Cling at their
directon winld docurately releq the price that & Fund oould obdain Tor 3
secusiny if ivwere bo diapose of that seosity a5 of the dmeof pridng (o
IFSRANCE, |0 A horoed of chbiressed sale). The prices used by 3 Fund mdy e
Trowm thee et that woldd be mealized if the seturibes wene sold

) Fair Value Himrarehy L5 GAAP dedcribes far value a5 the price that

& Fund would receive o sell @0 gaset of pay to transfer 3 hatilingin an orderty
ransaceon Detaeen market partiapants a1 the messutement date 1§
estabbshes & fair value h&"a'l'?'l]' that pricritizes. inguts i valuabon methods
and requires. dsdosure of Se fair valie Fieradny, separanely for eadh maor
category of assets and liabilities, that segregates far value measurements inlo
beveds {Level 1, 2, or 3} The inputs or methodology used for valuing sequrities
are nod necessanily an indicasion of the risks associated with investing in those
securites. Levels 1, 2, and 3 of the fair valioe herandhy are defined a3 bollows

# Lovel 1—{uoted pnoes in active markets of exchanges for identical assets
and Rabiities

& Ll 2—Sagrificant other obervabie inputs, which may indude, but an
ok limited to, quoted prices for simdlar assets of liabdities in markets that are
acive, quoted prices for identical or similar assets of liabilities in markets hat
are nod active, inplts other Bhan quoted prices that e observablie for the
assets or Babdlites (such 35 interest rates, yiebd ourves, volatlities, prepayment
speadds, |oss severitie, credit reks and default ratesh or other market
corroborated inputs

& Lind 3—"agraficant unoboenabie inputs based on the bedt informaton
availabie in the droometances, o the extent cbservable inputs ane not
availabie, which may mclude assumptions made by the Manager of péraens
acting at thesr direction that are used in determining the far valye of
IFWESImEN 15

Assets or Babiliies categorized as Level 2 or 3 as of period end have been
transfermed between Levels 2 and 3 singe the prior period due to changes in
the method wtilized in valuing the imvestments. Transfers from Level 2 to Level
2 are 3 result of @ change, in e normal course of business, from the use of
walpaticn methodk used by Prcing Senices (Lével 2) ta the e of 3 broker
quobe of walpation technique which utilizes g gaificant mmobsensatide inputs
due to an sbeence of cusent or refiable market-based data (Level 3)

Frantders from Level 3 to Level 2 are a resalt of the avadlability of current and
Fid] abke: mruirkoe -t 38 prowadied by Priang Seraces of other valu ation
technigques which utilize significant obsensable inpats

In aocoerdance with the requirements of LIS GAAR, the amotnts of Tansiers
i and cut of Level 3, i matenal, are dodoesd in the BMobes 1o Schedule of
Imeestments for each respective Fund

For fair valuations using signaficanl unobdendalie inputs, U5 GAAR requeres
todischose transhers into and out of Level 2 of the fair value hiersechy and
pundheises and isaues of Livel 3 assets and liabidities dunng the period
Addtonally, 115 GAAP requenes quantitatie infedmation regardng the
significant uncbservable inputs used in the determination of far value of
assens of abies categonzed a5 Lewel 2 in the firvalue herarchy. in
accondance with the requirements of LS. GAAR, 3 far value hierady, and If
rraterial, details of significantuncbsenable inputs, have beeninduded in the
Maotes to Schedde of Imvestments for each respedive Fund

e Pagae | Dowber 0, 2021 x

176/396



Notes to Financial Statements

EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

e Veluaton Techeiques and 1he Fair Value Hisrarchy

Lewel 1, Lewel 2 and Leval 3 trading assets and trading liabilities, a1
fairvalue The valiation methods {or "techriques™) and sgnificant inputs
wsed in determining the fair valuses of portfilio secunities or other assets and
[kabilities cabegonized a5 Level b, Level 2 and Level 3 of the fair value hierasdhy
are as follows:

Fimad income securnities indwding corporate, convertible and munidpal bonds
andnotes, U5, govemenent agended, U5, readury b ganons, soeregn
riapes, bank loars, comeertitle prederred Seourites and non-L5. bonds ane
nermnatly valsed on thi bass of quotes obtained fom brokers and dealers. of
Pricing Senvices that wse broker-dealer quotations, reported trades or
vauapon estimates from ther intema pricing models. The Fricing Senvces”
Innesmal models use inputs that are observaile sudh 5 issuer detalls, inkerest
rates, yeld oanves, peepayment speeds, aredt dsksspresds, detal rates and
quoted priges for dmila assets Searifies that use ssmillar valuation
technéques and inputs as descibed above are categorized a5 Level 2 of the
fair value hierarchy

Feand Enciorme sacunities purdhased on a delayed-daiesny batis or 38 3
repunchate comimitment in 3 saleduyback ransacton ane marked to market
daily until settiement al the fonward setfernent date and are Categonized a5
Level 2 of he fair value hbesardiy

Mortgage-related and asset-backed sequrities are psually issued as wparate
tranches, of dasses, of seowities within each deal These sequrifies e also
noemathy valued by Fridng Senaces that use beroker-dealer quodations,
reported trades of valuation estimates from their intemal pricing madels, The
pricing models for thete sequntied usually consider ranchedevel attributes,
current market data, estimated cash fiows and marketbated yield spreads for
each anche, and incorporate deal collateral perfonmance, a5 available
Mortgage-related and asset-backed securities that wse similar valuation
tedhneques and inputs a5 descbed above are categoned 45 Livel 2 of the
fair value hieranchy

Common stodks, ETFs, exchange-iraded notes and finandd denvative
insinuments, such a3 fulares Contracts, FAGNES 3dwWhaTants, of oplons on
fustisres that are fraded on a natonal sequrites exchange, are stated at the
Lexst reported sale or settlement price on the day of valuation. To the extent
these seqmrities are acively raded and valuadon adustments are nof apphed,
they are categorized as Level 1 of the fair valwe hierardhy

rvestmenits valued {denominated) in curren et other Ehan the funcional
currency of 4 Fund are converted B0 the functional cumrency using exthange
rates {currency spot and fonward rates) obtained from Pridng Services. As 3
result, e HAY of 3 Fund's units may be affecied by changes in the value of
cufrencies in relation o the fundionsl cuamrency. The value of securite raded
I PotEsgn Mdrkets of denofminabid in cuffences ofer Ehan i fundonal
curmency may be affected sgnificanthy on a day that the Trust is not open for
business. Valuation adiustments may be spplied to certain sequrities that are
sobely raded on a foreign exchange to gocount for he markel movement
between the dose of the foreign market and the NYSE Close. These seourities
are valued using Friang Senvices that consider the correlation of the rading
patberns. of the foreign seaurity to the infraday trading in the L5 markets for
imeestments. Secanities using these valuation adustments are categorized as
Level 2 of the fair value hierardhy. Frefermed sequeites and ather equities
tracded of ingctve rarkets of valised by reberince B Smilar ifdrurments s
alio cateoned as Levell 7 of the Tar walue hieranchy

Equatyinked searines are valeed by referencing the last reponed Su_il". o
sedement price of the linked referenced equity on the day of valuation
Foresgn exchange adusiments are spplied 1o the |ast reponed price 1o

comvert the linked equity’s rading currency to the contracts settling cusmmency
These imvestments are cateqorized & Level 2 of the fair vaue hierarchy

Imeishiments n regstensd open-end imiestment companies (olher than ETF)
il b vl e brbed uptn thie NANS of such investments and are categonned
a4 Liwel 1 of the fair value hierardy. Innvestments in enegistensd open-end
imneestmen T companies will be caloulzted based upon the NAVS of sudh
Ieveesiments and sne considered Level 1 proveded |al te NAVS ane
cservable, Ciloulated daly and g the value 3% which both purdhases and
sales will be conducted

ValuaBon adqustments may be applied to certain exchange traded futures and
opdons e acoount for market movement between the eodange settement
and the NYSE dose These weapities ane valuwed wran g quates cbtaned from a
quitation reporting system, establiched market mabérs o pricing sendces
Financal derivatives using these valuation adwstments are categanized a5
Levid 2 od thie Sair vadue higrandhy

Bty ecxch arige- Iradied opBons snd over the counter Tindndd deimvative

s bnamends, such as forward foreign qumency contracts znd oplions contracs,
derive their value from undesliing asset prices, indices, reference rates, and
other inputs or 3 combsnation of these faciors. These contracts are mommally
waliped on the basis of quotes obianed from a quatation Teanng Syslem,
established market makers or Pricing Sendces (normally detenmined a5 of the
WrSE Close). Depending on the prodisct and the terms of the transacion,
finandal derivative instnuments. can be valued by Fridng Senvices wsing a
seimed of techrigques, indidng simulation prang madels. The priang madels
Ut ingus that are cbeensed from actvely quoted markets such a8 quoted
prices, pssuer detals, indices, bedfask preadk, infenest rates, implied
wolatilies, vield curves, dvidends and exchange rates. Finanda derpvatie
imsenements that use simelas valuaton techniques and inputs as desoibed
SDOVE BTe CategnDed &5 Level 2 wof the fair valwe hierandy

Centrally deared swags and ower the counter svaps detive their value from
underhying asset prices, indices, reference rates, and ofher inputs of 8
comibination of thess factors. They are valued using a broker-dealer bid
quotation of on markel-haced prices provided by Predng Senices frormally
determened as of the WY SE Closel), Centrally déaned swaps and ower the
counter svaps @n be valued by Pridng Senices useng a series of techniques,
indudng simulation pricing models The pridng modefs may use inputs that
ae obienved from actively quoted markers such 45 the avernight index seap
rane (TOIST), UBOR forwand rate, inlerest ranes, yield durves and credin
ipreads. Thide sscuntes are cabeginned a5 Lével 2 of the far valus eerandy

when a fair valuation method is applied by the Manager that uses significant
unobsersable ingputs, mvestments wall be piced by a method that

the Manager or persons acting at their direction believe reflects fair value and
e Categonized a5 Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

Prieoy pficandg prcaobcunes. S&1 the bade price of  foosd income Security and
wbdeqently sduit the pice proportionaly o markel value changes of a pré-
determened secunty desmed to be comparable in deation, generallya U%
Treasurg of Sovensign note based on country of issuance The bate price may
e & broker-dealer quate, Bransaction price, of an intemal value a5 derved by
iyt of market data The base price of the ey gy De reset on @
petbodic basis based on the sadability of market dits and prodedures
Fpprovied by the Valuation Creerdght Corimattes. Signelicant changes mn the
unobservable inputs of the prosy pridng peocess (the base price) woukd result
in direct and proporticnal changes in the fak value of the seaunity. These
sequzities are categorized a5 Leel 3 of the fabr value: hieranchy

If dhindparty evaluated vendor prdng is not availabie of not deemed 1o be
indicative of fair value, the Manager may elect toobtain Broker
Cunoties, directly from the beckier-desler of passed-through Broker Quate from
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a thirdparty vendor In the event that fair value is based upon a single
sourced Eroker Quote, these sequrities are calegorized as Level 3 of the fair
value hisrarchy Broker Quotes are typically received from established market
partifpants. Although independently receioed, the Manager doss not has
the: transpanency b view thie wnderhing inputs ishich suppadt the market
quatation. Significant charges i the Broker Quate would hawe dnect and
propaetional changes in the Lar value of the seaity

Ehoet-tenm debl instrumen s (Suich oS Conmimer 038 Dapes) haing 4 remaning
rnarurity of 60 days or less may be valued at amomiped oosr, solong as e
amortized oost value of sich short-term debs instruments is approsdmatedy the
same a5 thie fair value of e insirument & determined without the use of
anortized oostvaluation. These seasities are categonized as Level 2 or Level
3 of the fair value hierandhy depending on the sounce of the base pace

4. SECURITIES AHD OTHER INVESTMENTS

{a] Dalayed-Delivery Transactions Certain Funds may pundhase o 44
seowities on 3 delayed-defivery basis These ransacSons involve a
coenmeiment by @ Fund to purchase of sell securites for a predetermined grice
or yield, with payrnent and defivery taling plade binsond the custormary
settlement period. When delayed-delivery ransactions ane gutstanding,

4 Fundwall destgnate or recene &5 collateral liquid 55215 in &0 amaount
suffichisnt b piviset the pusdhase rice of Respeclive cbgabord. When
purchasing & seqanity on a delaged-delivery bads, a Fund asumes the rights
and risks of crmersip of thee seournity, induding the ride of price and yield
fluctuatons, and takes wch lchsations into Sccoun b when detemining it
WAy A Fund may dispose of or renegaliate 4 delayed-delivery transaction
after it is entered into, wihoch may restin 3 realized gain of foss. Wihen

2 Fund has sold 3 security on a delayed-delivery basis, the Fund does not
partidpate in future gains and loses with respedt to the security

&) Inflatignd ndexed Bends  Certan Funds may irvest in inflatonndeded
bonds. Inflation-indexed bonds are fieed income sequrities whiose pringpad
waue is periodically adjusted by the rate of inflation. The interest rate on
these bonds is generally fived at isssance 312 rate lower than yplca bonds
et the life of an inflation-indexed bond, hitwever, interestwill be pard
bazed on a prindpal valwe, which is adjusted for inflation. Any incease o
degrease in the prindpal amognt of an inflationndexed bond will be induded
asimterast income on the tatements of Operatons, even though imvestors do
ot receyvie their prind pal uns matanity. Repayment of the orgnal bond
pinicpal upon maturty (i adjusted fof inflatea) B quaranteed in the cae of
LS. TIPS, For bonds that do not provde a smila quarantes, the adusted
principal valye of the bond repaid 31 maturity may be less than the oeiginal
prindpal

Ied Loan Participa tiens, Assignments and Originetions  Certain Funds may
frvestin direct debt imsruments which are interests in amounts owed i
lenders o lending syndicabes by corporabe, governimental, of ather bomoeers
A Funeds mvestiments in boans may be in the lorm of perbdpations in loans of
aupmments of all or a porticn of laans frem third paies of ifvestments in of
onginations of laans by the Fund. A loan is often administered by 3 bank or
ofer Ananaal institution (e "lender™) hat ads & Nt for al holders. The
agent administers the terms of the losn, a5 spedfed in thi loan et

A Fured may amvest in multiple sees of randhes of a loan, whidh may have
vaning terms and camy different assodated nisks When a Fund purdhases
assrgnments from lenders is aoquires direct rights against the bomrowers of the
lpans. These loans may indude partidpations in beidge loans, which ae koans
taken out by bomowers for 3 shornt penod (oyplcally bess than one year)
pemding arangement of more permanent finandng through, for examgle, the
isarance of bonds, frequenthy high yield bonds issued for the purpose of
aoquisitons

The types of loams and related investments in which the Funds may invest
indude, among athers, senior loans, subordnated loams dndudng second
lien loans, B-Motes and mezzaning koans), whole kans, commengial real
eilate and other comrmescial loans and structured baand. A Fund may
argnate |oans of aoquare direct interests in loans thiough pamary [oan
distributions andéor in private ransactions. In the cade of wboednated |aans,
there may be significant indebtedness ranking ahead of the borrower™s
obligatcn 1o the holdes of such 4 loan, indiding i @ evenl of the
bomower's insoheency. Mezzanine losns e hplcaly seomed by 3 pledoe of
N ety INDErest in the mOMgage bomrower thal gwns the real eitabe rather
thah an inkerestin & mortgade

Evestimends i loans may indude unfunded boan commements, whidh are
contrachual obdigatons for funding. Unfunded oan commitments may ndude
revolving aredit faglifes, which may cbligate a Fund to supply additional cath
lo the beowmowver on demand. Unfunded loan commitments represent a futue
obligaticn in full, even though a percentage of the commitied amount may
il b utiied by the borowesr When investing in 3 loan partiopaton,

A Fund has the Aght 1o recens: payments of prndapal, emteiest and any fees to
winchit i entitled only from the lender selling the loan ageeement and only
upon receipt of pavments By the lender from the bomower. A Fund may
FenEne 4 Commitment fee based on the undrawn portion of the underying
line of oredt peetion of 3 koan. In certain circumstances, 3 Rund Py reCehE 3
penalty tesk ipon the prepayment of & loan by & borrowier Fees eamed o
paid are recorded a5 2 component of interest income or interest expense,
respecieely, on the Statements of Operations. Unfunded loan commitments
e refected a5 a labity on the Statements of Assets and Liabilities

{th Morigage-Related and Oiker Asset-Backed Securities Certain Funds may
Irviesst in mof fgage-retated and othier B5sel-backed seoum tes that deecdy of
IndiPeCRy represent & partdpatson in, of ane Seowed by and payable friem,
loans on res] property. Morigage-related secunthis are edbed froen rcncl s o
residental o cormmendal morigage loans, induding mongage foans made by
savings and loan institutions, mortgage barkers, commerdal bankcs and
others. These sequrities provide a mondhly payment which consists of both
interess and principal. Interest may be detemmuined by fieed or adustable rates
The rate of prepayments on underlying morgages wall atlect the phce and
wolatility of a mortgage-rel ated secwity, and may have the effect of
shortening of extending the effectie duration of the security relaive towhat
wizs antaapated at the Bme of purchaze The timely payment of prindpal and
irterest of cemain morigage-rel sted sequnties it quaranteed with the full Gath
and creditof the LS. Govemment Pools areated and quarantesd by non
gemernimental issuers, indudng govemiment-sponsoned corpafations, may be
supported by variows forms of insurance of guarantees, but tere can beno
Essurande el private surers of quaranions cin meet thelr obligaticers under
e insupranoe polides of Quagantes arangements. hMany of he niks of
Ieroesting im mortpage-til dted seouities senured by commendal momgage
loans refiect the effects of logal 2nd other economic conditions on real estate
markets, the shlity of tenants to make lexse payments, and the abifityof 2
property 0 atiract and retan tenants. These sequeies may be less liqued and
iy it greater price wolatlity than ather types of mongage-related or
other assetbacked sequnties. Olher ssetbadeed secmifies are aeated from
many types of aeets, induding, but not limited fo, auto loans, accounts
receivable, such as aedt card receivables and hospatal account receivables,
e ity loders, Student boand, boatloans, molie Roms loard,
recreationdl vehide loans, manufacnaned housing boans, anralt leases,
complter ket and yyndcated bank loans The Fund may investin amy
ol the capital stnacture of an issuer of morigage-badbed or assel-hacked
sequeines, induding the equity of "Srst loss” ranche

I Collateralized Maorigage Obligatians ("CAC:™) are debt obligations of 2
legaal enitity 1hat are coltaterabzed by whole morigape kans of prvabe
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micetgage bonds and divided into dasses. CMIOs are struchored inko muliple
dasses, often refered o as “tranches”, with eadh dass beaning a different
stated matunity and enfited o a different schedube for payments of pringpal
and interesl, induding prepayments. CMOY may be less liquid and may exhitar
greater pnce volatility than ofher fypes of mortgage-related or aset-badied
s lies

i Stripped Mortg ege-Backed Securities ("SMES") are dervatie multi<las
morigage securiies. SMES are usually structured wath fao classes that receie
different proportions of the interest and prindpal distributions on a podl of
Frcengage assers. An SMES wall have one dass that wall necene all of e
inerest {the intered-only of ~I07 dass), while Be ather dats will recee the
entire prindipal (the prindpal-only o "FO" dass). Payments received for K05
areinduded in inferestingome on the Statements of Operations. Becawse no
pinvcipal will be received 3t the muaturity of an 0, Biusments e made o
the cost of the seairity on a monthly basks unitl maturicy. These adusmments
ané inchuded in interestincome on e Satements of Operatons Fayments
received for PO are treated a5 reductions to the cost and par value of the
senwities

ig) Collateralized Debt Obligations ("C 005 7) indude Collateralized Bond
Obiegatons ("CBOs™). Collaterakzed Loan Obfigations (" C105™) and other
simdaely stnpctred seCuniies. CBOS and CLOS are types of asset-badoed
securnlies. A CBO S & trust which is badked by & deversifed poal of high risk,
below mvestment grade ficed income seamities. A CLO is a tast typically
collateralized by a pool of [oams, which may indude, among others, domessic
and foreign senior secured boans, senior unsecured loans, and subordnase
corporate loars, indudng koans that may be rabed below imesiment grade o
eduavalent unrated loans. The risks of an imestment in 3 CDO depend Langely
on the type of the collateral secunities and the diass of the CO0 in whidh

a Fund imvests. In addition o the normal risks assodaed with fioed inooms
Sedufilied diousied elsewhene in thed repoet and fe Funds' Offering
Miemncdandum (2.q., prepayment sk, oedit nak, ligudty sk, markoet m,
struechural rigk, legal rik and nberest rate itk dahich may be excerbated if
the interest rate payable on & stnactured finandng changes bated on
multiples of changes in inenest riates o inversely to changes in inferest
ratesh, CBOs, CLOs, and other COCS camy additona rrks induding, but nol
fier vesc 0, (1) thies prorssibifity Ban cistributiors Fom collsteral securitieswill not
b adequate tomake interest or other payments, (i) e quality of the
coilateral may dedine in value or defaudt, fii) the sk that a Fund may imsest
in 8Os, CLOs, or other G0 that are sbordinate to other dasses, and (iv)
the complex smachure of the sequrity may not be fully understond at the Sme
ol imvestrment and may produce disputes with the issue of unexpected
Irversiment results

{hl Payment In-Hind Securities Certain Funds may invest in payment indind
securities {"PIKs™). Plks may give the issuer the opSon at each interest
payment date of making interest payments in either cash andfor add Gonal
diebd securibes. Those addtional debd securimes wually hawe the same temms,
Induding manunty dates and entenest rates, and sisodated risks a4 the
oibginal bonds. The daily markel quotations of the crignal bonds mdy indisde
the sccued interest (refemed to 35 a “dirty price”) and require a pro rata
acfustment from the unrealized spprecation or depred ation on investments
o ingerest recenvable on the Stements of Asets and Ustdites

) Restricied Securities Cemain Funds muy hold sedtments that ané subject
1o legal or contrachual redmicBond on resale Thete seosities may be sold
prvwabely, Bt may be redquined 1o be reqetered of exempled iram such
regestration bedore being sold 1o the public. Privane placement secunities ane
generalty considered to be restricted. Disposal of resticted investments may
v e -CONSLITANG RegoRanans and expendses, and prompl sale atan
acoeplable price rmary be St 1o schieve. Restricied meesmments held L

the Funds at October 31, 2021, a5 applicable, are dsdosedin the Notes o
“chedule of Investments

§ Strciured Netes  Ceertam Funds mady imvest in staCiured notes and osher
riel aned imsArumenis, which ane prisvately negatiated debt obligations in which
the principal and or interest is determined by reference to the performance of
& benchinark asset, mesket o Bnferest rate (a0 "embedded index”), sudh a5
sebecied sequnities, an index of sequnties or specified mierest rates, of the
differential performance of b J55e05 of markess, such & indenes reflecting
bonds. Stnuctured instruments may be issued by comporations, induding
banks, aswell & by govemmental agencies. The tenms of such structured
imsiurnents normaly provide that their prindpal andfor inlerest payments are
1o e gdusted upwands or downwands (but ordinanby not below zera) to
reflect changes in the embedded index whike te stuctured instnoments are
outstanding As a result, the ingerest andfor prind pal payments that may be
made on a srudured product may vanywidsly, depending on a variety of
factors, ncudng te volatity of the embedded inde and the effect of
changes an the emnbedded indes on prindpal andie mbenes parments

k) U5, Government Agencies or Gavernssent-Sporsared Enterprises

Certaln Flancks may invest in senmities of 15, Govemment agendes of
gevernment-sponsored enterpeises. LS Government sequrities are
aibligaticens of and, in certain cases, guaranteed by, the LS, Government, its
agendes of instumentadities Some U5, Govemment secunities, sudh as
Treasurg bills, notes and bonds, and securities quaranteed by the Govemment
Hamiona Morigage Awadaticn (TGNMAT o "Gintie Mae®), e supported
By the el faith and credit of the U5 Governiment; others, dudh as thode of
the Federal Home Loan Banks, ane supported by the rght of the issuer i
bormow from the U5, Deparment of tie Treasusy (the "US. Treasuny™); and
others, such & those of the Federdl National Mortgage Assodiation (“FNMA”
o “Fanfes Mae"), ane wippodted by he o ehonany suthonty of he LS
Gorvermment 1o punchase the 30N 0y cbligatons. LIS Governmient Seourits
ey inchudké 2eho Coupon Secunites, which do ot destiibute Rberest on 4
current bacis and tend oo be subiect 1o a greater sk than interest-paying
sequrites of similar maturites

Gevemment related quarantors (i &, not backed by the full fath and qedt of
the L5 Govemment) indude FHMA and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Comporation (TFHLMC" or "Feddie Mac™), FNMA B 2 govemment-sponsored
corporyion. FHMA punchades comventional { ¢, nal ifriured of guaranteed by
arry govemment agency) ressdinial mortgages Trom  list of sppeoved
selierifienvicers which ndude state and tederally chartened savings and loan
associaBions, mutual sadngs banks, commendal banks and aedit urons and
morigage bankers. Pass-throwgh sequnties sswed by FNMA are guaranteed a5
1o timedy payment of principad and interest by ENMLA, Bist are ot Dadded by
the full Taish and credit of e U5 Government, FHLMC issues Partdipation
Cerfificates (TFCs™), which are pass-through seqmities, each representing an
undivided inferest in a pool of residential mongages FHLMC guarantess the
timedy payment of interest and ul@imate collection of principal, but PCs @enot
badked by the full faith and cedt of the U S Govemment

I Jure 20119, FHMA and FHLMWC started issuing Undorm Morigage Badied
Securites (TUMES™) in plage of their curent offerings of TBA-eligile
seapises (the ~Singe Sequrity Milstive™) The Sngle Secanty Inibative seeks
Lo Suppeort he cverall liqueding of the TBA markel and aligns the
characteristics of FMMA and FHLMC certificates. Thie ellecs that the Singie
Security inifi zfve may have on the market for TEA and other morigage-
backed sequrities are uncestan

Rl -Eming strategies can be weed where 3 Fund sesks 1o extend the
expiration or maturity of a position, wach as a TRA security on an underlying
asset, by cosing out the position before expiration and opening a new
position with respect to substantialy the same underhang asset with alater
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expiralion date TEA sequnities purchased or sold are reflecied on the
“Hatements of Assets and Liabafities as an asset o liablity, respectively

Il When-szued Transactions Certain Funcs may purchase or sell sequrites
o 3 when-ssoed basis. Thete ransactions are made omdiionally because a
security, although authorized, has not yer been issued in the market
Tramsactions to punchate oe sl secwities on 3 when 4saed basis imaohe

a commitment by 3 Fund 1o punchace or sell these seauities for 3
predenermmned price of yield, wath paymnent and defsvery Laking plae beyond
the aussomany seitlerment pesiod A Fund may Sell wisen-1saed seountie
Bt thisy ane detiverid, whach may resultin a realizsd gain or hoss

im) Bank Obligatiens Eank obligations in which a Fund may imvest indude
certificates of depaosit, bankers” acceplandces, and Boed time depesits
Certificates of deposit are negotiatle certificanes issued against funds
deposited in a cormmerdal bank for 2 definite period of time and eaming a
specified fe1um . Bankers' Soceplanoes sne negolatie dratts o bills of
exdhange, normaly drawn by & importer of exporter 1o pary for speafic
mefchandee, which ane ™ accepied” by & bank, meaning, in eflect, that the
bank unconditionally agrees to pay the face value of the insrument cn
maturity. Fired time deposits are bank obligathons payable at a stated
maturity date and beanmg inderest ot 3 Twed rate. Fooed Sime depotits may be
withidrawn on demend by the imvestor, but may be subject o early
withdrasal penalties wisch vary dependng upon market condiions and the
remaining maturity of the cbiigation

inl Perlormance-Linked Notes Cierain Funds investin performance-inked
nates that ane issued by Credit Suisee intemational (the ~Fee Agent™) and
seek 1o radk the performance of the FIMCO Bermuda Income Fund (M)

(" Performance-Linked Noes™) In the case of !e JFY Performance-Linked
Hotes msied, the performmance of sudh nates will b hedged 1o the Japanese
yen by Credt Suisse intemational using a proprietary formula, As explained in
greater detal in Note 9, the Fee Agent will finance the payment of placament
fees to certain Japanese deiibitons In order for the Fee Agent to hedge
certan of its exposures under e Fee Agent Appointment Agreement (a5
difined in Mate 9), itis eoqeecied that from Grme 3o ime certain Cladies of the
FIMICO Bammuda income Fund E will investin Perfoemance-Linked Bates in an
amount spedfied by the Fee Agent. Al the ime of seents induding, but not
fienined 8o, any redemption of units of the FIMCD Bermuda Income Fund E
amd & step-down of the applicable Percentage Conngent Defered Sales
Charge (TCDSCT), a6 defined i Mote 9, the Perfoemanci-Linked Naobes hdd
Ery thee Fund will b pastially redesmed acooedingly m ofder 1o mantan te
total watue of Performance-Unked Nates in the Fund's imves ment portiolio
equal 1o or below the amount of the COGC spplicable 1o the respecive
Classes of the Fund plus 0 2066 mudtiplied by the NAY of the respective
Classes of the Fund. Perfoemance-Linked Notes e valsed daily. Thelr visue |3
bazed on the pnor day NAY of the PIMCO Barmuda Income Fund (M} With
respect to the value of the JFY Perfrmance-linked Motes, a propietary
hiedging formula is aleo apgifed The Fund cannce ransfer the Performance-
Linked Modes o any other purty aside from the Fee Agentwithout the pricd
wiillén agreement of the Fee Agent

§. BEORROWINGS AND OTHER FINAHCING TRANSACTIONS

The: follcwing disdosures contan informanion on the Funds” sbdlity to kend of
bucemowy cash of securites to the extent permitted under the Offering
Memioeandum;, which may be wewed & borowing or finandng transactions
Ery the Funds. The location of Sese instnaments is desaibed below. Fora
detaled desaiption of gredit and counterparty fisks that cn be assocated
with bommving: and other finanamg rarsachons, pleade see Note 7,
Prindpal and Other Risks

{8l Repurchase Agresments  Cerfan Funds may engage o repurchase
agreaments. Under the tems of @ typical repunchase sgredrment,

& Fund puerchates a0 underling debl obigation (collateral) wabject 1o an
cidigation of the seller to repurchase, and & Fund to resedl, the obfigation at
an agreed-upon price and sme. I an open maturiy repurchase agreement,
Ui Is no pre-determin ed repurchase date and the Fyeement can be
temminated by the Fund o counderparty &t gy ime. The market value of the
collateral misst be equal ba or exceed the total amcamt of the repurchase
obligations, indudng interest Repurchase agreements, induding acoued
imterest, ave induded on the Statements of Aseets and Ligtaliies inberest
eamed is recorded 25 3 component of interest income on the Statements of
Operasions. in periods of increased dernand for cofllateral, 8 Fund ray pay a
Tee for recapt of collaterd, whach may result in interes t expenie 1o the Fund

b Revarze Repurchase Agreaments Certan Funds may enter into reverse
repunchase agreements. In a reverse repurchase agreement, a Fund delivers a
secity in exchange fior cash o a finandal institlu@on, the counterparty, with
& unrmlLafeous sqresrnent 10 fepuldiade the Samie of substantially thi Came
security at an aghesd upon price and date. In &0 Open MARUATY riserse
repundae sgreernent, there is no pre-determined repunchase date and the
Agresrment can be terrminated by the Fund or counterparty a1 any time

A Fund |5 entitled o reehve prindipal and interest payments, if amy, made o0
thee: Secunty delivensd to the counterpany durng e ey af the JeEmEnt
Cash recenved in eochange for secuntles delivened pius Somusd interess
payments. to be made by a Fund o counterparthes. are reflected as 3 liabality
on the Statements of Assats and Lishilities Interest payments made by a fund
1o counferparties are recorded & a component of inferest expense on the
Statements of Operations. in periods of increged demand for the sedurity,

a Fund may receie 3 fiee for use of the secunity by She counterparty, whidh
may rewltin interest income i 3 Fund. A Fund will segregate asets
determined 10 be liquid by PIRGCO or will ofhensise cover its obligadons
under reverse repurchase agesments

i Sale-Buybacks Certain Fends may enter into financng ransactions
refemed 10 a5 “sale-buybacks' A sale-buybadk financng vansaction congsis
of 3 sake of 3 wcurity by 4 Fund i a finandgal instituSon, the counterpany,
with a smultansoos agreement ta repurchase the same or substantialy the
same sequnity at an agreed-upon price and date. A Fund is not entitled 1o
recere princpal and interest paenls, if Ay, e on e Security sold 1o
the countenparty dunrg the tenm of the agreement The Jgrésd-upon
proceeds for securities bo be repunchiased by 3 Fund ane rneflecied a5 3 Rabikry
o the Srabements of Assefs and Liakalities. A Fund well recognize net indime
represented by the price differential between the peice received for the
transfemed seourity and the agreed-upon repurchase price. This is commonly
refesmed 10 a5 the ‘price drop’, A price drop consises of §) the foregone interest
and il aionany inoome ﬂd'.l‘ﬁml?ﬂ[‘ﬁ. i1 arry, & Fund woukd have othersnse
recefved had the security nof been sold and i) the negotiated finandng terms
between 2 Fund and counterparty Foregone inferest and inflationarny income
adiusments, if amy, are recorded as components of Enterest income on the
Statements of Operatons, interest payments based updn negotiated finandng
Temmres meacle by @ Fund Lo comberparties ane reconded 5 4 component of
Interest egpense on the Statements of Operations, In penods of increased
demand for the sequrity, a Fund may receive a fee for use of the saqurity by
e Commnieparty, which may resdtin interest Roome 0.4 Fund. A Fund wall
Segregate ey determenid to be lguxid by PIMCO o will ofuenwite oover 13
ciligatcas wnder sale-buybadk ransschons

i Short Salex  Certain Funds may eniter inlo thort takes ransactions. Short
sales are transactions in which the Fund sells 3 security that it may nof cen
A Fund may make shoet sabes of sequnities to () offsed potenta dedines in
bong pesations in sirilar securiies, (1) to Indease the flextility of the Fund,
(o) bor imesament retuem, Ov) a5 pan of & sk arbivage strategy, and (v} &
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part of it overall portigio management sirategies imalving the use of
derivalive instruments. When a Fund engages in a short sale, it may bomow
the secunity sold short and deliver it to the @unterparty. The Fund will
ordinadity have 10 pdy 3 Bee o prermium b bormow 2 security snd be cbligated
10 fegray the lender of the secunity any dividend or inferest that accrues on the
secu by diring the period of the loan Sedurities sold in short sdle Iransackions
and the dvidend or inferest payable on wdh cecunties, if any, are reflecied a4
prayable for shiort sakes on thie Statements of Ascets and Liabdities. Short sales
expod i Furd bo the mgk thatit wall be requined b oovel 15 short podion
AUt when The Secunty of afer 3556t has apprecsted in value, thus
fiesultng in osses 1 the Fund A short sale i " against the baox™ it

thee Fund hiodds in its portfolio or has the right to aoquine the seourity sold
shoet, or sequnities identical 1o the security sold shoet, atno addtional cost

A Fumsdwill be subject to additional rsks o the extent thatit engages in shon
sales that are not "aganst the box ™ A Fond's loss on a short sale could
theoretically be unlimited in cases where the Fund & unable, for whateeer
reason, fo dose ut its shoet posiBion

{e) Lime of Cradit FIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund (M) entered info 2 364-
day senior unseured revalving credit agreement wath e Bank of Tokyo-
Mitsubishs UEJ, Lid (MUEG™) and other commendial banks to be ufilized for
temporany purposes o fund Unstholder redemplions o for other short-term
Toquickty purpories. MURG senves 3¢ both abank and & an agent for other
banks that are parties to the agreement PIMCO Bemiuda Bank Loan Fund
(M) parys Bindnvding charges Dased an & oorban a%on of LIBDR-based vanable
plus a et speead. The Fund also pays a fee of 0275% per annum on the
unirsed corrmitment amounts. The agreement was renewed on Augest 21,
2021 and xpires on August 21, 2022 urless exdended of renswed Thene it a
rginniem avalabde comenitmend amouni for PIMCO Bemuda Bank Loan
Fund (4 egual to 545,000,000, Frior 1o August 11, 2021, the maximum
arvalable comrtment smcunt for the Fund was §55, 000,000 and the Fund
paid & tei o 0.275% per annum on e urased commaEImeEnt smains
Commitment, upfront and interest fees of $236,435 paid by FAIMCO Bermuda
Eank Loan Fund (M) e inglieded in interest expense in the Statements of
Operations.

Cnring the period, there were no Borrowings on tis Bne of aedt

6. FIHAHCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMEATS

Thie bollwarig discarsures oontaen informaton o how gndwiny the Funds use
financiad diervative instruments 2 how financal dedvative insruments.
affect e Funds’ finandal position, results of operasions and cash fows The
location and fair value amouns of these insruments on the Statements of
Asgets and Lisbelities and #he net reabzed gain (loss) and net change in
unrealized spprecation (depred stion) on the Statemwents of Operatons, sacth
categoeized by type of finandd derivative confract and redated risk exposure,
are indudad in a table in the Notes to Schedule of irvestments. The finandal
derwative insruments outstanding as of period end and the amounts of net
reafized gain Joss) and net dhange inunrealized appredation (Heprediation)
an finandal dervative instruments during the period, a5 disdoded in the
Hotes b Schedule of vesiments, senve a4 indcators of te volurme of
financal derivalive activity for the Fundt

|&) Forweard Foresgn Currency Contracts  Cerfain Funds may engage in
forwiard foreign cumency contrads in conneciion with seting planned
purchases of sxles of secufibes, b hedge the Curtency expasure xisodaed
with sofme of all of & Fund's securities of a5 part of an investment stiategy. A
forwand foreign cumendy contrad 15 an agresment bebwieen bvo parties 1 buy
and sell @ qurency at 4 set price on a future date. The market value of a
forwraed leI'-:h]'l CUIPENCY ORI flusstuates with changes in f-Zf-EII_}"I a1l )
Exchange rates. Fonwvand fonesgn ourmency aoniracts afe mardkied 1o markel
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daily, and the change in vaue is recondsd by a Fund a5 an unrealized gain or
hoss, Bealized gans or hosses are equal 1o the difference between the value of
the conbract at the dme it was opened and the value at the time itwas dosed
and ane medonded upon delroeny or receipd of the currendy These confracs
ey imvoha markcet risk in excess of the uniealized gasn or [958 refected on
the Statements of Assets and Lisbéiities. In addition, & Fund could be expoged
b risk: if the counterparties are unable 1o meet the tenme of the contracts or if
e vatue of the currency dhanges unlavorably 0o te unciond asrency. To
ritigane such nide, cash of ssquntes may be exchanged & collaneral pursiiant
Lo the Restmrs Of the undestying Coniaces

Certain Fnds, having a hedged Class, may also enter into forwand foreign
CUrrency Contracts designed 1ooffset the effect of hedging at the Fund fevel n
arider. 1o leave the hedged Class with an expasine to arrendes other than the
thunctional asrency There can be no guarantee that these Class spedfic
forwrand foreign aurrency contracts wall be successhu

i) Futares Contracts  Certan Funds may enter nito futures confracts. A
futures confract is an agreement to bury or sell a sequnity or other asset for a
set price on a future date and is raded on an exchange A Fund may use
futures contracts to manage its expasure (o the sequnties markets o
Frvements in interest rates and curmendy values. The primany risks sisodated
wath the use of hubures contracts ane the imperfect comelation between the
change in market value of the securiies held by a Rend and the prices of
fubures contracts and the possibility of an illiquid market. Fubares confracts
anie waliped barted upon thise quoted daily seitderment prices. Lipan eflefing
intt & futures contract, 4 Fund is redquired 1o deposit with it futures beoker an
amount of cash, LS. Govemment and Agency Obligations, of select sowefesgn
debit, in acoordance wilh the inatial mardgin requinements of he brokes or
exchan o Futures contracks are marked 1o market ¢-31|:|' arsd Barsed on swch
FRovEments in the price of the CoNmacts, an sppropiste [unyalle of receniable
for the change in value may be posted of ooll ected bey thee Furd (TFutures
WaraBon Margin ™). Futures Vaniation Margns, if 2y, are dsdosed within
cemdrally deared finandal desivative instruments on the $1alements of Assets
and Listeities. Gains or losses are recognized but nod considered realized unbl
the conbracts expire of dose. Futures contracts imvobe, 10 varying degrees,
risk of bogs in aateds of the Futures Vanation Margn induded within
exchange raded or centrally deared finanoal dervative insruments on the
Statements of Assets and Liabdifies

el Options Contructs Cérlain Funds ay wiihe or purchiate optiond 1o
erf1ange returs of 1o hedie an existing posigon or fubyre investment, Cenain
Funds may write call and put opfions on securites and finandial derreativ
irshnements they own or by which they may invest Wiiting put optices tends
W indease a fund's exposune 80 the underdying instrument. Writing <all
options tends to dedreaze a Fund's expodure bo he underhing instrument
When a Fundwrites a call or put, an amount egqual 10 the premium received is
recorded and subsequenty marked to market to refiect the aument value of
e opition written. These amounts ane incaded on she Satements of Assets
and Lisbalities. Premaun recened fnom writng opgions which apine ane
treated s realized gans. Presmunms redeivid from writing options whidh ane
exerised or dosed are added to the procesds of offseq against amounts paid
on the undethang fustures, swap, SECUINTY O QUITENCY Tansaction Lo delermrne
the: fealized gan of 1065, Céftimh ApTons Mmay be wrilten with premiims 10 be
deterened an & fulure dase, The premiums for thse opions an tased upon
implied wodatility parameters at spedfied lerms. A Fund as awriter of an
option has no confrol over whether the underhying krstnament may be soid
"call " or purchased Cput T and a5 2 result beass e marketrisk of a
unfavorable change in the price of the insrument underlying ihe writien
oplon, There i the nsk & Fund may not be able 1o enter inko adosing
tranzacion because of an ilquid marker
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Certain Funds may also puschase put and call opSons. Purchasing call options
tends to inrease a Fund's exposure to the underdying instrument, Purchasing
put cpSons tends fo decrease a Fund's exposure to She underhying instument
A Fund gt  prernium which & indudéd a4 an asset on the Staternents of
Assers and Listalimes and subsequently marked to market 1o reflect the
current value of the option. Fremiums paid for ponchasing aptions which
expure ane teated &5 realized losses Certain opticers may be purchased with
premiums 10 be determaned on 4 fubare date. The premsunms for hese opons
are based upon irpded voiatility parametens. an sped fied tems, The rid

Ao yted walh purchaang put nd call opoons & Bmebed to the préfmim
paid. Fremiunme paid for purdhasing apdions which ane exerdsed or died ane
added o the amounts paid or offset agairst the proceeds on the underlying
irvesement transaction to detenming the reakzed gain of loss when the
umderhying Farsaction is expoyted

Credit Delault Swaptions Cemain Funds may wote of purchase aédin kel
Senaptions. b hedge expodure it gedtnak of & imvestment withoul
making & cofrratment 1 e wnderhing intrument A oedit default swapticn
s an opticn f0 sell o buy credt protechon to 4 spealc reference by entenng
intg a pre-defined awap agreement by some spedfed date in the future

Feraign Currenesy Optens Certain Funds may wnte o purchase foreign
currency apbons B be wsed a5 a shortor long hedge against possible
wari a%ons in foreign exchange rates of 1 galn exposune [0 fonsgn umendes

InflationCappead Options Certain Fundk maywrite or purchase inflafion-
capped options to enhance refums of Tor hedging opportunities. The purpose
of purchasing inflation-capped options is to probect 2 Fund from infation
ercesion abowe 3 certain rate on 3 given notional wposune. A floor can be
used B give downiside profecon o investments in inflation dinked products

Interest Rate Swaiptions Certan Funds mdy witle of purdhase intenest rae
wevapticns, which are opions to-enter into a pre-defined svap agreement or
to shorten, extend, cancel or oghersise modify an existing awap agreement,
bry somme specified date in the future. The writer of the swaption becomes the
counserparty o the seap if the biyer exercises, The nberest rate swapion
agresmment wal spedify whether the buyer of the swapon will be a foed+ate
receroer of 3 fied-rate payer upon exerdse

Dptiors on Exchange: Traded Futures Contracts Certien Funch may wiite of
purchase optons on exdhange-raded fununes contracts (" Fulures Cpdion ") 1o
hedge an exdsting position or future investment, for speoulative purposas or fo
manage exposre o maket movements A Futuzes Oplion isan opticn
contract in whidh the underfying insrument is 3 sengle futures contract

Dptiores on Securilies Certan Funds maywitle o pundiase optens on
Senuities toenhance refums of 1o hedge an exdsing position of fulure
IrvESMEnT. AN Spbon on A eIty uses & ipeafed sequnity i the underhing
Instrument for the option contrad

id] Swoup Agreaments Cerlan Funct mdy imwest in Swdp sgréements Swap
Agreementy ane bilaterally negatsed agreementy bedween 3 Fund and a
counterparty 1o echange o swap imvestrment cash Sows, aseets, foreign
cymrencies of market-linked renams 31 spedfied, fture intervals. Swap
AR My be privatedy I‘-E‘;ﬁ-}:-"[éﬂlﬂ the OTC market or Frgy b cleared
theoaigh 4 thind party, known & a central countenparty o difivatives deanng
onganization {"centrally deared ssaps™). A Fund may enter into asset, gedt
detault, ooss-qurendy, interest rate, tota retum, variance and other forms of
WD AEEMEnts [o manage its exposire fo gedt cumenty, interest rate,
commodity, equity and inflation risk In connection with these agresments,
securities of cash may be idensified a5 collateral or mangin in accondance with
the téms of the reipective avap agresments 1o prsade assets ol waloe and
recourse in the event of defiault or bankruptopinsobency

Centrally deared swaps are marked 1o market daily based upaon valuatcns 2
determined from the underbying contract or in accordance with the
requirements of the central coenterparty o dervatives dearing crgarization
Changes in market value, i any, ae reflected 25 a component of net dhangs
In undeal 2ed appredaton (deprédaton) on the Stabements of Operaticens
[sly changes in valuation of centrally deared swaps {™wap Vanation
Margin™), if any, are disdosedwithin centrally deared Snandal dedvative
IFSEAETENS Of (e Statemends of Assets and Liabilitses. OTC Swvap payments
rectied OfF pid 4t the begnseng of the measiremisnt pefod are induded an
e Statements of Assets and Liabaltied and repretent premmrrs pad of
Fieciieid U en enilering into the fwap Sgneerment i comperdate fof
differences between the stated tems of the svap agreement and prevaling
market condtions (aedit spreads, qumency excnange rates, interest rabes, and
other relevant factors). Upfront premiume received (paid) are indtially recorded
a5 liskalities (assets) and subsecuently marked to market to reflect the oument
walpe of the swap. These upfont premiums are reccrded & realized gains or
hosses on the Statéments of Gperations upon termination or maturity of the
awap A liguidstion payment received o made at the termination of the swap
s neconded 3 reai2ed gain or lods an the Statements of Operatons. Net
periodic payments recened of paid by a Fund afe ncluded as pant of reall med
gains of |osses an the Stabements of Operations

Fee purposes of appbyng ceman of a Fund's investaent polides and
FESICRONS, Svap Bgreements, Foe ol derrdiinoe snstrumments, may be
waled by a Fund at market vaue, notional valee o full exposure value In the
case of a oredit default swap, in apphing certain of the Fund's invesiment
polickes and restrictions, the Fundwill value the gedit default swap atits
riobonal value of Hs full exposisre vaue § e, the sum of the notional amount
tor the contract plus the marked value), but may value the credt default swap
al rarket valse $or purposes of apphing certain of the Fund's other
imeestment polides and restrictions. For examphe, e Fund may value gedit
default waps at Ul exposure value for puposes of e Fund’s credit quality
quidelines. (iF arny) becaute such value in general better reflecrs the Fund's
AUl enomic expoaure duing the term of the dedit default swap
agresment. A5 4 result, 4 Fund may, at mes, have notional spoiune 10 an
asset dass (before netting) that |s greaber or kesser than the stated limit o
resticgion nodedin the Fund's Offering Memorandum, in this comtext, both
the notional smount and e markel vaue may De positve of negative
depending on whether the Fund is selling of buying prodection trough the
credit default swap The manner inwhich certain securities or other
Imsinements are valued by the Fund for purposes of applying investment
policies. amd restrictions may differ from the marner in which those
imeestmente sne valued by other types of investons. Entering into swap

eements imvabves, 1o vaning degrees, elements of interest, redit, market
and documnentation risk in excess of the amounts recognized on the
Slatements of Assets and Liabdities. Sudh rigks immbe the posibility tat
there wall b nd Bgad market tor thede agreements, tul e Counterparty o
e agresmeny mdy delaull on it obliganon to perform of diagres a5 1o the
rreaning of contractual terms in the sgresrments and that there may be
wnitavorabde charges in intenest rates of the wabues of the ase1 upon which
the: swvap 15 Dased

A Fund's madrnum risk of boss rom counterpay aedit risk is ihe dscounted
et wakue of the cash flowrs 10 be receied from the counterparty over the
confracts remaining life, to the extent that amount is positive. The risk may
be matigated by hawing a master neting amangsment between 3 Fund and
thie coamierparty and by the pesting of collateral b 3 Fund to cowver & Fund’™s
exposure 10 the counterparty

T the extent a Fund has a polscy 10 limit the net amount owed o of o be
received from a sngle counterparty under exsting awvap agreements, wdh
fimstation ondy appliss bo counterparties 10 OTC swaps and does not apply bo
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ceniraly deared swaps where the counterparty is a central counterparty o
derivatives dearing organizaBon

Credit Detauln Swap Agreemers Certain Funds may enter into aedt default
WA 0N Oporate, loan, sovereign, LS. runicipad or LS. Treasury issues to
provide 3 measure of protection against defautis of Se issuers (e, o reduce
risk where a Fund owres of has expodure o the referenced obligation) or to
Lake an active long of shord position with respect 1o the Bkelihood of a
particular issuer's default, Credit default swap agresments invobve one pary
rreakineg & Stnearn of pannents frefenred to at the barper of prodection) 1
ancithsr party (the seller of profection] in exchange for the nght o receve 3
spedfied return i thee evend that the referenced entity, obligation of index, a8
spedfied in the svap agréement, undergos a cerlaen dedit evert AS a wiler
of proseciion on gredt default swap agreements, a Fund will gererally receive
from the buyer of protection 2 fised rate of income Snoeghout the tem of the
swiap provided that there s no credit event As the seller, 3 Fund would
effectively add leverage fo it portfolio because, in addition 1o its total net
asets, the Fundwould be wbgect to imvestment exposure on the nofional
amount of the svap

It a Fund is a seller of protection and a aedt event ooours, a5 defined under
the terms of thal particular awvap agresment, 3 Fund will either (i) pay to the
buryer of protection an amount equal 1o the notional amount of the swap and
Tk deliveny of the referenced obligaton, afher deliverable obfigations o
undertyng seoanities compeising the referenced index oo (1) pay a net
sertlement amount in the forn of Cash or seowities squal to tie natons
amcunt of the svap less the recovery value of the referenced obligation o
undezlying seoanties comprising the referenced index If & Fund is 3 bayer of
protecon and 3 credit event goours, as defined under the ferms of that
partiodar swap agreement, a Fundwill either () recesve from the seller of
profecion an amount equal to the notional amount of the swap and deliver
the referenced cbligation, other dediverable cbiigagions or underlying

securi es comprising the referenced index or (i) recesve a net settlement
amount in the fom of cash o seqrities equal to the noticnal amount of she
wevap Biess thie recovery value of the referenced obligation or underdying
securilies comprising the referenced indsx. Redovery values are estimated by
markel makers considering sither industry standard recowery rates of entity
spedific faciors snd corsiderasions untl & orect evend ooours. If @ aredi event
has gooumed, the recoveny value is determined by a fadlitated auction
wihereley a ranirum number of allcrable broker bids, together with a
specified waluation rethod, ane used o caloubate the seimkement value. The
abiliey to delfiver ather obligations may result in 3 chespest-to-deliver opSon
{the baryer of profection’s right 1o dvagse the defiverable abligation with the
lwes D walise following a aedi event)

Credt default avap sgresments on aedit indioet imwolve one party making 4
stream of payments 10 another partyin exchange for the right 1o recelve a
spedified return in the event of 2 wiite-down, pincgpal shortfal, interest
shoetiall or defaultof 8 or partof the referenced entities comprising the
credit index. A creditindex 14 4 baskel of credt msmaments of axposines
diesigned o be repretentateve of some part of the aedit market & 3 whadé
These indices are made up of reference dredies that are judged by a poil of
dealers 10 be the mest oquid entities in the aedit default swap market based
oft e Sectar of e index Companents of the Indices Mgy indide, but ae
nat limated b, imeestment o bde Sedunities, high vield seourities, asset-baded
sequrilties, emerging markets, andior vanious credit ratings within each secior
Credt indices are raded using credit default swaps with standardized tems
induding a fixed spraad and standard maturity dates. An index creckt default
vevap refenences all the names in the index, and if thens is a defaule, the aedit
event s settied based on that name’s weightin the index. The compasition of
the indices changes periodically, wsualy eveny s monthe, and for mast
indices, each name has an equal weight in the index. A Fund may use gedt

default smaps on greditindices o hedge a portfolio of qedit default swaps or
bonds, whidh is less expensive than it would be o buy many cedt default
awaps o achieve a similar effect Credit default swaps on indices are
IFsEnments for pratecing imeeshans owning bonds agaanst default, and
trackers use them 1o specula%e on changes in dredit quality

Inplied credin spreads, represented in absolute terms, wtlized in determning
the rarket value of aedit dedault swap AgreSments on corporate, loan,
sovereag. LIS monidpal oe LS. Treasury swes 35 of period end, If any, e
discdorsed an the Notes to Schedde of Investments. Thisy Serve 25 an indcatod
of the asrent slatus of paymentiperfomance risk and represent the likelhood
or risk of dedault for the referenced entity, The impled gedi spread of 2
particular referenced entity refects the cost of buyingselling protection and
may indude uptront payments required 10 be made to enter into the
agreement Wider dredit spreack represent a detenicration of the referenced
entify’s oedit soundness and a greater likelihood or risk of default or other
aredit event ooouming &5 defined under the terms of the agreement. For credit
def Il S ap agreements on ese-backed Leamibe. and abdil indoes, the
quobed frarkel prioes and resid ing values sendk a5 the sdcator of the oument
status of the payrnentiperformance ndc Indeasng marketvalues, in absolste
terris when compared 1o the noBional amourt of the awvap, répresenll a
deterioration of the referenced enlings edil Soundmess and a Eealer
ielitnd or sk of defauit or other dedt event aoouring & defined under
e terre of the greement

The madmum potential amount of future payments (undiscounted) that

a Fund & a seller of protecion ould be required to mabe under a credit
delault a4 ap agreement equats the nobonal amownt of the agresment
hational amounts of each ndividual credit default swap agreement
quistanding as of period énd for which a Fund is the seller of protection are
dsdased in the Notes to Schedule of Investments. These potential amounts
wiodld e parially oiffoet by sy recovery values of the respecive neferenced
G GA DS, UpAront punyTHen s recenaed Upon entering mio the sgeement, o
rreL amounts necenved fronm thee setthement of buy pratecton aedit detault
wap agreements entered into by 3 Fund for the same referenced entity or
entities

Imerest Rate Swap Agresmane Certain Funds are srbject o interest rate
risk exposure i the nomal course of pursuing their investment dbjecives
The vakae of the fixed rate bonds that a Fund halds oy decrease il inbenes
raes rise. To help hiedge agasnst ghis ide and to maintain it abality to
generati soome at prevafing market fates, a Fund may enter inlo ntenest
rate Swap agresments. Inferest rate swap agreemen s involve the exchangs
by a Fured with another party for thelr respedtive commament bo pay o
reoen inferest on the notional amaunt of prindpal Cenain foms of interest
Fale Sl SOPEEments may indude (i) interest rate Caps, under whidh, in
retum for & premium, one party agrees 1o make payments to the ather i the
extent that interest rates exceed a specfied rate, or “cap®, (1) interest rabe
floors, under which, in retum for a premium, one party agrees to make
payments b0 thie other to the extent that interest rates fall below a spedfied
rate, of “Hooe”, (i) interest rate collars, undar which a party sells & cap and
purchases a floor of vice versa in an attempl to protect tself aganst interest
rate mreements exceading given minimum of madmom leels, (v) callable
Ieierest rate swaps, under whidh the buer pinys 0 uplront fee in
consideranon for the right 1o eady lerminate thé Swad Tansaction in whole,
Al 2ero 0ost and At 3 predetenmined date and teme pror 0 Hie matueity g,
) spreadlacks, which albow Bhe inberest rabe Swap wsen o lad in the
forwand differential (o spread) batween the intenest rate swap rate and a
spedfied benchmark, of () basis swaps, under which two pariies can
exchange variable interest rates based on different SEgmEnts af M &y
Faaels
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Totel Aeturn Swap Agreements Certain Funds may enter into ol return
Fwap agreements to gain or mitigate exposure o the underying reference
Tt PiDT Siap S eeriienas. mvvoled COMma LN s whiene single of multiple
cath Bowed are exchanged baed an the pce of an underhing referemce Jise
and on a Soed or viariable interes rate Tobal return Svap agresments may
Irvdve Commiiments 1oy nienest n exchange for @ market-linked return
e counterparty pays out the tobal retum of 5 spedfc underhying reference
asset, which may indude 3 single Security, & basket of securties, of an index,
and i retn recehves 3 faed of varishie rate. AL the ity date. 3 net Cish
flow s exchanged where the todal retum is squivalent i the retum of the
underhing rederence asset ks a finendngrate, f any. As a receiver, a

Fund would receive payments based on any positiee total retum and would
dwe paymenls in the event of a negative total retum . As the payer, a

Fund would cwe payments on any positive total retsm, and would receive
payments in the event of a net negative fotal retym

1.PRIRCIFAL AHD OTHER RISKS

{a) Principal Risks b the normal course of business, the Funds (or Acqured
Fund{s), if appdicable) rade finenda instnuments and enterinto finangal
transactions where it of potential boss edsts due to such things a8 dhanges
in the market {market risk) or Lailure or inability of the other party 1o a
trancsaction to perform {oedit and counterparty fidk). See befow for a detailed
desapton of select prindpal hisks

Fund el Funds To the extent that certain Funds imeett substantially all of thea
respective asets in Acquired FundiE), the ricks assodated with investing in
thoeses Fumits will be dosely related 1o the risks assodated with the sequrities
and ofher investments held by $he Acquired Fundis). The ability of the Funds
1o achiewe hedr respectiee imvestment objectives may depend upan the ability
of the Acguired Fund(s) to achieve their respeciive imvesment objectives
Thieré Can be no asturance S the imeesirment olpecinee of any Acqured
Fund{s) will be achieved The NAY of an Acquining Fundwill fluctuate in
fiesonrse 10 changs in the fespcie NAY of the Acquened Firdis) in whadh it

IFTVESRS.

In the nommal course of business, Aoquired Fund(s) wade Snandal insmements
and enter anto finandal ransactions where risk of potential loss exdats die to
changes in e market (market nisk), or falure or inabidity of the other party fo
a ransaction to perform (credit and counterparty risk)

Perfermance-Linked Notes Risk To the sxent each of the B 1605 (P9, B-)
1605 (USDY, B 1605 (P, B 1609 (USD), B-) 1682 OPY) and B-) 1612
(LS 0y Chasses of the PIMCO Bermiscls Income Fund E invest in Performandce-
Linksed Motes, they will forego other investment opporunities, which could
negatvidy mpact the performandce of such Class. n addition, sudh
Performance-Linked Mobes are unsecured obligations of Credit Suisse
ntemational and so the Classes are exposed bo the gedt nsk of Credt Suisse
ntemationa Furthermore, the Perfomance-Linked Motes will be adeersaly
aftected m the seent of a delaull, reduosd dedi rasng, of delerioraton m the
sobvency of Credit Suisse Infenationa

Market Risks A Fund's imeesiments in finandial derivative insroments and
ather inancial instruments expose the Fund 1o vakous Asks such a5 butnot
liemited o, inkberest rate, foreign (non-L 5 ) urvency, equity and commod by
figks

Interesl £ate itk i% the rigk that foced incoeme securities and other instruments
Field by a Furd may dedime in value because of a0 indeate in interest rates o
nicerinal inberesl rates rise, the value of certain fided mcome sedunties held by
& Fund would Rkely decrease. A nomnal interest rate Gan b2 desanbed a5 the
summ of 3 real interest rate and 3n expected inflation rate. nberect rame
changes can be sudden and unpreactable, snd a Fund may lose money il

thete dhanges are not antidpated by Fund management A Fund may not be
dole o hedge against changes in inferést rates or may chodse not to do so for
cost or other reasons. In addiSon, amy hedges may nof wirk s intended

Curatan i% & mieasise used b determine the enutily o 4 Ssuritys price 1o
changes in interest rabés that inoorpofates a sacurity™ yield, coupen, final
mnatunity and call features, mong other charactensiic Comenty & an
addbonal measure used o undersiand & seouniny™s of Fund s interest rate
sensithvaly that measires the rate of change of duration in respanse to
changes o intetesl ranes. Fined mooime Seowities wah donger durations tend
to e more sensitive to changes in interest rates, ysually making them maore
wolatile than securites with shorter durations. A wide vaniety of factoes can
cairse Inerest rates oryiebds of LS Treasury sequnities for vields of afer
types of bonds) to fse (2., cendral bank monetary polices, inflation rates,
general economic comditions, etc ) This is espedaly tnue under curment

condi Bons because inferest rates and bond yields are mear historically low
bewels Thus, the Funds cumenthy face a heightened bevel of sk assodiated
with riseng imberest ranes andfor bond yields. This couldd be diven by 3 variety
ol factons, induding but nat Bmited 1o central bank monetary polioes,
changing inflation of real growth rates, general economic condimons,
Incréasing bond istaances or reduced marcet démand Tor lew yielding
imegsiments. Funher, while U5 bond markets have steadily grown over the
past Snee decades, dealer “mark el making™ abling has remained refathely
stagnant Gheen the importance of intemmediary “market making”™ in ceating
a robyst and active market, fized income securithes are qumenty

fagng inreased volatikty and liquidity risks. Al of these factors, collecively
anior incividually, could cause 3 Fund (o fose value, | the Fund lost encugh
walue, the Fund could face inoreased Unitholder redemptions, which could
further Empair its performance, Also, the Fund may be adversely affected
when a large Unitholder purchases or redeems Barge amounts of wnits, which
can ooor at any tirme and may imipact the Fund in She same manner a5 a high
wolume of redemption requests, Large Unitholder transactions may impact
the Fund's liquedity and net ssed valie. Sudh FRAfSscions may 340 ndeade
the Fund's ransaction oosts of obherwse cause B Fund o perfoem
difterently than intended Moredver, b Fund is sbgect to the risk that

other Linithaolders may make mvestment deasions based on the chooices of 3
large Unithalder

A Fund may have significant exposure 10 issuers in the United Kingdom. The
United Kingdom's withdrawal from the Ewropean Union may impact Fund
refums This decision may cause substantial wolatility in fiareign exdhange
rraeets, lead towedmeds in the axdhange rate of the Bntish pound, mdlten
A apstaned period of market uncertanty, and destabedze some or all of the
gtiver Eurgpean Linion mémber countries andfor the Eunozone

Feeelgn (non-L0.S ) securites in this report are dassiied by the country of
incoeporation of 2 hoglichineg I EraN IMSEANCES, & SeCunty’s country of
nCcepiFation rdy be diftenent Tom s country of 0o exposure

If & Fund imvests direcily in foreign (Ron-U S ) cumendies o in seourities. that
trade bn, and receve revenwes in, foreign {non-U S ) cumendes, o in finandal
derivadee instruments tat prowide exposure to fregn (non-LU S) axrendes,
Itwaill be ssbject 10 the sk that those anrendies wall deding in value relative
to the base qwrency of the Fund, o, in the case of hedgng positions, that

the Fund's bhase currency will dedine in value refative b0 the arrency being
Fedgeed. Clmendy rates in foreagn countnes may fluchaate dgnrifcantdy g
shoer periods of time Tor 3 number of reasons, induding changes in interey
rates, mteneention (of the Raliere 10 intenvene) by LS. of fareign aovermments,
ceniral banks or supranational enties such as the Internationdl Monetany
Fund, or by the impasiton of qurrendy controls of other potifical developments
I the Lmited States or abroad. As 3 resalt, a Fund's investments in foreign
CurPenCy-Gendrminated seouiies may redace he Fund's reums
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The market values of equithes, such & common stocks and prefemed securities
or gty related investments ssch as futures and options, have historically
risen and fallen in periodic oydes and may dading due fo general market
condBons which aré nol ipeaScally related 1o a parSodar comparny, sich a5
reall or percerved adverte edonamic conditions, changes n the general

outlook for oorporate eamings, changes in nlerest of curmency rates, pubic
health emergendies, sudh & the spread of infechiows liness or dseate, o
adverse imeestor seniment generally. They may dwe dedine due to fadions
which affiect 2 pariodar inds Sy of indusiries, sich a5 [abor shof Lages of
Inedbed produchon costs and oompentve condtions vathin an indesry
Difterent types of equity secunities may react dfterenty to these
developments. Eguity secuniies and equity related Invesiments generaly have
greater marker price wokatility than fixed income securities

The Fumnds may irvest in cestain instruments Bhat rely in some Tashion upon
LIBOR: LIBOR is an average mierest rate, determined by the ICE Benchmark
Administration, that banks charge one another for the wse of short-tem
rromey’. Thee United Kingadom™ Finanaa Conduct Aushority, which reguiabes
LIEOR, has announced plans 1o Wtimatéy phate oul the use of LIBOR There
Tmding uncertainty regarding future wilization of LIBOR and the nature of
amy replacement rate (e g, e Secured Overright Finandng Rate, whidh is
intended to replace U5 dollar LIBOR and measures the cost of avemight
D{ﬂ{?-'\-'il‘-gﬁ throligh regunchase Bgpeement Tansackons ooll alerdized with
5. Tremsury senuities). Amy patential effects of Se iransition away Fom
LEBOR on @ Fund o on certan insiuments in which a fund invests can be
diffcult fo ascertain, and ey may vary depending on 2 vaniety of factors, The
tramsition may also result in areduction in the value of certain instruments
held by a Fund or 3 reccgon in the effectivensss of related Fund ransactions
such a5 hedges. Any such effects of the fransition away from LIBOR, a5 well
a5 other unforesesn affects, coubkd rewult in kosses to 3 Fund

Eagnning in lanuary 2020, global francial rvarioe s have experienced and
Py’ oonBne (0 experence dgraficant volanlity resulting fromm the spread of a
fiowel oronanirus known a5 COVID-19. The outrest of COVID- 1S has
resulted in fravel and border resiridtions, quarantines, supply chan
digruptions, lower consumer demand and general markel uncertainty. The
qlobal economy, the economees of certain nations. nd indvidual isswers have
beef BN masy continue to De achersety affected Ky COVID-T9, partoutany in
light of the interconnecivity between sconomies and fmandal markets, al of
which may negatively impact the Funds’ performance, In addiion, COVID-19
and govemnmental responses to COVID-19 may negatively impact the
capabiliges of the Funds’ service providers and dsrupt e Funds” operagons

Credit and Counterparty Risks A Fundwill be exposed 1o gedt sk 1o
parties with whom if trades andwill dko bear fe risk of serdement default

A Fund menimi2es concentrasons of ared 1 sk By undensking 0ansamoe
with alarge number of cus tomers and counterparties on recognized and
reputable exchanges, where applicable OTC desivalive ramsactions e
subgect to the risk that a counterparty to the transacion wall not fulfill its
contractual obligations (o the ofher party, as many of the protectices afforded
1o centrally deared demvative transactions mightnat be mvalable fior OTC
dentvative Bransactions. For derivatives iraded on an exchange or through a
central counterparty, aredit nsk resides with the cedityorthiness of

the Fund's desring broker, o the desninghouse i, rather than wath 4
COUMETRArTY i an OTC gerivate randacton. Changes in requlation relaing
10 & Fuend's it of dherivaivies and redaned instrumenes could patendaly limt
of impact the Fund's abdity W investin defrealives, lbmil the Fund's abelity to
empEoy Cerfain strategies that use derivatives andior acversely affect the value
of periemance of derivatives and the Fund A Fund could lose money IF e
isaer or guaranior of 3 Rxed income security, of the CoUNTETRIrTy I a
fimasnckad dherivative inSInAmEn s CoNAcL. repurchase agresment of 3 logn of
porifollo sequrities, is unable or unwilling to make timely principal andéor

imterest payments, of bo othenwise honor its obligations, Sequrities and
finandial derivative instnuments. are subject 1o varying degrees of aedit isk,
wiech may be reflected in gedi ratings

Sirnilae 1o @edit risk, a Fund may be epated o coumnberpaty risk, of the nidk
that an instiution of oler enSitywith which 4 Fund has unsettied or open
ransactons will defaudt PIVCO, &5 the Manager, mininezes counterpanmy
Fisks 1o e Funds firough 3 number of ways, Prior i ENIETNG M0
ransacBons with & new counterparty, the PIMCO Counterpanty RSk
COmmaies Conducts an extente redt review of Siedh cosntepanty and must
approve the use of such counterparty. Furthermore, purssant o the terms of
the underying confract, to the exient that unpaid amounts owed 1o 3 Fund
enceed 3 predatemined threshold, such countespany shall advance collatersl
to 3 Fured in the form of cash of seaxities equal in value 1o e urpaid
anoant owed o 3 Fund. A Fund may invest sich coflateral in securities of
ather instruments and will typically paryinterest to the countérparky on the
collatera received If the unpaid amount owed 10 a Fund subsequently
decriasiet, & Fundwiould be reguanred bo relum B0 e counterparty all of 3
porton of the collateral previcusly adwanced  FIMCO attempls 1o minimepe
counterparty fisk may, howeser, be usucoesshul

Contingent conmvertible secusigies " CoCos™) are & fom of nbid debt security
Izt primarily by non-U S Issuers, whidh have loss absoption medhangsms
Euilt inbo their terms. Colos have no stated matunty, have fully dsoetonary
coupoers and are bypically iswed in the form of subcrdinated debt
Irstrments CoCos generally sither convert info equity of the isser o have
tedr principal waithen dosm upon the ooouerence of cestain Triggening sents
(" trigpgers ™) inked 1o requlatory capnal thresholds or requlatony actions
relating to the issuer's conBnued viakility. As arewlt aninvestment by a
Fund in Colod is subject to the risk that cougon (e, nterest) payments may
be cancesled by the issuer or a regulabony authority in crder to help the issuer
ansorh losses. An irvesiment by & Fund in CoCos is also subject ta the dak
that, n the évent of the liquedabion, d@Soluion of windng-up of an 15
Erbor 104 frgoer event, 4 Funds nghts and daims will generatly rank: junsor
to the daims of holders of e issuer's other delot obligations. In addtion, if
Cotos Meld by 3 Fund are comvented inta the isswers underying equity
securives following 2 migger event, the Fund's hobding may be further
wbordnated due 1o the conversion from a debit 1o equity instnument, in
certain scenanios. investors in Colos may suffer a loss of capital shead of
equity holders or when equity holders donot. There is no quarantee that a
Fund will recerve 3 retum of prindpa on CoCos. Anyindcation that an
SUBOmAtC write-Gown OF COmesTon event may oo Cin be opedted b hane
an adverse efecton the maket price of CoCos. CoCos ane often rated below
imestment grade and are subject to the risks of high yaeld securiies. Because
Collog are issued primarily by finanda instilutions, Colos may present
Subsianially inmeased nsks at imes of fnandal turmed, which could affed
fnandal nsnations moee thisn companies in ofher Secion and industne
FRurther, the value of an insesment in CoCed & unprediciatie snd will be
influenced by many factors and risks, including interest rate fisk, credit risk,
market risk and ligaidity risk An investment by a Fund in CoCos may resulf in
losses b the Fund

All trancsactions in listed seqmiies are setfledipaid for upon delvery uting
pproved counieparties. The nisk of default is considered mirimal, a5 defavery
of seamities sold is only made once 3 Fund has received payment Payment &
rridcd on A punchade onoe the seaunties have béen ddiversd by the
counterparty. The trade wall tad if either party bl to meet its obingaton

b Onteer Fieslis In general, each Fund may be subject to addiiona risks,
imcledng, Dot not limited to, risks related bo govemment regdaton and
imtervenBon in fnandal markets, operational risks, meks assodated with
fnandial, economic and global market disruptions, and ojbersecanty s
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Fease refer toeach Fund's offering doaurnents for a more detailed
desaription of the risks of investing in the Fund

Market Disruptions Fisk The Funds are subject 10 mvestment and
operasonal risks ssodated with finand s, economic and cther global market
developments and disrupticns, induding those arising fromwar, emorism,
arket manipuanon, govemment intenenticons, defaults and shutdowns,
political changes of dplomaic developments, public beslth emergendes
{such as the spread of infectios diseases, pandemics and epademics) and
niaturalienwironmental disasters, which can all negatively impact the sequriies
markets, imterest rates, auctions, secondary trading, ratings, oedt risk,
inflation, deflation and ather factocs refating to the Fend's investments o the
Managers operations and cause & Fund Bo lase wvalue. Thess events may have
adverse |ong-term eflects on the U5 and world economees. and markets
generally. These events can akso impair the technology and other operational
Systemns upon which 3 Funds senace providers, incisding FIMCO a5 the
Funds imvestment adviter, rely, and could offenerse dsnupt 3 Fund's sensoe
prrembders” abaliny 10 Tul il theer cbliganons to the redevant Fund. For example,
the spread of an indections resparatony illness caused by a novel siran of
coronavings (known a5 COVID-19) has caused volatlity, severe markel
dislocadons and liquidity constraints in many markets and may adversely
affect @ Fand's investments and operations

Government Intervention in Finarcial Markets Fedensl, s1ate, sd omer
gewernmients, their requiatony sgencees, of self-regulatcrny crganizations meny
take actions that sffect the requlation of the irusmen s in which & Fund
IFnvts, of the isuers of sudh insmuments, in ways that ane unforeseesbie
Legrslation of requlation may ko change the way in which a Fund itself is
regulated Such legslaton of reguiation oould et of predude a Fund s
abiliny 1o achiewe i1s Investment objective. Furthermore, volatle finencal
markets can expose 3 Fund 8o greater market and Bauidity sk and potengial
difficuity in vauing portfiolio ns uments held by e Fend. The vaue of 3
Fund’s holdings & dso generaly subject fo the risk of fulure local, national, or
global econcemic disturbances based on unknown weaknesses in the markets
inwhich a Fund irvests, In addition, it is nod certamn that the 15 Governmient
wall ifi bervenie in responde b A fulure market distwrbance and the effect of any
such Ruture inderven ion cannot be predicted. 1 is difiodt for issens to
prepare for the impact of future finanaal downitumes, although companees. can
ek 10 dentify and mamnage fubse uncertantoes trough sk management
oG anTs

Regulatory Aisk Finandal entiies, such as investment companies and
irvestment avisers, e generally subject to extensive government regulation
andintervention. Govemment requlation andfor inbereention may change the
way 3 Fund is requlated, affect the expentes inourred directly by a Fund and
the vaiue of its investiments, and Bmit andior predude a Fund's shility 1o
Aceede I imEsment ofyective. GoOVvernimen it requlason may dhangs
frequeenthy and rmay have Sonifcant advire CONSequences. Moreower,
govemmimient negulation may hinve unpredictable and unsntended efects

Opsrational Risk An investment in 2 Fund, like gy fund, can invobee
operagonal risks arising fom factars such as prodessing ermo, human emons,
inadequate or failed intemal or extemal procestes, falures in systems and
technalogy, changes in personnel and errors caused by thirdparty service
prosidiers. The acourende of a0 thiese Tmlures, arors of breaches coutd
fieailt i & Bods ol antormaton, requiatady scrumiy, reputationl dimage o
afer ewnts, amy of which could hiee 3 rraterisl adverse efect on 3 Fund
while a Fund seeks to minimize such events through controks and oversight,
there may 5tll be fallures that oould cause kosses to the Fund

Cyber Securiey Rigk A the wse of lechnology has become more prevalent in
the course of business, the Funds have become posentially more suscepsible
10 cperational andinformanon seasity fsks resuling from bregches in oyber

security. A breach in gyber seqanity refers to both intentional and
uninfentional cyber events that may, among other things, cause a lond o
hose proprietary infomation, suffer data comupon andior desiruction or lose
operatonal capadty, result in the unauthorized releade of other risuoe of
conhidential information, of athenwze daupl nofmal busines operalions
Cyber sequrity failures o breaches may result in finandal kasees to 3 Fund and
its Unithodders. These failures o breaches may also résultin disruptions to
Eusinss operatons, potentally reaslong in finanoal osses, interlenence with
& Funed's ability 10 Cakoul 308 185 mel Fset value, process Unithalder
ransacBond of othenwite Banact business witlh Linisholders, impedments o
rading violations of appicable privacy and other |, regulatory fines;
penales; reputational damage; reimbursement or obher compensation costs;
addbonal compdance and ober seurity risk management costs and omer
aiverse conseaquences. In addition, substantial costs may be inouered in order
to prevent any cyber incidents in the future

B. MASTER NETTIHG ARRANGEMERTS

The Furd. iy be Sulpsct i vanous neltng amandgements {"Masher
Agreements”) with select counterpartieds. Master Agréements goverm the
terms of certain transacions, and are intended 10 reduce the couniemparty risk
arsenec] aved with relevant Tansactions by spedfying ared i profection
Fechanums and [l'l'.'-'llfll'lg- snandardzanon that i intended 1 improve legal
certsnty. Exch oyt of Master Agreenent govemns Certan types of
trancacons. [ifferent types of ransactions may be traded out of different
legal entities or affiliates of a particular orgarization, resdting in the need for
midiple agreements with  sengle counterparty. As the Master Agreements
are ipedific o unique operaions of diferent asset types, they dlow a Fund
clcee out and net its total exposure to 3 counterparty in the event of a default
with respact 1o all the transacBons governad under 3 Gngle Master
Agreement with a counterpaety. For finanaal repoeting purposes the
Staterments of Asers and ListeiSes generally present defivative assets and
fiatafties on & gross base, which neflects the Tull rides and eqpasures prior 1o
nELling

Matber Agreements Can also help hmil counterperty nsk by s:-s-:if'.-'mg
collateral posting arangements &1 pre-arrenged eposure levels, Under most
Master Agreements, collateral is routinely transferred if the tolal net epoure
to certain ransactions (net of existing codlatera already in place) governed
unier the relevant Master Agreement with a counterparty in a given account
expeeds 3 spedied threshold, which typically ranges from zeno to $2 50,000
dependng on the courterpany and te fype of Master Agreement. Uniled
States Treatury Bills and LS. dollsr cath are generally the preferned boms of
ctllaterd, dthough other setirnifies may be used depending on the temms
autfmed in the applicabie Master Agreement Secunities and cash pledged as
collateral are reflected 35 atsets on the Statemnents of Asgets and Liabilites a5
ether & component of Frvestments at valie Seauribed or Depodits with
counterpany. Cath collateral recaved iS not typically beldin 4 segreganed
acoount and as such is reflected as a liability on the $tatements of Assets and
Liabilties a5 Deposi ts from countenparty. Thie market value of any sequrites
recetend 35 collateral is not reflected a5 a component of Nay. The Fund’s
overall exposire 1o counterparty ik can change substan tally witken 3 shom
periced, s it is affected by each ransacion subject o the relevant Master
Agresment

Matter Repunchake Agresnents snd Global Masler Repundhase Agriemints
(mdeidually and collectvely = Master Répo Agreerments™) given repundhase,
rineirde repunchace, and saetrvback ransactions bedwesn the Funds and
sefect counterparties. Master Repo Agresments maintan provisions for,
among otter tings, initiasion, income payments, events of default, and
rnaingenance of coll steral The market value of mamactions under the Master
Repo Agreemenl, collateral pledged of receved, and e nel expasure by
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9. FEES AMD EXPENSES

wwang fees payable at the foflowing armua rates (stated a5 a percentage of the aerage da y niet assets of each bund, or Class it

Fees

Fund Managemant Adisory Adminisirative Agency Dizributian
PIMCO Bermisda Emerging Marke Band Fund I

F T ] 035

o |t P Hadged 3
PIMCD Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond Fund &8 0 3E%
PIMCD Bermusda Income Fund A

«  FLPY)
+ QSO - - - -
b I - - . =

- LIS - - -

a - = = %

B I 7E% - - 0 6% DE%
L] 1 16% - 5% 0B
L]

.

.

. 1 65 % LB

" 1 70 = = p s

. 0™ - = =

* i (1 BE% 1ilg - -

® PY) ] EL0%

NS

. =

e I

n4E%™ = = = =

. IFY = = -

r LS = = = - =

= LED = = = = =
PIMCD Bermuwda U.S. High Yield Fund B (M - 136 % ik
PIMECD Care Income Corparate Band Fund 2020-10

= LUsh 1 40% [} 5% NES
PIMCD Short-Term Martqage Income

+ ER | 6% 0% T

. LIPY, Hadged)

. JP 5% 6% :

« USD ] 4E% Y 6%
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Fees
Fund Management Acdvisory Administrative Agency Destribution
PIMCO Warld High Income 0in% - - 0t DEE%™

® e (o7 o 8 AT A S Y el 50 T B Y18 ) (T iyt o & o e A 8.0 o ammam e s ey S i i de Pl i e, £ B g e g s S millom o vty
T A Y 5 e g 0 0 T T SR 8 P S0 ollm AN OF S T 10 S Y g S et o B 0 1 2 ot (e

# ARE ¥ Sk ST A S For- g SN Fod (A 8 Al AT 5 8 ARt P T Y P B 0 8 I ) TR i el T S 0 S i R 100 N B0 e 0 ol I e 1 e Rt S
gl 257 ey g Fon T o SRy g F P ey e o Pl el v e o e T il

B 0 i 17 g O N T RN A e (N, R T PG 8 1 AT [ T TR T B B St I A I i 5 ST PR T O PO o G T O I RO T T e T
S

® i o7 AT F SR A I i AT 1R R e 9 I . 3 e 0 £ 50 e Uy 0 A R i GOCPR RS0 I o (B e, B P e e W LT
i e e ) 5 O e i W ST R T O I 5 R e 0 R T 8 ) 5T M P o | 0IF,  (00T well AT CE 5  RIGERE

e T T T B R S G S (TR 8 8 TR Y TR T S o TV O B SR 8 R 7 B O R B S 8 (VT ST T o Pt (U 4 S ek AT I
B AT by PR L o A T R M A N B 1 L R 1 R TR

® AR Sl & 5 F ot ol M 11 Gl 0 I 5 e 0 O S AT B 1 el 1 el 0 a1 Y R T 14 I S R N TR T AT 5 R A 8 O SRS 0
B e o N O i 0 0 o B BT B et 1 10 il

. e iy o e O o i e T T R G e S b ey S e By 1 g (i il R i g (ivin iy s yeer S i i T o7 e Berkiv | By £ ok it ar el FoRe miewd ik
g i Ao 5% rioi i i el b % Y i i i i ok i e O S 1 P e o il sl e O LR e T o 0 amead iy rie o deras | 0 80P rige pi ihd el B 0 00 S i iy o
#rier v gy g 8 383 Ry i s i e A e e s v o e i g e i M e i 7 ol i s iy vt e i S o B vt T i el T i
e T ATy

* T 8 AT 7 S ST e O Y I 3 P ST S s T 6 20 0 [ i WA (ke g (Y Ay e F I (N Pl O ST R Bl (VX0 Pt S (11 6 iy
¥ Foiba 1 7%, phem ri e ol e O 0 e e ey i il ey v o B eem S S, riem vl i i B 8T o e o o Sl Ry v o B | e T TR 2w i Gyl e 3 X% S Dl e F
b s I S F 3 T riem i e B S 3F% 00N S AR 0 e na AR RV 8 PR paere rige i by adl 0 0% B Sl agr e F e el e el Ol o st et ot Ky vl ool R by
S RO SR

™ P il o i o g et el v DA B O R G A R B i By i e i i e’ Ceiringdy ol i g i i rig el o e i iy 100G pverar it Y ol i iy G o a9
i shy b el B (1 PR o oy v ot o e i i e e T e e e e 5 5 0l i st - i el S B | R e i i el e T i iy o st i iy
OF N b (e N i ot i sl B o 0 i e o P R 3 T e, o b e Yy G T e ey e iy o e 8 (Nt i ity i i ol 1T 0 i) ey oy
e R

o (R T o ar 0 Vo e i B 8 iy e (e 00 e S ) e B P el 9 A [t ety il Far e o 0 50 e s o e B e i Y £ e W e o by i) el
s shp Bl B (1 S50 o iy o ) 0 e e o D S T G v g e e T R e e - e e iy S0 e [ ] S o o e af e T R o (e Mo i of s e ey
B R [ e A riew i il B 0 6 ey o B T R P 8 T e, e g e B N T T ST R iy e B 1R T W el v L il FRT 0 g Y O
R A

g (U T O Y 0 B v B I P O (R P ey ) it B 1 RO R T S B 3V 0 5 N DT e B A BN SRR A iy P Dol [ 5 i ) B B D %
i ] i e o ol ixtondd ey i o et O SO 1 R i o P el B 0 S F i i e o e e R st ) S0 PR shin she e et 50 N LT W i o et Bl i & e 5%
28R S vk b vl By 8 80 i Dt e ey o 2ok il i a8 3 B ptinine i o el 6 I i e e B i B b (e o iy ety o i ¢ waell s i sty s i e e ey

PO B i T A eSS R G B P [ By v R PRl T g I B 00 AT 8 P T e 0 58 ) e WD 500 el Y P of B [ P, 5 B el 1R P
R Wt A 0 e e 0 0 5 e O 0 I a1 T ST N T TP el ey R i i [ R P, R e ol B 0% T e T 0 dal p R o I P R, A i
ol b 1 2 i e ey gney o i avend poliy rae w J5% o g viym ol b ol e R o0l ey o SR il v i Ll @ ey valade rie Blanager wil? el B9 S vl Y TOSE I FR0TE AP ST SOBT

AL I gt B e S 8 Sy P A v M 0 e e 20 (o B ) 1 ¢ R i RO Wi 00 el 1 2 ok e i il PR B B 9l el e e B B B
FLLES E

B W et B BT 19 00 W LA P BN B 5 R B 00 Fan 0 Bl 0 st el e e 06 e i e T e e o 1 A A R el Y 0 i EaT I T B
FYECEY

The management, advisory and sdminkirative fees, if applicable, are paid monthly in ameas 1o PIMCO dor providing of amangng for the provision of sdvisony,
administrative and third-party senvices indudng audit, qetoda, rustes, postholio accounting, roitine lega, ramsfer 2gent and printing sendces, The agency and
distribuBon fees, if applicable, are paid monthly in amears to reimburse finandal intemediaies that provide services and dstibation relaling to the units of e
applicabde Fund {or Clase thereof, as applicable). In exchange for this fee, PMCO will bear the costs of certain third-pasty services required by the Funde, induding
Audil, Oestodal, trustes, poctfolio accounting, lega, ansder agent and prnting serdces. PIMCO, and not Unitholders, would benefit Fom aty price dedease in the
o o such third-party senvices, induding decreases resulting from an indeae in fet a28et . In addition, with regpedt to Funds that e subjed 1o an adminisiratee
tee, PRACO generdly makes a profit an such 2 fes

As mofed in the table above, certan Fundk and Classes of Funds are ot sulpec 10 management, JMsory, admmnisirative, agency of dembision kes. PINCO Japan
Led, PIVGCO's affiliate in Japan, 55 paid & fee from the lapanese rvestoment Tsts or ofer imvestment vehides that invest in such Funds of Classes and & portion of
sudh fee is then dlocated bo FRMCO 1o compensase i1 for its serdees

Faor the first five years following the launch of each of the B-J 1605 (IFY), B-J 1605 (LEDY, B-1 1609 (IFY), B-1 1609 (UL, B-0 1612 (JFY), and B-J 1612 {USDE) Chasses
of the PICO Bermuda inocene Fund E. an Asset Based Sales Charge (TABSCT) of 0 76% will be Emposed on the aerage daily net asset valpe of each Class and
payable monthly 1o the Fee Agent. Additonally, i any wmts of the B 1605 (PY), B-) 1605 (USDH, B=1 1605 (IFT), B-) 1609 (USDY, B-) 1612 (FY), and B 1612 (LGD)
(lasses of the PIMCO Bermuda income Fund E e redeemed or exchanged for one o maone unats i another fund within the time periods spedfied below, 2 COSC wall
b imposed dn the amaunt of sudch redernption af the applicabde Percentage CDSC

B Page | Dowber 0, 2021 m
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Notes to Financial Statements

Years Since lncegSen of Exch Cass Pereantage COSC
1 [anciuding drslyel sonmasand 3 0%
2 [inchydin) dscond v snwes iy 240r%
3 [enciyding vherd v o mary] 1 B
4 [enchygarg lputth year eerseissny] 1.0
i [enciuding Hilih yeir aeniversang] 0 B
Tharaatter 0 0%

With resped (o the caloulaBon of the COAC the valpe of the redempion amount will be the Sen-oument MAY of the units being repurchased. Furthermiore, any
Appletable COMCS wil b deducied from e repunchade prooseds and will be payable 16 the Fee Agent. For the year ended Octcber 31, 2021, the B-) 1605 (IFY), B-)
1605 (USEY, B=) 16059 (9, B 16049 (LSEY, B-J 1602 (PYY and B-J 1612 (LSO Classes of the PIMCO Berrruda income Furd E paid ¥117,397 218 in ABSC and
V14,519 804 i COAC 1o the Fee Agent

The Funds (of Classes hereod, 36 apphoable) many bear other epenses reated to their operabon Sia are nol oovered Dy thie management, adwsony, sdmirisrative,
Agency o dsmbution Pk, indud ng bt ok lireted b () taxes dnd govemmientsl fees, i) b Lol 0t feers and commissons and other portiolio ransaction spenses;
(i) consts of bomowing money, induding interest expense; (W) extracednany expenses, induding costs of liigation and indemnification expenses; and (v) any expeenses
alocated or allocabie b 2 spedfic Class of units, PIMCO has paid the crganizational expenses assodiated with the qeation of the Tnuse, except for PIMCC Sho-Term
Mortgage Income. FIMCD has paid the orgardzational expenses sssodatedwith the geation of the Trust FIMCO has paid the organizational expenses assodatedwith
PIMICO Core Income Comporate Bond Fund 2020-107% initial satup, extepl for the formation expentes assodated with PIMCO Core Income Corparate Bond Fund
2020-10" initid public offesing of Units and related Secunities Registration Statement filings, which indude costs of printing the prospectus and the sales materials
that are related to the PIMCO Core income Corporate Bond Fund 2030- 107 sale of Units in Japan. Sudch fomation expenses are reflecled a5 Organization Costs in the
Statement of Operations

The Trustes and thie Manager hive appointed Credil Swisse ntemational a5 the agent for the PIMCO Bermuda income Fund E for purpodes of Snandng placement e
1o b i b certiin ciamributors. Under & fee agent appoentment agreement entered nto amondg te Tses, the Manager, and Cradit Suivse tematonal (e "Fee
Agent Appointment Agresment ), Credit Suisse internafional has been appointed bo: () effect payment of certan distribution fees to the lapanese distributors in
aoaordance wath the Fee Agent Appointment Agreement and the terms of vanious upfront fee letters, and () mace all calosdations and detemenations required Lo be
made pder the Fee Agent Appoiniment Agresment

PIMICC) andior its affifanes will initially advance 10 the PFIMIO Bamuda income Fund £ legal expenses incurmed in connection with executing the Fee Agent
Appointment Agreement and associated legal agreements fior the B0 1605 (IFY) and B-] 1605 (LUS0) Classes of units of the FIMCO Bermisda income Fund E (the "Fee
Aenl Legal Experdes™) Atthe end of these Classes” st dl offening perods, the Fund will be requsned ta: () rembur s 10 FINCO andior its sffikates the greater of: (4)
VI mdlon o () 0. 20% of the aggregate amounts smvestid in Sich Classes dunndg their inital offening pericds (upch amount rot to exceed the Fee Agenl Legal

i bt dcvanced), and () amortize sixch Fee Agent Legal Bxpenses 1o the relevant Class over the first Gecal year of ity operations All of a pordion of he remainng
Fee Acpenit Legal Experes advanced may be expensed 5o future B share dauses added 1o and offered by amy seres of the Tnist, PFIMCO Bermida Trust, FIMCO
Besmuda Trust M, PIMCC Caymean Trast andfor PRACO Cayman SPC Limised within one year fiom the end of the initidl offering periods of the 81 1605 (IFY) and 81
1605 (LED) Classes of units of the FIMCO Berrmuda income Fund E of sech other period of dee that the nvestment Adviser determines in bis dsoretion

In addigon, PIMCO andior its affiliates will inifially advance to the MMCO Bermuda income Fund E legal expenses inaemed in connection with executing the Fee Agent
Apporntrent Agresment and Jsociied legdl ageements for the B-J 1609 {JFY) and B-) 1609 (USD) Classes of units of the PIMCO Beernoda noome fund E (il a
part of the Fee Agent Legal Expented). AR the end of the Bd 1609 (P and B-J 1609 (S0 Classes’ initial aMering periods, the FIMCO Bemueds Income Fund Ewall
Bve riqured bo: (1) reimibur e 1o PIMICO andfor its affilsates the greater of: {a) V10 million of (0) 0 20% of the aggregate amouns invested in such Clastes duning thesr
linithat offering periods (wich amaoEnt not to exceed the tatzl of the Fee Agent Legal Expenses pdvanced and the unreimbursed portion of amy Fee Agent Legal Expenses
previously sdvenced in connection with the areation of any B share dass of any series of the Trust, PIMICO Bermuda Trust, PIMICO Berouda Trust I, FIMCO Cayman
Trwst andion PIMCO Cayrnan SPC Limited wathin ong year from the respecivie ends of the inial MEI'-I'H;-'.H such offer peniod of ome thial the nesiment Adviser
dhenermines in 18 disretion), 3nd §i) amortize sich Fee Agent Legal Expencies 10 the relevant Class ower the first fiscal wear of lis operations. Al or 3 portion of the
remaining Fee Agent Legal Expenses advanced may be expensed to future B share dasses added to and offered by any series of the Trust, PRACO Bermisda Trusk,
PIMCO Barmmuda Trast IV, PIRACO Cayman Trust andior FIMCO Cayman $PC Limited within one year from the respective ends of the initial ofiering periods or ch
ather penpd of ime that the Imvestment Adviser determines in its disoretion

PINICO) anvdfor its affilanes will also intially advance 10 the PIMICO Bermuds income Fund E legdl expenses incurmed in connsction with execiting the Fee Agent
Appointment Agreement and assodated legal agreements fior the B-0 1612 (IFY) and B-J 1612 (LED) Clastes of units of the PIMCO Bemusda income Furd E{alo 2
part of the Fee Agent Legal Bxpenses). AL the end of the B-J 1612 (v} and B-) 1612 (USD) Olasses’ iniial offering periods, the PIMCO Bermisda Income Fund Ewill
b pecumered b0 (1) pedmiur e 10 PIMICO andfor k05 affilianes the greater of: (3) V10 mallion of (0) 0 20% of the Sregate amounts invested n such Classes dunng thest
it offerang pefod (oudh Smoent nol 1o edeed the sl of the Fee Agent Ligal Expentes bdian ded and the undemburoed poction of amy Fee Agent Legal Expensit
presicusly advanced in comnection with the areation of any B share dass of amy series of the Trust, PIMCO Bermuda Trest, PIMCO Bernuda Trust IV, FIMCO Cayman
Trust ancdior PIMCO Caymian SPC Uimited waithin one year Fom the respective ends of the initial offering or such other period of Gme that te imestment Adviser
determmines in its deaeton), and (i) amartize such Fee Agent Legal Expences 10 the relevant (lass over the first fiscal year of |t operations. A or 3 portion of the
I'I?I'ﬂﬂiﬁf'{! Fee Agent Legal Expenses sivanoed may be experced o future B share dasses gdded to and U*-f'éﬂ?'ﬂtr:.' avy sedies of the Trust, PIMCO Bermmuda Truse,
PIRACO Bearuds Trust IV, PIMCO Cayman Trust andfor PIMCO Cayman SPC Limiiedwithin coe year from the respecive ends of the inktial offering periods or such
afher perod of ime that the investment Adwser determines in its disgretion. For the year ended October 31, 2021 there were no more Fee Agent Legal Expenses
remaining

B P, | Dowibar 1, 021 o
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PIMCE o F
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h Income: pay on-g

IFY Aabisory) ane

expenses refated bo the public ofening of

10. RELATED PARTY TRAHSACTIORS

Cwmeed sybsidary

& dscosed of

if amy, are

t Management A, a related party of the Trust 6%

net assets of PIMCO Bernuda Mortgage Opporturites Fund ar

ti-Assel Srategy Fund, O 009% of the
me a3 of Ociober 31, 2021

ried have bedn

aif I'_|.:r.;:'. & OO0 3
below engaged in purchates and sales of st : T W)

Sales:

FRACD Bentemaita Bk L s Fussed 680 ] 1630
3 Emsstgarg Markers Bond Fursd (W0 9.8
i ats: Bord Furd 1l Han

at® Ex+J apan Bond Fund (6
oma Fund i)

3 Loaw Durasen Irpome Fund

FIMOD Breemmascts Mormgags: Oppovmusisss Fund
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v il ]'-_-I

Tiie Fumdt

GOCUETeE His

T
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| L) [T 1e 115 m M NE N
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Yoo Encled Yinar Ended Yow Ended Yoar Enched
Denoker 31, M1 oioker 11, 2071 Desckar 31, 211 Detobar 1, 2021

Ve Ampant Wi Az Uniw Aot L] Azt
[ i [ Ha Hin W NA N
Wil [T [ Ha ¥ & 1A NA [}
1kE W [ sl L 555 Nk L1 N A
Hih A ME 3 H& k] 1138 NE RS
[ [T 5 HE m 150 NE [
Wi Wi [ m Wik [ oot 1
il Wik [T 51 AR Mik [T} N [
f LN Wik [T N H i 1.0 Na [
YRR Wi [ 11 .'.e-'A. & {F -1 405 N R
Y (TR Wik (T M Hit A T Na N
f U5 m s ni AN Hik [ N [
[(FE] [1E1.268 N 7 Kit N NA N
WA W N W 101 [543 NA /4
Hik [T (253 [18441) Wik [ NA M
Wik NIk [77] {1.547) Mit [ NA [}
Wik [T (] 548} Wik [T} [T K
Wik [T [T A [iT] (4.1 N [
Wig (i1 NA L) ] (8.855 AR WA
Wi 1) N Wi WM N 550 ikl Th)
Wik Wk i {14 677} Nk M NA. Nk
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Wk [T} Na hi {538 [i[FE) NR [
A 1 [T Hik Wi B8 NA etk
Wik R ] 2510 W s N, R

O1Ee & (4250

AN &
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g & (e

Vow [Encled Porioed Eried Your Ended four Ered
Oeacter 31, 2007 Detober 31, 021 Detcber 31, 00 Dtober 31, 2001
lsin Azt Uiz Az Unit: Amoumt dnm Rt
Fecmipy for unit i Wi W L3 L] L) ] 1543 N W
i [FFY Wik ALY MR Ha HiA N 183 H b
[ APV, Hadged ] [ H-'J-. s ik N8 5 ]
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1 LB Wi L& Na Wi Nk e II!IGI_ (E L]
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Yoo Ercd Yaur Enced Yow Ereled Yowr Erchd
Cesober 71, HE leiber 71, 2071 Deocber 31, 37 Dtober 31, 21
Unis Ampant Uni Azoum Uni Aot Wnh ot
Fecmics fer unds s 30 & AWM T I 1 | M e BENS (- R A |
eumd ne roirves et of
dmittors 0 [ ] 0 0 ] ] 0
Lot of unie reeasad 1.0 181,080 [ oA (2028 1.4 A, (238074
Nt irereasa [decremad
mmuting from Fend usit
st M ¢ anad n & M 1288 & WaBS @151 ¢ HERITn
Y Ended Yaur Ended Your Ended Year Erclad
Ocanber 31, HI1 (lemder 11, 2001 cnsber 31, 1 Oethaer 31, M
Usin Ampunt Units Aaaum Unim Ampant dnm Bmaunt
Famsips Fer unis ooid
B IS0 Wik (1} N 1 NiL N 13 8 L
F UPY 1814 & 15308 [ m m m NA H
¢ D ¥ 3B ™8 HA m [ NR K
# 15 1.0 [ Ha Hin, [ N n,
| i MR W& HiA R Na [
il 76,9572 N m M [ [T '
- 3 A 30 B [m M Hit ™ N H
N LTI 1247 1,000 083 [T KA Kid [T [T [
1568 L8, B [ Ha Wi ™ NA i
) [T 1T r 9m i [ NA [
1508 405 L) & ik e NR [
&5 475 [ M Hit [T N [T}
13 525 [T M M [ NA M
Hl XN NE H& Ny NE N& [
¥ 148 146088 ua H Wik M NA N
WD 1,140 130 T m Nid T N [
K LIFY) i G4 ‘2 (17 HiA ' N [
{ UFY ] 1i8 M M Hit [m [T R
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¥ izt Wil [T 12 ] Hih [ [T [T
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008 0N [T m m [T [TH [
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17 T [ Wi it [ NA [
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Viowr Enaled Ynar Ended Yow Ended Yoar Erchd
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s Ampant i A Unis Amount =] Amaun
K (1] [} H& (121 MA15n NA [
M [T [T Hik @ % [ A [
m KA ™ ik T {350 NA Rk
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Yot Encded
Oenober 1, HE
Unil Amount

Facaigre for urits el (11 510
Iand = v man of
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Lomt ol uni ndwemad 1518} m.36
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P b Cronder B
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" W (nceeoee oo @ drander 3, 0.

13, REGULATORY AHD LITIGATION MATTERS

in g maten livganon of arbitration procesdngs amd are mor awace of any matens Higaton o |3 perck g o

The foregoing speaks only as of the date of this report

14, IHCOME TAX

d and dsdosed in e fir
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Short-Term Mortgage Income

R
BMOUNT VARE

IVESTMENTS M SECURITIES 11305

TOAGER SCHED BECURITIES 6.1%
Citlgroap Marigage Laas Trest

2 500% dee D505 H 9% 3 ]
IG5 Wartgage 8 acked Eecurities Trast

2500% the (225052 o B0
JPMurgas Martgage Trmt

TS0 den 11757051 &0 L]
1000% doe 012572057 852 6iii}
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1500% den 1001/2043 1135 1.0
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A BO0% e DAZSN4T B an |
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A 0% dee 00172042 ] 11
A B00% s DA0T72043 10 i
4 DO doe 120172047 1 i
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A GO0 e DP0172049 -] i
A500% dee ET017039 ] E
A 500% cen 110103 [ k]
4 500% due 2012044 () ]
A 5010% chee DRO12044 n ||
A 500 chs 1201720044 1 |
A 500 due B1O1204S 1nr (51}
A 500% den 20172045 125 o
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B 361% dex ATY4D b 148 i
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BEET% dee 05255 B i3] =i}
Famnie War, TRA K]

1500% doe 110172035 75 =6
A B00% dee 12017203 5 Bt
Freddie M=

050 den (ANSM42 it} Eh
0 700% dee 11052037 2.5 L
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2500% cee 120170050 5 54
2500% dee (017051 e 18N
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1.ORGAHZATION

Each Fund distussed in this report (=ach & "Fund” and collectively, the "FRunds ™). which dso indisdes each dass of units of that Fund {each a "Class™ and collectivedy,

the "Classes™), is a series tust of AMCOD Bermuda Trust 0 {the “Trust™), an open-ended unit bus
0 & rust desd ecosouted by Winchester Globad Trust Company Limited on Decernber 1, 2003 (38 amended fnom Gme (o teme, te "Trust Desd™). Efective a5
i Gimwe) on Septernber 29, 2017, Maples Trustee Serces (Bermuda) Umited (the "Trusee™) wat appointed a3 trustes of the Trus

[LTATE
of the dose of butiness (Easy

stablished under the laws of Bermuda as .2 multi senes tust

Padfic meestment Management Company LLC (TPIRCOT, the "Manager™ of the "imvestment Adviser™) is the spomsor of and was reqpomsible fior struchuring the Tnsst

Thvie TrUsE 5 Subedct o regulason and supenashon a5 pros ded Tor in the Fnesiment Funds At 2006 and related rules reating io standied funds

The terms of the Trust Desd confer upon the Trustee, with the consent of e Manager, the power, in the future, to establish further funds in addifion 1o the Funds

curmenty in pperation as of fe date of his report

The Funds presented in this report are listed bbow

PIRAC Barmris Bark Loan Fund &

PIRACD Baravucds Bank Loan Fund B

P Bermeda Bank Loan Fund €

PIAC Eermedia Bank Loan Fund

PIAC D Baramudly broome Fund [

PN Bsraeudy breoms Fund

LD Brermueda Chyruen & Wula-fese1 Saamgy Fund!
PINICID Barmucdy Lows Dharasions Income Fund

PO Esmmegang Bond Tncoma Fand 11
e e T

D Hesreed oy 30 bk e "Fund of Funck ™ sinacbore, i defred i dhe rules of the o ent Trus Assaanm,
Japan, or in any othes prsdcon

PN 0 Bermeuede Bank Losn Fund )

PN Barmds Emargng blacheis Boed Fund @)

PR D Bermueda Glokal Aggregam ExJagmwn Bord Fund M|
FINACD Bermuds bncoene Fond M)

PN Barmaln U5 Hagh Yt Fund M)

FRAC) Barmvusdla U 5 High Yt Fund M)

FINACID Eveem g o rcamme Fared (M)

D¥iared ol 10 othes Fondt 0 cerve & an undiring imves e vehich for cuch Fundk

FINACD Barmuadly Emae oy Maviate Blond Fund 11
PRMACD Barmoede Global Aggregute Ex-Japan i enHedged Bond fued
FINECAD Bervvuady Global Aggrequne Ex-Japuen Bond Fund
PR Bermucts broome Fund A

P Baroda Moitgage Oppatundes Fund™®
P Care Income Corporite Bond fund 2020109
PR 5. High Fed MerrHedged Ford |1

PR 1.5 High Yiekd Fund B

PMCD LS. High Yeedd Seategy Fend

PO L5 Eigh Yald Seaoegy Fond ||

FINACD World High lncoms™ "=

Do 1w Japhress wnd ofer pesiton |

AMCD 2or kT Moitgsse bosa e

[Estedd 10 Japieis s5d olar Femdo Uns o e BB, BFY il D) Clis e 6%ed 6 fninl inetion &
Japan by weay ol public alfeneg through & de pibubar in Japas, and @ ey be offlersd 1o oehet inves 1k a1 the
decreton of the Maager, Units of the EUR, JFY wod B30 Clisa wall be resircied 1o anly e ivvmiion who are
appeoad by the Kl per

PR Emniging Bond £ ervifiiped] locome Fund
FIN D B g Bord [roomes Frond

FMCQ LS. Figh Fekd [ereH edgedh Fond
PO, 5 Egh Yild Fund

Dered ol 10 Fund of Funds Type Sapanece invectma i tasts onganged onder thie Lawr comossming lnesiment
Tresi 1 ared e omeni| Com pasy of Jepan (" dmparese: isveuimend Tnos") wich wall gifer ther unis o te pubicin
Japan wrher by wewy of puble oflering or prvane placess et and whch ane mmaged by PIMCD Japm Lid o offter
wm dir frensed iveriment TSt manogem ant compuoies and oobect 1o g nples of the Invesment Tnam
Fgsnciamon, Japmn

* Mo T e i VT O o PRI e it R ! Pl P £ il B 59 R ot B TS T S AR Tt e, £l A TUSIT Ol o PO el e Falal 4 Ry 5 K R e ST

v SOV LT (o AL v 0 e Pl A 0l o S PR G R R T TR By T B Tl
"7 il Y il T Y et o g [ TR Foms R T A R R PSR
SR it 28 it et Y A R Fy iy B bl Ay OB S e B gl
¥ o o Mot ol 67 VT el o 1 e v iyl e erarvenener T vy i eyl il B Clroler 3 3501
¥ P Pyl i aw dowley 15 20T anl @ e i KA R Jael il rarenp e T vy acs vl ull e Ctrater 3 0T

2.SIGHIFICART ACCOURTING POLICIES

The following Is 3 summany of sigraficent accounting policies consisten sy followed by the Trustin the preparation of its financial statements = conformity with
acoounBng prinaples gener alty aocepted in the United States of Amenca ("L 5 GAAPT). Each Fund is reated a5 an imvestment company under the reporting
requinements of L% GAAP, The preparation of finandal staternents in accordance with LS. GAAFR requires management o make estimates and assumptions
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that aflect the reported amounts of assets and liabdiges and disdosure of
confingent assets and liabilies at the date of the financal statements and
the regorted amounts of ingreases and dedeases in net aets from
operasons daning the reporting peniod. Actual rewlls aould Gffer from hose
eLtmates

{a) Acquired Funds The Trustes and Manager may apgly all of a porton of
the assets of i} FIMCO Benmusda Bank Loan Fund &, PIMCO Barmuda Bank:
Loan Fend B, FIMCO Bermapda Bank: Loan Fund C and MO0 Bermuda Bank
Loan Fend O (i) PIMCO Woeld High income; (i) PIMCO Bermada Global
Aggregate Ex-Japan (ren-Hiedged) Bond Fund and PINCO Bermuda Ghobal
Aggregate Bx-lapan Band Fund; (iv) FIMCO Bermuds incame Fund A, PIMCO
Berruida incame Fund D and PIMCO Bermuda inocere Fund E (W) PIMCO LS
High Yield (¥ en-Hedgedy Rand, PIMCO U5 High Yaeld Fund, PINCO LS
High Yiedd Soranedqy Fund, and FINSCED LS. High Yield Strateqy Fund 11 ()
PIVICC LS. High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Furd 1 amd BRAC0 LS. High Yeeld Fund
1; {wis) FIMCCr Erveergiing Bond (Yen-Hedged) noome Fund, FIMICO Bmenging
Bond Income Fund, PIMCO Bmarging Bond income Fund |1, and PIMCO
Emerging Bond ingome Fund Il feach refered to fetein a5 2 " Fund of Funds”
o " ACquering Fund ™, whidh invests in other Funds) o the respective cred i of
(i) PICO Berrnuda Bank: Loan Fund (M (i) FIMCO Bermaada F_n'.er-:jn-.}
Markets Bond Fund (M); §ig) PINCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan
Baond Fund {M); () PIMCD: Bermiada income Fund (M); () PIMCO Bamuda
L5, High ield Fund (M), (v MMCO Bermoda U %, Hgh Yield Fund 1t (M),
(i) FIMCO Emerging Bond income Fund (M) (refemed o herein as an
“Aciusted Fund(y)” . Any assets so spplied will be held in ach Acquired
Fund(s) a if received directly Whiene atoets ae 50 apphied, the Acquined
Fund{<) will recand the st of units 1t relevant Acquiring Fund a1 the
Fssipe price per urit of such uits anclwill repuarchase sach urits at the
repurchase price per unit of such urts ot the dme of repardse Agoondngly,
the atsliny of the Aogquining Fund 1o Schiese (85 imeestment objective wil
dhiepeered wpon the abdlity of ;e applicablée Acquined Fund 1o aduieve its
irvestment objective. There can be no assurance that e investment objective
of the Acquired Fand wall be achieved

Ratios showm in the Finandal Haghlighis donot indude expenses of the
Avquired Furvds). See Note 9, Fees and Expentes, for further infornation
reganding fund fees, as applcable

&) Securities Transactions and Investment Income Seounilies Fansacions
are reconded as of the rade date for Snandal repoeting purposes. Sequnties
purchazed or sold on 3 when-tssued or delayed-deliveny basis may be

settled beyond 3 stendard settiement pericd for the security after the frade
dane Realized gains and losses fom seaurities sold are reconded on the
identified costbasis. Dividend income is recorded cn e ex-dividend date,
enepd certain dvidends froem foredgn seaurilies where the ex-dividend date
iy Pinee pasaed, whidh are reconded a5 5000 45 3 Fund 14 indormed of the
ex-chridend date. Ireret ingome, adjusted for the sooretion of daoounts and
amotization of premriums, is neconded on the sl basis from witement
date, with the exception of secmitied with a foreand Haning efective date,
whers interest income is recceded on the acoual basis from sffective date. For
comveriiple seaurities, premiums atnbutatle o the comversion feature ane ot
amartired. Esimaned tax abliBes on certam tﬂ?ll}'l SeQuAtes are recorded
of g0 acoual basis and s refected i corgonents of interestingome of net
change in unrealized appredation (depredation) on investments on He
Statements of Opsrations, 3s approprate. Tax Babiltes redized &5 3 rewult of
sudh security sales are refiecied a5 3 component of net reaized gain Joss) on
irvestments on e Statements of Operatiors. Paydown gains and fosses on
morngage-related and ather asser-hadked sequrities, if any, are reconded a5
components of interest inoome on the Statements of Operations

[hebt Cbisganond rmay De placed on non-a0cal S0 and relaned intenes
Irvoornae mrumy e neduced by ceasing curment accruals and wiiting off inbenes

receivable when e collection of 3l or 3 portion of interest has become
doubtiul based on congstently applied procedures. A debt obligation is
remioved from non-acones status when the lssuer resumes inerest payments
o when collectabdiny of ntereat is probable

il Cash and Foreign Currency  The financial statements of each Fund are
presented using the aarendy of the primary econamic emaronment in whidh it
operates (the “functional curmency™). The funcional asrency for each of the
Funds is listed in the bel cw tabde

The kel vatlues of foreign sesibies, arrency holdngs and other y5sess
and leabiinies are frarelated mio asch Fund's funchiondl currency based on the
curfent enchange rates each busnes diy. Furdhases and sales of securites
and ingome and expense ilens denominated in fpresgn qurendes, if any, ae
transkated into each Fund's respedive funchiceal umendy &t the exchange
rane in eflect on the ransaceon date. The Funds donot separatdy repod the
effiects of changes in foreign exch ange rates from changss in markcet pncas on
secyrites hedd Sudh changes are indisded in net realized 2nd net changes in
unrealized gan of loss from imeestments on the Statements of Operations

The Fureds may invest in foeeign currency denominated seaunties and may
endage in lonsgn aamendy Iransactions either on & 5pat (cash) basis at the
rae prevalling in the curréncy exchange market at the time or through a

tonw and foreign currency ooniract. Realized foreign exchange gars or losses
aicineg from sales of spot foreign qurendies, aurrency gains of losses redized
beiween the rade and séftlement dates on seaunties randactions and the
difterence bevween the redonded amounts of dividends, interest, and Toreign
withholding taxes and the Rmctional currency equeealent of thie Fmounts
actually recenved or pald are incheded in net realized gain o loss on foreign
CUrTendy Bamsacions on the Statements of Operations. Net unreaized foreign
exchange gains and losses anidng from changes in foreign exchange rates on
Torekgn denciminated assets and liabilities ofver Shan invesTmEnts in sequises
el at the end of the repoeting period are induded in net changs in
unreakzed apprediation of depreciation on foreign asmency assets and
liakilities on the Statements of Operations

The Met Asted Vialue {"HAY) and total renere of cirtain Funds (or Clagses
therect, as applicable) are presented in the curmency for which the N&Y i
repored (She " MAY ourrendy”) a5 detaled in eadh Rund's E‘1f-:fll'l'§|
Memorandum (e “Ciffering Memorandum ™). For the purpeses of the
presentation of the NAY and e toaal rewm in the BAY Cumency, e
beginneng and endeg NAVS are comasited using the penod begrning and
ending exchange rates, respecively, and deiributions are converted using the
exchange rate at-the time of the distribution. See the folowing table for the
W cumency of each respective Fund

Functinnal
FundTlata: WAV Cuseracy Currancy
ﬁmkm._b'daﬁaﬁlwh'dlu:- U5 dolw US deollw
PG Barmada Bank L oo Fusd &
& FoE) US dollw U3 dolly
w  JUPA Jipanese yn UE dolw
L] J s Japanegs yen L3 dolls
= TUM Japanes yn U5 dollyr
- v LG Jagpanee e HE dolls
FICD Boremasda Buank L oo Fusd B
L F(AND Agmwaon dollyr | U5 dollw
. Y (AL} Jupanacs yen US dolls
= TIERL Jupanese yn U3 dolw
= Y MEH] Japanece yen US dollw
- ¥ [RUB| Japanece yen U3, dollar
LI f10ihi Jupanse yen U5 dollw
FIMACD Borsruida Buark: Loas Fusd C
L =T Jupanme yn US doly
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Fishs tiaaal . 3 Funstisaal
Frared Clats: WAV Cumrancy Cuancy FundDass: R Carriny i nct
FIRICD Berrruda Bark | oan Fund 0 ] J O] Japanee ym U5 dolly
. ¥ (Whadldi Ja;-Liu: iy .5 dollss ] JiNA J i inata e LS dolls
FIMLO Besrruds Emargng Markes Boed Fund B 1.5 dolle L5 dollar o JEi Japanee ymn S dolw
FIMCO Bestrrusdy Ermaigng Mearkex: Bord Fund B w  JiWON) Jopanase yn U3 dolls
= IrealP Jupanese yan U5 dollwr = JiRE Japenase yen UE dollsr
s lma UPY, Hadged Japaness yan U5 dollar = J(EM Japanee yen U5 dollw
FIMCT Bereusdla Ghobal Aggragae Ex-Japan [an- FIMCID Eemergng Band Incoeme Fend B
Hedued Boad Furd Janemm | | U5 ke s JiER Jopanmeyen | 1S dolle
FIMLO Berrrasda Gobal A ggregame ExJagen Bond Fund | Japanese yen .5 dollar = J{GEF} Japanese yn U3 dola
FILCD Barrmuda Global & i ExJapan Bond Furd i . J s Jigpanee yen us dolls
(.74} s Japanese v U5 dodar FIMOD Shaie-Term Wortgags inoame
FIMCD Beruds income Fund W U5 dolw U5 dodar = ER Eure U3 dolw
PIMED Barmuds dncome Fund A LI Juanseyen | U5 doly
»  FUPN Japarece yan U'S dollar ® PV UPY. Hadged) Japanece yan US dolla
a  FiUsm U5 doly U5 dollar = 10 U5 dollw U3 doly
« JUPY Jaganess yan U5 dollar | FIMOD L5 Hagh Yield [Yen-Hesdyad® Fuusd Japienace v 1S dofly
. JjuEm Japaness van U5 dollar FIMCTE L Hisgh TMTEHEGF?FUTJ " Japanais yen LS dolls
™ K 03501 U5 dolls b5 doflar FIMBD 115 High sl Fund Japanss vy LS dolly
« NUPM Jupansse yen U5 dollwr FIMCD 11 5 High Yied Fund Jopanese yon US dollw
o NGED Jagaress yon U5 dollar FIMOE UL High Yiald Sxaceqy Fend
- NN SO U5 dolly U5 doflar W JLIFY) Japanes yen U5 dolls
= PUM Jpnaas et U5 dollar = JLUPY, Hedged) Japanece v U3 dolla
« QWP Japanese yan U5 dolar s Jsh LS dely U3 dolly
] R LIFT) Japanese yen 0.5 dollar w ¥ LIFY) Japanee yen LS dolly
. = P Jazness yen 1.5 dodllsr » T LIFY, Hadgedi Jpsnisie yan 15 dolls
. Jparvese yan U5 dolar FIMDD U5 High Yield Swooapy Fendll
" U5 dolls U5 dollar & ¥ (A Japanscs yen U5 dolls
. U5 dolla U5 dollar - ¥ [BRLY Japanes yan U5 deollw
. Jagareese yen L5 dolar e VN Japaneeyen US dolla
] L5 dolla U5 dofar ® ¥ [TH1 Jopsnes ven LS dolle
L] Japaness yen U5 dedler FIM DD Wold High Income US dollar U dollar
. Japaness yen U5 dollar
- dograseven |13 dolu * T Class was Sguidlntee chming the raporting period
FILCD Bermuda income Furd = z
* N Wedd dapeneseyen | LG doll fol Multicless Operations  Each Class of 3 Fund offered by the Trust has
= KN D Aeprishn dodls | U5 dodar fighls to the aisets of the Fund equal 1o that of other Clagses of the same
=Y Worid) Jopaneseyan | U5 dolae Fund, sxcept for spedfic assets and gaing and losses designated to a Cla
FIMCD Bermuda Income Fund £ relating to aumency hedgng operaficrs. noome, non-Class specfic spenses,
¢ B IBE UMY dnpanecermn | Juganess o and non-Class spedific reslized and urrealized capital gains and losses ane
= B0 s dpmneseymn | Japanon v allocated 1o each Chass of units based on e relatve net assets of each Class
*  BJiom 'I"P ; dmpinestian - |.Jmenstyen of the fespective Fund Clats specfic apenset aumenty ndude
O AL et Jpanecaian | Jipaness yen ranagement, advisory, admenistrative, agency, and dstibution fees, where
. B 1B12 LUPYY Japaness yen Japanecs ven i i
L, spplicabli
- B 1612 05 JE‘E B T Ja:;mE Vi
FIMCO Berrrusda Losw Dot aon become: Fund i) Digwribution Palicy The foll owing table chows the anticpated frequency
s QUG U5 dols U dodar of dswibutions for each Fund Distibutions from each Fund may be dedared
FIMICT Berrmuda Worigage Doposaussties Fend sl damibuted 1 Unitholders only upan te authanzation af the Manager,
e IrecUPY Hadgedi Jigpinene yun U5 dolter which authorization may be withheld at the Manager's dismetion
= JUFM Juganese yon U5 dolar _
= 350 1.5 dolla 1.5 dollar
FUICT) Benmuda 1| 5, High Yiekd Fusad ) 115 dolw U5 dolwe PR Barmowsly Beck Lo el
FIMCO Bearmua 1| 5 High Ykt Fusd § (W] Jmnwoeren | U5 dol PO Bevmuds Bank Loan FuandB
FILICD Emaipics) Bond [¥on-Hedond) Incnima Furd Jognensywn | U5 dolle PRUCD Besmuds Bak Losn Fund C
| FIGICD) Ewmargeng Bond Income Fend Joaganece yan 1.5 dollar FMCO Barmuda Bank Loan Fend 0
PIMCT Emarging Bond Incama Fend (M1 1.5 dollm 1.5 dollar PAMCD Bty |icorme Furd &
FIICT Emangarg Bond Incgme Fend B - F UM
»  JIAUD Jupanese yen U5 dollar s PG
. JiBALY Japaness yen U5 dollar L] 1 LUPYY
»  JiCAD0 Japness yan U5 dollar = JusD
s NUF
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Duclared and Pald Manshly: (Conr)

= NS
= KN USD
- 5L
L] LUPT
- XEn
- ¥ UF
= ¥ [EE0
PR Bermuda Incoms fund 0
& Nl
- KM R0
L
PRET Berrrrda Mortgage Obpar tonebes: Fund
= JUF
« JUs0
« 50

PR Ermoee g Boored {Yen-Hsdged] ncorme Fund
PRI Erres g Bond Income Fusd

PRI Ernenigng Bond Ircome Fued @

PRED Emmageng Bond Income: Fusd 11

PRAEET U5 Hagh Yiekd [ 'YonH adged F und

PIRUCO U5, Hagh Yiekd Fusd

PRUED U5 Hagh Yield Swrstegy Fusd

PRRUCT UL 5 igh Yield Soategy Fusd I

PIRICD Yorkd High Incames

Declared and Paid Duarierhs

PRNIT] Bermnds Incarms Fond A
=  [OUFN

PiCT) Bermeda Incioma Fund E iprovided that the daidend yadd shall ba no hagher than
5% e anwam oy ey one e spling jperiodl

Declaivd and Paid Semiannuslly
PRI Bermods Irame Fund A

=  FOM
= ROPY

PRCD Short-Teim Martgage boome
= R
& JpY
»  JUPT, Hedged
I

The Mamager does nai expect o declare dsiributions with respect to these
Funds for Classes sherwsl, i applicable), but may, in iis discresion, declare and
disiributizan to the Unitholders at sy ime.

PRICD Bermada Bank. Loan Fend (M

PR Berrmads Emergng Markoe Bond Furd (M)

PIGET) Bermmads Emengeng Markee Bond Fund (1

PRI Bermoda Global Aggregane Exdapan [Yen-Hedgedh Bond Fond
PRUCO Beresds Gobal R30tegam Ex-lapsn Hond Fusd

PR Bermuda Gobal Aggregetn Ex-Japan Bond Fund (M)

PRAED) Bairrisds Income Find A

. ks

- TUFY

- U s =
. WS
- I U

PR Bermreiade ircome Fand (M)

The Manager dees a ot mxpect 1o declare distributions with respect 1o thess
Funds [or Clisses thereal, il applicablel, bui may, in its dmcretsss, declare and
divieibutises g3 ithe Unitholders at asy ime, {Cani )

PIMCO Bevrrmada Loww D stions heccne Fund
PICT Bty ol igasge Dpperssnibes Fund
= |t QP Hedged)
PO B U5 Hagh Yield Fusd (W0
PINCO B UL 5 Hagh Yieddl Fund 0 (M)
PIMCE Eemasgung Bond Incarms Fund (M)
PMCT S High ould [fenHedged) Fund I
RMCOUS High Yield Fund |1
* Ths Dhess: wees biquidaoed during tha seporong panod
** Ay deimibutons with resgect i Class B US0 Unss of the Fund vell be declyedn
Bt weth & el agrasireied Betivan the Masager s the e e nach (e

[Distributions, if amy, will generally be made from the relevant Fand's {or
Class"s, if applicable) netimvestment income. in addiion, the Manager may
authorize the payment of net redized capital gains available for dstibuson
Additional distributions may be dedaned a8 the Mansger deerms. Sppropeiate
Distributions paid with respect to any Fund {or Class thereod, it applicable)
will redduce the KAV of such Fund (or Class thereod if spplicable). At the
drenon of the Lieithol ders, cish dismbunions o 3 Rand (o Class thereod,
il appdicatie) rmay either be reimoested in additonal unis of 3 Fund (or Class
thereal, f spplicabde) of paid 1o & Unithalder i cash. Cash payrnents will be
paidin the NAY qurrency of the Fund. Each Fund {or Class thereof, if
#pplicable) may declare further distributions if corsidered necessany in codes
tomaintan 3 redsonable leve of damibations for & Fund for Class thereof, if
Spplicable). in the event that there (S inadequate net incomse Snd net realized
capital gains to pay a detibution of a Fund {or Class thereof, if applicable)
required bey the Offering Memorandum, the Manager may pay a distribuSon
congising of a portion of the capital of such Fund {or Class thereof, if
applhicable). Diambutions not coflected within socyears tnom their due date
wealll Laprae an ] will accrune 10 the Eervefitof the neleant Fund (or Clags dheneod,

if applicatia)

1) New Accaunting Pronourcements In March 2020, the Financal
Accounting $tandarcs Board (" FASE™) issued an Accounting $tandards
Update {"AS17), ASLI2020-04, which provides optional guidance to ease the
potential accounting burden assodated with transitioning aw.ay from the
London interbank Crffered Bate {"LIBOR™) and cher reference rates that are
expecied 10 be dsoontnued. The AU effective immediately upon release of
the update on Manch 12, 2030 through Decemiber 31, 2022 AL this time,
management is evaluating the implica fons of these dhanges on the finandal
Slatemenis

3. INVESTMERT VALUATIOR ARD FAIR YALUE MEASUREMERTS

fa Imvestment Valuation Pelicies The price of a Fund s undts 15 based on
the Fund's HAV. The NV of 2 Fund, o each of its Classes, a5 appiicabde, is
detenmined by dividing the towl value of poetfolio investments and olher
assets attributable to hat Fund or Class, less any Eabilites, by the totd
rurmiber of units outstanding of that Fund or Class, On each Fund's Dedling
[y (a5 desanibed in the amrrent Offering Memogandism of the Trust), Fund
units afe efdinanly valued a5 of the dode of reqular rading on the Mew Yok
Stoack Eodhange (TNYSE Chose”), Informaton that becomes known to the
Funds of heir agents after the time as of which NAY has been caboulated on
2 parsioular day will not generally be uged 10 retroacively adust the price of a
SeCuEiny of e NAY determined earier at day. Each Fund reserves fie ight
to change hae bme & ol wihech ity NAV is calaulaned if the Find dodes eadier
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For purposes of cafculating a MAV, portfolio seamties and other assets for
which market quotes are readily avalable are valued 21 market value. Market
walue 15 generally determined on the bass of offidal dosing prices or the last
reported saled prces, of i no sales e reporiad, bated on quotes oblained
from established market makers or prices (ndudng evaluated paces) supplied
Ery the Funds” apprndved priding sevices, quolation reparting systems and
ather Sard-party sources fiogether, "Pridng Senvices™). The Furds will
FICETERy e Dliiﬂl; diata for domestic g Ty sevuniies redeved shordy sfer
the NYSE Clise and do mot nommdlly take into Jooosnt ieding, desrandes of
seftlements that Take place alter the NYSE Close. B marke vialie pacing i
used, & foregn (ron-US ) edquety Secunity taded o a fonagn &ochange o on
meee ihan one exdhange is ypically valued wsing pridng infommation from the
exchange consdered by e Manager to be the pimary exchange, A foreign
naon-U S ) equity security will be valised &5 of the doge of vading on the
foreign exchange, of the NYSE Close, if the WY SE Cloge oomurs before the end
of trackng on the foreign exchange Domestic and foresgn (non-U1 % ) fioed
income securities, non-exchange fraded derivatives, and equity opfions arne
niormaly valued on the basls of quotes obtained from brokers and dealers. o
Pricing Services using data reSecting the earier downg of the prindpal
markets fof those secunties. Frices obtaned from Pricing Sendoes may be
based on, among other things, information provided by market rakess or
estmates of market values diained from yield data rel ating to lmesiments or
senurities wath similer charactensiics. Certain Roed income sequrities
purchased of 2 delived-deliviny basis are marked to maket daly untl
seftlement at the Jonwand SetSiment date. Bochandge-ir sded opions, except
equity options, futures and options on futures, are walued at the setlement
price determined by the rebevant exchange. Swap agreements are valued on
thve: barsis of bid quotes obtained from brokers. and dealers or market-based
pices supphied by Priaing Seraces of obher I."l"iDl‘-'; sources, A Fundgs
imestments in open-end management invesiment companies, other than
exdhange-iraded funds (TETFS™), arevausd at the MANS of wich invesiments
Open-end management investment companies may indude affilated funds

I a foeeign (pon-LLS ) equity secontys value has matenslly changed after the
dlose of the searity™s peimany exchange of prndpal mabet but before the
WY SE Cose, the security may be valued at fair vialiee based on procedures
e4tablished and approved by the Manager Foreign (non-L5 ) equity
secuities thal do not trade when the NYSE is open s st valusd at Tair
walue, Wl nespect o !'l:n:lgﬂ (non-LLS ) equity seambes, & Fund miy
determine the fair value of ivestiments based on information provided by
Picing Services and other third-par by vendors, whech may recommend fair
walue or adustments with reference 1o other secunities, indices of assets In
corsidering whether fair valuasion is required and in detemuning far

walues, a Fund may, amang other things, consider sgniicant events (which
may be comsidered toinclude changes in the value of LS. seamibes o
securilties ndices) that ooouw after the dose of the relevant market and before
the NYSE Close. & Fund mey uitize modeling tools provided by third-party
vendons 1o determning fair vatues of faneign fon-L S ) seaurited. For thte
purpases, any movement in the 3pplicable rebefende inde: of Irs Fument

(" 2o Rrigper ™) Beteveen the ealier dode of the applcable foreign market
and the NYSE Close may be deemed 1o be a significant event, prompiting the
appiacaton of the pricdng model (sffectively resulting in daily far

vauammnsy. Foreign exchanges may permit trading in foreign (non-U 53
equity seunties on days when the Trust is not open for buginess, which may
result i @ Fund's portholio imestments being affected when Unithobdess are
unable to by or sell units

Senior secred foating rate loans forwhich an adihve secondary market exdsts
to a refable degree will Be valued at the mean of the last avalable bdfak
prices in the market for auch loans, as provided by a Priding Senvce, Senior
secured Baaning rate loans Torwhich an active Secondary marken does not
el 103 reliable digree wall be valued at Lar valse, which is intended to

Foprocimate market vaiue. nvaluing 3 senior secwed fioating rate loan at
fair value, the factors conddered may indude, but are not limited 1o, he
Tollowing: {2) the credibworthiness of the bomower and any intermediate
partiapants, (o) the terms of She [aan, (< recent paces in the market for
sirnilar laens, if any, and (d) recent prces in the marked fof instaménts. of
srmilar quality, rate, period unl next intenest rate redet and matunty

Evestmens valued in oremnces ottier than the imnctional Curfency

of 3 Fund &ré corverned 1o the Tunoiions] Qurmendy usang exchame ranes
chtained from Pridng Seneoes. As a resalt, the value of such imvesiments #nd,
i Bumn, the NAY of the Fund™s units may be affected by changes in the value
of qurrendes in refation to fe funciiond oerengy The vaue of imvestments
traded in foreign merkets of denaminated in quemencies other than

the fncBonal qumency may be alecled signfican®y on a day that the Tnsst is
riol open for business. As 3 result, to the extent that 3 Fund holds foreign
{non-U 5 Jinvestments, the value of those imestiments may dhange at Smes
wihen you cannot purchase, redeem or éxchange units and the valwe of such
ieroestrmniEnis will b reflectad in the Fund's misd caloulated MAV

Ineestrmends for which markel quotes of maroet-based valuatiord are nol
reauily availabi: are valued at fair value a5 determined in good faith by

e Manager of persons a08ng at thelr drection. The Manager has adepted
ethods for Valimng secunies and OTher Fisels m orouRmsLances wher
market quobes are not readily available, and has delegated to PIMCO the
resporshility for applying the fair valuation methods In the event that market
quotes or market-based valwations are not readly available, and the seqenity
of asset cannod be valued purssant to a Manager approved valuation
rethod, the value of the seamity or aseet will be determined in guod fath by
the Vabuation Cormittes. Market quates are consedered not readily avalable
In drcumes aroes where there is an abSenice of current o rediable market-
based data fe g, rade information, bidfack informa®ion, indcative market
quotitions (" Braker Cuobes”™), Priang Senaces” prices), Induding whine
el oo slter the dose of the relevant market, bul pnof 1o e NYSE
Clerse, that materially affect e values of the Fund's seourities of astets. bn
additon, market quotes are considered not readby available when, due to
extraordnary droumstances, the exchanges or markets on which the
secuEiges ade donot open for rading for the entre day ard no athes
AR prces are svaiable The Manager 15 reiponabe fior FCAINNG
sgnificant events that may matenially affect the values of the Fund's securities
or assets and for determining whether the value of the applicable searities or
assets should be reevauated in light of such signiicant events

Whien 4 Fund uses Rair valuation to detérmine the valize of 3 portolio securty
o other assel for purpeses of caleulating it MAY, asch imestments will not
b priced on the basis of quoses from the primany market in which they are
raded, but rather may be praced Dy another method that the Managée of
persons acing a1 e deection beleve reflecs o valoe Fair valuation may
recuEn Subjective ditesminagions sbout the vabue of & weounty. While

thee Trust's policy is intended to result in 2 caloulaon of a Fumd's NAY that
fairky reflects security vales as of the ime of prigng, the Trust cannot ensre
that fair values deterrnined by the Manager of persons. scting a1 their
drection would accurately refiect the price tat a Fund could obtain for 3
secutity i ilwere to dspose of that seaurity a5 of the time of pridng (o
imstance, in a forced or distressed sale). The prices wsed by 3 Fund may differ
from the walue that would be realized if the sequriBes were sold

b Fair Value Hisrarchy 1% GAAF desoibes farvalise a5 the price that

a Fund would receive to sell an asset or pay to transfer 3 Babilitg in an ondesly
transacion between market parSapants a1 the meausement date. it
estabiiches a fair value Rigrandhy that pricditizes inputs to valuation methods
and requares dsdosure of e fair value Rierardhy, separately for each magor
categony of assets and liabéities, that segregates far value mezurements info
beiels (Lesed 1, 2,00 3). Thit inputs of methodolodgy used Sor vahuing seourities
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are not necessarly an indication of the risks assodated with investing in those
sequnfies Levels 1, 3, and 3 of the fair vaue hieranchy are defined as follows:

# Level b=—Cuioted prced | acine markets of eohanges 1of idenical astets
And liabilities

* Level 2—Sigrificant otfer observable inputs, whath mayinduds, but ane
not limited o, quoted prices for similar assets or Babdides in markets than are
e, quodted pinces for ideniecal of similar aasets of Kethoes in markets that
are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are oksencable for the
assels or Habilities Guch as interest rabes, yield curves, volatiliies, pregayment
speeds, boss severities, aredit moks and default ratesh or other market
ooemoborated inputs

= Level 3—Significant unobrencable inputs based on the best information
avilable in the droumatances, 10 the exent oboenvable mputs are not
vatable, which may indude FSSEmpons mace tey the Manager of pérams
aing i their draction that are used in detenmining the fair valae of
IvELmen]s

Assets or Babilities canegorized & Level 2 or 3 a5 of period end have been
transfemed betaeen Levels 2 and 3 snce the prior penod due 1o dhanges in
the mithod utilized in valuing the imestinents. Translers from Level 2 10 Linel
3 e a reqlt of achange, in the normal course of business, from the use of
vauaton methods wsed by Pridng Senvices (Level 2) to the use of 3 broker
quite or waly ation technbgue wihich wilines Sgnifcant unobrensile Inputs
due 10 an absence of urrent o reliable market-based data (Level 3)

Tramsfers from Level 3 to Level 2 are a result of the avalability of qument and
reliabie markei-based data provided by Pridng Services o other valuation
techneques which utilize signeficant cbservable ingus

In acoordance with the requirements of U5 GAAR, She amounts of transfers
in and out of Level 3, if material, are disdosed in the Motes 1o Schedule of
Fvestments for each respective Fund

For fair valustions using Sgnificant unobsencable infuls, U5, GAAF redquines
1o discleee transhers into and out of Level 3 of the fasr walue hieranchy and
purchases and isaes of Level 3 assets and latilities during the period
Addtionatly, U S, GAAP reguines quantitati information regardng the
significant umobsensable inputs wed in the determingtion of fair valu: of
assels or fiabilities categorized as Leved 2 in the fairvalue hierarchy. In
acoondance with the requirements of U5 GAAF, a fair value hierandey, and if
materid, detals of sgnificant wnobsendable inputs, have been induded in the
Haites to Schedule of nvestments for each respacive Fand

el Valuation Techniques and the Fair Value Hierarchy

Lewel 1 and Level 2 treding assets and trading abilities, at fair velue The
vauation methods (or “tedhnaques™) and sgnificant inputs used in
denermrening the Lar values of portiolio securities of olfwer 3ssets and labilies
categodized 36 Lwel 1 and Level 7 of the fair vafue haerardhy ane as foll s

Foed mncome sequrities indipdng corporate. convertibde and munidipal bonds
andnobes, US. goverment agendes, LS, measury obliganons, soverelgn
Fspes, bank kans, converlble preferred secuntes and non-10%. bonds ae
niormaly valueed on the basis of quotes obtaned friom brokers and dealers or
Pricing Services that use broker-dealer quotations, reported trades o
vauabon estimates fom their interma pricing models. The Pricing Serdces’
Iriermal models use inputs that are observable sudh as issuer datails, interest
rates, yield canes, prepayment speeds, aredit nskyspresds, defaolt rates and
quated prices for Smilar siets Sedritied that use smillar valuation
technéques and inputs a4 desdnibed above are categonized as Levd 2 of the
fair value Merandny

Fixed income searities purchased on a delaped -defivery basis or a5 3
repundhase commitment in 3 sale-buyback ransacton are marked to market
daily un® settlement at the forward settlement date and are categorized a5
Lisetd 2 o the fanir vl hisranchy

Mortgage-el sted dnd adset-badked seamities are usually istued a5 separate
mandhes, of dasses, of secunBeswithin eadh deal These seomities ae @50
nonally valued by Frigng Senaces that use bhoker-dealer guotaimons,

repor ted mades of vialhuation estimates froem thedr intemnal pricing models. The
Erncin g eracdeds for Chiste Secumites uia ally cordider randhie-level attibutes,
current market data, estimated cash flows and market-based yield preads for
each tranche, and incorporate deal collaterd perfommance, & available

Mor tgage-relgted and asset-baded sequrites thal use simdar valuation
techniques and inputs as desiibed above are categonized a8 Level 2 of the
fair wafue hierardy

Common siocks, ETF, exchange-raded notes dnd Enandd denvathe
IFSRARTIENAS, St 2% Tulifes Coniracts, AT And warrants, of ophons o
Tubuires that ne traded on 4 national seaunties exchange, are dated at te
Ltk reported <ale of setfement pace on the day of valuation To the edlent
these securities are achvely raded and valuation adiusaments are not appled
they are categoized as Level 1 of the fair valye hieranchy

Investments valued (denominated) in curendies other than the functional
currency of a Fund are comverted to the funcional qumency using exchange
rates foarendy spot and forwand rates) obtained from Pridng Sendces. As a
riesalr, thie MAY of a Fund's isnits miry be attected by dhanoés n the value of
currendes in relation to the funceonal ouxrency. The value of securities iraded
In foreign markets of denomenated in curendes afher than the functional
curréndy may be affected significantly on a day that e Trustis not open for
business Valusion ddusiments may be applied 10 Certan sequrines hal ane
solély tracded on a foeegn exchange 10 Adount for the market moverrent
betwen the chose of the foresgn market and the NYSE Close. These sequises
e valiped wsing Priang Services that aonsider the comdaton of the rading
pattems of the freign sequrty to the intraday trading in the US markets for
investments. Securities using these valuation sdjustments are categorized a5
Leved 7 of the fairvalue hierarchy Freferred seounities and other equitdes
traded on inactive markets o valued by referende to dmilar instruments are
so categonzed a5 Lewed 2 of the far value hieranchy

Equaty-linkd secur es ane vatued by relerenon g the Last reported sabe of
settement price of the linked refenenced equity on the diy of valuatan
Foréign eechange ddustments aré applied 16 the Last reported prce 1o
conwert the Bnked equity’s trading curréncy to the conbract™s se1tling cusrency
These investments ae categorized & Level 2 of e fair valus hierarchy

Investments. in registersd open-end imeestment companies (other than ETF)
wall be valed based upon e NAYS of such imestmenits and are categonized
5 Level 1 of the far value hieranchy, Invesiments in unregistensd open-end
frvestment companies will be caloulated based upon the NAVS of sudh
ienestmin s and are considened Level 1 provided that the NANS ane
dbservable, calaulated daily and are the value 3% which both purdhases and
sakes wall be conduced

Equaty exch nge-Iraded 0pRons S over the counter financa devative

Irs e, sudh &% Tonwiaed Toreign Quirency ONESaS snd apaons Conmracts,
deive thir vilue Trom underyang aset proes, B0, relenence rates, and
otfer nputs or a combinaBon of these factors. These contracts are nomally
walwed oo the basls of quotes obiained from a quotation reporing sysbem,
estatished market makers o Fricing Sendces (normally determined &5 of the
W¥SE Close). Depending on the product and the tenms of the transachon,
fnandal derivative instruments can be valued by Fridng Services using a
series of technigques, indudng simulation pricing modelts. The pricing models
use inputs. that are cbserved from actively quoted markets such a5 quoted
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pices, isaser details, indices, bidfask spreads, interestrates, implied
wolatiliBes, yield curves, dividends and exchange rates. Finandal derivative
imstruments that use similar valuation technigues and inputs a5 described
Abxr are calegon2ed 25 Level 2 of the far value hierandwy

Centrally desied swaps and duer the counter dwaps derve ther valee from
'.Iﬂ".li’-'i]‘ N a5t prices, indeces, reference rates, and other inputs of a
coenbination of these factors. They are valued using 3 Droker-dealer bed
QUEER TGN OF on FRafket-Dased proes provided by Pracng Senices (noemuay
dengrmened a5 of the NYSE CRose). Cenmrally deded Swaps and cver the
counter swaps can be valwed by Pricing Ssrvices using a senies of fechniques,
induding simulation pricing models. The pricing models may use inguts that
are gbrenved from actively quoted markets such 35 the overnight index w~ap
rate (T0OI57), LIEDR forwand rate, interesl rates, yield curees and credit
spreads. These sequities are categorized as Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy

Lewel 3 trading assets and trading liakilites, &t fair value When a far
vauaon method is spplied by the Manager that usss significant
unchsenvable inputs, imestments will be priced by a method that

the Manager or persons acting a1 their direction believe reflects far valie and
are categoized a5 Level 3 of the fair value hisranchy The valuation
tedhniques and siqrificant inputs weed in determining the fair values of
portfolio assets and labilities categoriped a6 Level 3 of the far value hierardhy
are as follows:

Prosey pricing peodedures wet (e base price of 3 fiesd income wecurity and
sybsequen gy adust the price proportionally (o market value changes of 3 pre-
detemined sequnity deemed to be comparable in duration, generally a LS
Treasury of sovereign note based on country of Bsseance. The base price may
b 3 broker-gealer quote, Iransaction prce, o an miemal value &5 dermved l":.
analysis of market data The base price of the secunity may be resst on a
periodic hass based on the availabelity of market data and procedures
approved bey the Valuaton Commettes. Significant changes in the
uncbservable inputs of the prosy pridng process (the base price) would result
in direct and proportional changes in the fair value of the setunity. These
secufified are categarized a5 Level 3 of the far value hierarchy

If thard-paty evduated vendor pricng is not aiable or nod oeemed o be
indcative of fair value, the Mamnsger may el o cbtdn ndicative market
quatytion dredtly fecen thi broker-dealer of passeckshrowgh broker quose
from a third-party vendor In the event that fair value is based upon a single
scamoed Broker Quote, these searites are cateqorized as Level 2 of the fair
wvalue heerarchy. Broker Quotes are fypically recened from established market
partidpants. Although independently received, the Manager does not have
the transparency b viss the wnderhing inputs which support the market
quotation. Significant changes in the Eroker Quate would have direct and
propoetional changes in the fr valse of the seawity

Drescoumied cash flow valuason utes. an intemal anabyis based on

the Mansgs s expetanon of hutune incorme and expences, captal siruchae,
exil multeples of a seoanty, and other unobsenva ble inputs which may indude
contraciual and faciuat loan faciors, estimated future payments and aedt
rating. Sigmificant changes in the unobrservable ingusss of the models woukd
result i denect and proportional changes in he fair watue of the sequrity
These seqwities are categorized as Level 3 of the tair value hieranchy

Commerdal red estate boans may be valued primasty based on either the
Incorne apprcddh, emplaing 2 dscoanted cath fow model which i5 based
on the expectations of prindpal and intenest payments, fees and coits, a well
a5 amaong other factors, historacal 1oan and underhying collateral activity,
expecied payment tming. the oredit gaality of the bormower and operating
forecast of the underhying property. These sequriBes e categonized a5 Level 3
of the frvalue hierandy

Short -term debt instrumen ts (wich as commerdal paper) having a remaming
maturity of &0 days or less may be valued at amortized cost, so long as the
amorized oost value of such short-tem debt instruments is approsimatedy ghe
samé a5 the Fair value of the indirument a5 detismrn id without the we of
amorined oost valuaton These securifnes ane categoned as Level 7 of Level
3 of the fair value hierardhy depending on the sounce of the bate price

4 SECURITIES AND OTHER IRVESTMERTS

{&) Delasyed-Delivery Transections Certain Funds may purchase or sell
seqmites on a dedayed-delivery basis. Thewe rarsactions imolve 2
comfnitment by & Fund 8o purchate of &l secufibes for 4 predetermaned pce
of yield, with payment and deffvery taking place beyond the qustomary
settiement period. When delayed-delivery ransactions are oulstandng,

& Fund wall desagnane of recene a5 collsteral Ligued S55e15 1 an amount
witfident bomeet the purdhase price of respective obligations. When
purchasing a seasnty on a deliyed-delbvery basis, & Rund assumes he rights
and fisks of ownership of B seouty, induding he dsk of pice and peid
fuchpaticns, and takes sudh Suchsations inks aooountwhen datermining its
NAN . A Fund may dispose of of renegatiate a delaped-delivery ransacion
after it is entened into, which may resultin a reakized gain of [oss, When

2 Fund has sold & security on & delayed-delivery badis, the Fund does not
particgane in future gamns amd Bosses with respect o the sequrity

bl Inflationdndexed Bande Cerfain Funds may imestin inflation-indexed
bonds. inflation-indexed bonds are fixed inoome seouwifies whoss prindpal
walue B periodically adusted by the rate of inflaticn The interest rate on
these bond is generally ixed at issuance At & rate |ower than typical bomds
Crver the Bife of an inflation-ndexed bond, howeves, inferest will b paid
based on 3 prindpal value, whidh is adusted for mBation. Amy ingease o
decrease in e prindpal amount of an inflatcn-indexed bord will be Induded
gt intenestincome on he Statements of Operations, even though imessors do
fiof rescisnet Thesr prindpal un®l matunity. Repayenent of the o ginal bond
prindGi pad upon maturity (as adusted for inflation) is guarantesd in the case of
U5 TIPS For bonds that do not provide 3 simdar guatandee, the adosted
prindipad value of the bond repaid at maturity may be bess than the onginal
principal

el Loan Participatiens, Assigrments and Qriginations Cerlasn Funds may
ISl N e debl IATUMIENTs Whndh are INDERESES IN AMoUn 15 dwied Lo
lendiers of bending symdicates by Ooporate, govermanen tal, or other bomowens
A Fumd 4 snveshien ts in |0 s mdy b in the foem of partiapations in leans of
assignments of all or a porticn of kens from thind pasties of imesoments in o
orignagions of logns by the Fund A loan is often admenistersd by 2 bank or
other finand al instnaton (e “lender™) that acs a5 agent for 3l hofders. The
agent adminmters the terms of the loan, as spedfied in the loan agreement

A Fund may invest in multiple senes or ranches of a loan, which may hawe
warying terme and caery different assodated ks When a Fund purdhases
Fsigrments from lenders it acquires direct rights against the borrowers of the
haans These loans may indude partapations i bredge loans, which ane |osns
taken out by borrowers Tor 3 shor peniod (typicaly leds than one yea)
pending arangement of mone pamanent finandng through, for exampie, the
rasusance of bonds, frequenty hegh yield bonds ssued for the purpoge of
SOQUEIRNS

The types of loans and related investments inwhidh the Funds may invest
indude, among others, senior Ioans, subondnated loans Gnduding second
iere loanes, B-Nobes and mezzaning lpans), whole Bnans, commerndial real
estate and other commesdal loans and stnactured foans. & Fand may
arignate |oans of aoquire direct interests in loans through prirary kean
distribulions andfor in private randactions. in the case of subordinated |oans,
there may be significant indebtedness ranking ahead of the bomower’s
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obdigation 1o the holder of such 3 loan, induding in She event of the
beoemosver's insolvency, Mezzanine loans are typically sequred by a pledge of
an equity interest in the mortgage bommower that cwns the real estate rather
than &N intereslin & mortgage

Iritment in laans may indwde unfurded lodn commatments, whidh ane
contractual obdigations for funding. Unfunded bean commitments may indud:
revolving oredt Bolies, which may obligate 3 Fund to supply addtional cash
1 B borrower on demand. Unfumded loan commsiments represent a futune
ot gatcn in full, even though & pencentage of e comimitted amodnt may
not be utlized by the bomower. When investing in-a loan parfidpation,

a Fured has the right to receive payments of principal, interest and any fees to
whidh it is entitled onby froem the lender selfing the kan agreement and ondy
upcn recept of payments by the lender from the bomower. A Fund may
receive 3 commitment fee bated on the undrasn portion of the underdying
lime of aredit portion of a loan In cerlain droumstances, a Fund may receive a
penalty fee upon the prepayment of  loan by 3 bomower. Fees eamed or
paid i reootded a5 & component of interest income of INTEest geni,
respeciively, on e Statements of Operatiors. Unfunded loan cormmatments
Are felecied 25 a Rabilieg on the Satements of Assets and Lisblities

{d] Marigsge-Pelated and Oiher Asset-Backed Securities: Certan Funds may
imest in mortgage related and other asset-badked seounties that directy o
indirectly repretent 3 partidpaton in, of ane secured by and payable from,
loans on real property. Morigage related secunties are eated from pocts of
resadengial or comimendal monmgade loans, induding morigage loans made by
anings and [odn irdBTutions, morigage bankers, commeraal barks and
ofers. These secunties provde 3 monthly payment whach consists of bath
interest and prindpal Interest may be determined by fxed or adjustable rates
The rate of prepayments on underhing morigages will affect the price and
wolatiny of a mangage-related secunity, and may hawe the effect of
shiatening of exntending the effectve duration of the ssunity relatve o what
wias anBdpated at the time of purchaze, The timely payment of pringpal and
interest of cartain mortgage-related securities is guaranteed with the full faith
and redit of the U5 Govemnament Pools oreated and guarantesd by non-
gevemmental issuers, indudng govemmen -sponsoned oorporations, may be
supporied by vanoos forms of inusrance or guarantees, but there can be no
Fsurance that private irsurers of guaranbors can meet their obligations undes
the inswrance paices or guarantee amangements. Many of the risks of
imvesting in morigage-refated seourities secured by commerdal mortgage
loans reflect the effecs of focal and other economic conditions on real esate
markets, the sbility of tenants 1o make leae payments, and de abality of 3
property 10 aftract and retamn Lendnts These searities may be lews Bquid and
gy edibit greater price volatlity than other tpes of mongage-related of
atfer assel-biaceed securities. Other asset-baded sequities are aeated from
ANy NS of assels, incduding. butnat Erited 10, 2030 kans, sooounis
recend b, sudh & aredil cand recenabies and hospatal acoount recehvablies,
home equity loans, student boans, boat [aans, mobile home loans,
regreational vehicke loans, manufacured housing boans, ainaraft leases,
computer |leases and syndicated bank loans, The Fund may invest in any level
of the capital stycture of an issuer of mangage-tadked or asset-backed
secufifies, induding the equity o ~first lass™ trandhe

{ed Collateralizad Morigage Obligathens (" CMOs") are debd obligations of a
fegal entity that are colfateralized by whiole mortgage loars or private
mcatgage bonds and divided into dasses. CAMIOS are struchared into miliple
dasses, often refemed to 35 "wanches”, with eadh dass bearing 2 different
stabed maturity and enfitled b0 3 different schedube for payments of pindpal
and mterest, induding prepayments. CMOs may be less liquid and may exhit
greater price volatility than osher types of mortgage-related or asset-backed
seomilies

1 Strippad Mertgage-Backed Securities ("5MES") dre disfivalive multi=0ass
Margage seunties. SMES are wually strucured with wo dlasses thar receiee
different proportions of the mbened and pindpsl datributions on a pool of
moftgage assets. An SMES will have one dass that will reczive Jll of the
interest (the interest-cnlyor 107 dass), while the other dass will regehe e
entire peincpal the prindpal-only o “PO° dass). Payments recebed for 105
are induded In interest income on the Statements of Operations., Because o
i pad will bee recetved at the maturity of an )0, adjustments are made (o
thie cvst of the ssqurity on 3 monthiy basis until masunity, These adjustments
e indlpded in interest ingome on the Statements of Operations. Payments
receised for FOs are treated as reductions to the cost and par vaue of the
securites

g Collataralizad Debt Dbligatiors ("COO:") indwde Collateralized Bond
Ciligations {TCBO. "), Collateralized Loan Obligations (TCLOS™) and other
simil arfy struchured securifies, CBOs and CLOs are types of asset-backed
seciBes A CBO s a trust which is backed by a diversified pool of high nisk,
Bl inviedlmient gfade Bmed incoime seduntics. A CLOGE & tPulk By caly
collaterafized by a pocl of boans, which may indude, among athers, domestic
and foreign senior secuned |aans, semior urseuned loans, and wbondnate
corporate [aans, induding laans that may be rated below imestment grade or
equivalent unrated loans. The risks of an investment in @ CDO depend lar gedy
o the type of 1he collateral seceites snd the dass of the CDO i which

& Fund imeests. in addeion b the normal ks aasomated with fosd Income
secufites disqrssed elcewhere in This report and the Runds’ Offering
Memorandum g g., prepayment risk, credit risk, Bouidity risk, market rigk,
structural nisk, legal sk and interestrate sk (whech may be exacerbated if
the interest rate payable on & sructared finandng changes based on
roudtiples of changes ininberest rates of imversely 1o chamges in interast
raes)), CBOs, CLOL, and other CD0s carry additional risks induding, but nat
fimiited to, () the poscibility that distributions from coll steral securities will not
be adequate o make inferest or other payments, & the quaity of the

coll ateral gy chichine in valse of default, (i) the i thata Fund ey ifvedt
i CEe, OO, o ther CDOS that ane subordinate o ofher dasies, and ()
the coemplex siruchre of e ssounly midy nol be fuly enderstond at the time
of ievestment and may produce disputes with the fsuer of unexpeded
Iereestment results

i Payment InHind Securities Certan Funds may ivest in payiment m-kind
secufies (CPIKE ") PIES mury grve the issuer T opison ot each intenest
paryrreend cdate of making inbenest payrents in dither cish andior addional
debl securitied. Those additicnal debe Lecurities usually hawe the same tefs,
indwding matunity dates and interest rates, and assodated riges a5 the
arigingl bonds. The daily marcet quatations of the origingl bonds may indude
the: acorued interest referred 1o a5 3 “diny peice ™) and require a pro rata
adjirsment from the unreakzed appreciation of depdedation on irvesments
lo inberest recedvable on the Statements of Assets and Liabilifies

0 Aestricted Securities Certan Funck may hold ivestments that are subiect
to begal o coniraciual restrictions on resake. These sequri Ges may be sold
provatety, Dt may be requined o be registersd or exempled from sudh
regairasion before being soid 1o the public. Private placement seqrities are
generally considered to be resiricled. Disposal of resiricted imvestmen s may
immockwe: time-consurming negatiations and expenses, and prompt sale at an
accepiable price may be difficult to achieve. Resticied investments held by
the Funds at October 31, 2000, as applicable, are dedosed in the Notes to
Schedule of Ivesiments

@ Structored Motes Certain Funds may invest in stnsciured notes and ofher

related instuaments, which afe privately negotated debit obdigations in whady

the prindpal and! of inerest is determined by reference W the performance of
a benchmark: asset, market of interest rate (an ~embedded index”), such a5

B Fagae | Dowber T, 06T fod

271/396



Notes to Financial Statements

EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

seleded ssasities, an index of securities or spedfied interest rates, or the
differential performance of two assets or markels, swch as indexes reflecting
bonds Structured insruments may be issued by copaorations, induding
Banks, ot well a8 by oovernmenitsl agendies. The termms of such sruthured
instruments nomally provide hat their prinapal andfor intefest payments. ane
1o b adfusted upwands of dowameands (but crdinanly not below 2era) o
reflect changes in e embedded indexwhile the Sruchred instuments are
outstandng As a resull, the imerest andior pindpal payments hat may be
e o a sruchuned peoduct mdy vany widely, depending on & variely of
factors, Induding the vol sty of the ermbedded index and the effect of
changes in e embedded index on prandpal andior inlenedl paytnents

k] LS. Goverrmant Agencies of Governsent-Sporsored Enterprses
Certain Funds may vest in seapnBies of U S Govemment agendes of
gowemment-sponsored enterprises. U S Gowernement securities are
obfigations of andl in cerfan cases, guarantesd by, e US. Govemment, Iis
SGEnCEs of Istrumentalities. Some U S Gowemn ment sedqunies, sud i
Treadury bills, notes and bonds, and sedurites quaranieed by the Govemment
National Morfgage Assodation ("GNMA® or “Glnnie Mae™), are suppoeted
Ery the full faith and credit of the U5 Government ofhers, such a5 those of
ftve Federal Home Loan Banks, are supported by the right of the issuer to
Bcerowy from the LS Department of the Treasury (e “US, Tressury™), and
others, wich & those of the Federal Mational Moetgage Assodation {7 FHMA®
or ~Fannie Mae™}, are supported by the dsoetionany anhanity of the U5
Gowernment to purchase the agenoy™s obligations. U5 Goverrment securiBes
iy imchuce ero coupon securities, whidh do nol distribu e intenest on a
cusrent b and tend to be ashiject 1o & greater vk than interest-paying
securilies of simila manunties

Governmeni-related guaraniors § . not baded by the §l falih and oredit of
the LS, Geetmimaenil) inciu dee FNINLA, and the Federal Home Loan Morigage
Comporaton {TFHLMC™ o “Fredde Mac™). FNMA 15 3 giverniment-gponioned
corporation. FHMA purchases comventiond § 2., nod insured or guarantesd by
any government agency) resdential mortgages from a st of approved
sellers/sendcers which incude state and federally chartered savings and kan
aszociations, mutual savings banks, commendal banks and cedt unions and
martgage banbers. Pass-throegh secunties iaped by FRMA are quarantesd
1o Bmely payment of pnncpal and interest by FRMA, but are not badeed by
the fulll faith and credit of the L5 Government FHLMC Bawes Partidpation
Certificates ("RC"), which are pass-through securies, each representing an
undidisd interestin a pool of reddential morngages. FHUMC gquarantees the
timedy panrnent of interest and WlBmaste collection of prindpal, but PCs anenat
backed by the hal faith and credit of the IUS. Govemmient

I une J01F, under the Singie Sequrity initiadve, FNMA and FHLMC started
Issuing Unitonm Martgage Bacdoed Securities (T UMES ") in place of heir
current ciferings of TEA-elighle secunities. The Single Security nitiative seeky
to suppcet the overall ligquidity of the TBA market and afigns the
charactenistics of FNMA and FMLMC certificates The effects that the Single
Secusity Initiative may have on the market for TBA and other mangage
badead securities am uncatain

Reit '!mﬂl} sirategues can be used where a Fund seeks by extend the
expiration or manarity of a posation, such 35 a TBA s0aity on an underhing
Aset, by dosing out the podsion Eedore exparation and opeming 4 new
pcesiticn with respeect to substanually the same underhying assen with a Bater
exparation date TBA sequnities purchased or sold are reflected on the
Statemnents of Assets and Labdifies as an asset of lisbility, respectively

fll When-dssued Transections  Certan Funcs may purchase of sell seqmiies
on 3 when-issued batis. Thete rantactions are made conditionally because a
sequwity, although authorized, has not yer been issued im the markes
Tramsactaons o purnchase oe sefl seowities on 3 when4ssued basis imohe

a commitment by a Fund bo purchase of sell these seqsnties for a
predetemuned price oo ywield, with payment and delivery taking place beyond
the customany setement period A Fund may sell when-issued securides
befone thiey are dibvered, which may resultin a realized Gain of leds

{m) Bark Obligatiens Eank obligations inwhich a Fund may invest induds
certificates of depasit, bankers” acceptances, and fixed ime deposits
Certificates of depodit sre negotiable certficates Boued aoaimt unds
depotted in a commendal bank for a definite period of time and eaming a
spedified refurn . Bankers” acceptances are negotiabie drafts of bils of
exchange, nonmally drawn by an importer or exporter fo pay for spedfic
refchandise, which are " aocepbed” by a bank, meaning, in effect. that the
Bank uncondiianally agrees to pay the face valus of the instrument on
maturity. Fixed ime deposits. ahe bank oblgations payable at 4 stated
rnaturity dabe and bearing inferest at a fixed rate Foned time deportits may be
withdrasn on demend by the imeeston, but may be subjea o early
withdrywal penaltes which vary depending upon maket conditons and the
remaining manuity of the cbgation

in] Performance-Lirked Notes Certain Funds invest in performance-linked
niafes that ane issued by Credit Smsse nternational (the "Fee Agent™) and
seel 80 radk the performance of the PIMCO Bermuida income Fund (M)

{” Performance-Linked Notes™) In the case of the IPY Perfomance- Linked
Mcites, rssiped, the perfoemance of sudh notes will b hedged o the lapanese
yen by Crechil Suisse Intemaonsl using & propeetany formita. As eplained in
aresaber ditsll in Mate 9, the Fes Agentwill findnce the payrment of placement
Tt 10 cortain Japanese disributors. In onder for the Fee Agent to hedge
certain of its expasures under the Fes Agent Appointment Agreement (35
cefimed in Kate 9, it is expecied tat from Sme bo Gme cenain Classes of the
PIRACDY Berrmuaca Income Fured £ will invest in Performance- Linked Motes in an
amoant specfied by the Fee Agent At the time of events induding but mot
limited to, amy redemption of wnits of the PIMCO Bermuda income Fund E
and a step-down of the applicable Percentage ConSingent Deferred Sabes
Charge ("C0%C), as defined in Mote 9, the Perfremance-Linked Mofes held
by thoe Fund wil ke partaily redeemed socondingly in onder 10 maintain the
total valwe of Performande-Linked Notes in the Fund's investment portidio
equal o of below the anount of the CDSC applicatiie fo the respecthe
Classes of the Fund plus 0 20% multiplied by the NAY of the respedive
Clases of e Fund Performuan ce-Linked Nabes e valued daly. Theireaiue is
ks o the price dany NAY of the FIMCOD Bermuda Income Fund (W) With
respedt o the value of the 2T Perlormance-Linked hotes, & propretany
hedging formila is also apped The Fund cannot transier the Perfiommance-
Linded Modes 1o any other party aside from the Fee Agentwithout the price
wrilten agreement of the Fes Agent

5. EORROWINGS AHD OTHER FINARCIHG TRANSACTIONS

The fellewing disdosures contaen information on the Funds abdity 1 lend or
Doy cash of securies bo Se extent permraited undes the Ofhening
Mmorandum, which rdy be vasved a4 barrowing of finandng ransacions
by the Funds The location of these instnaments ks desaibed below Fora
detaked desaription of aedt and Couniberpaty risks Bhat can be dasidiated
wath Dorrowangs and aliner fin NG ransactions, please see Note 7,

Prind pal Risks

{#) Repurchese Agresments Certan Funds by engage m repurchase
agresrmentt. Under e temmnd of & fypecal repufchase sofemment,

a Fund purchases an underying debt obligation (collateral) subject 1o an
ciligation of the seller to repurchase, and 3 Fund to resell, the obligation at
&N dgreed-upon price and tme I an open matunty repanchase agreement,
there is no pre-getermin ed repurchase date and te BFeement can be
terminated by the Fund or counterparty at any time. The market value of the
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coflateral marst be equal bo or esceed the total amcunt of the repurchase
obiigations, induding interest Repurchase agreements, nduding acoued
interest, are induded on the Statements of Assets amd Liabilities. interest
eamed B recorded a4 a companent of intenein income of the Stanements of
Opetations. In pefads of moeated demand for caateral, a fund may pay 3
fee bor receipt of collaterd, whach may resull i inferest epente to the Fund

b Aeverze Aepurchass Agreaments Certain Funde may enter into reverss
repurchase sgresmments Ina reverse repurchase agreement, a Fund delivers a
securityin exchange for cash to a fnandal insttution, the counterparty, with
& srmtandous agresment 1o mepurchase the same of substantally the same
security At an agreed upon peice and date In an open MGty reverse
repunchate sgeemnent, them is no pre-detemmined repunchase dane and te
agreement ¢an be termanated by te Fund or counterparty at amy ome

A Furned 15 entited b recedve panopal and interest paaments, if any. madk on
theé secuniby deliviensd To the coumterparty during th term of the FreamEnt
Cash recenved in exchange Tor seaunbies delivered glus sooued interest
paments o be made by a Fund to counterparties are reflected & 3 Rakdity
on the Statements of Assets and Uabilities. nterest payments made by a Fund
i counterparties are reconded a5 3 component of inferest sxperse on the
Statements of Operations. In periods of increased demand for ihe sequrity,

2 Fund may receive a fee bor use of the sedurity by the counterparty, whech
may resull in interest income 1o 3 Fund A Fund will segreqate aisets
determined bo be liquid by PRMCD orwill othenwise cover its obligations
U finesr o8 repurchiate MpeRmenl

i Sele-Buybmsks - Certain Funds may enter into Enancing rarsactons
refermed 1o a5 ‘sde-buybades’ A sale-buybade fnanding ransaction consisty
of a sale of asecunity by 4 Fund 10 2 fnandal insSletion, the counterparty,
with a smultaneous agreement to repurchase the same o substantially the
same securily at an agreed-upon price and date A Funed is not enfitled to
fceeg prend pal and intenest pagmnents, if amy, mdade on the secunty $old o
e CoumlErparty dullrlg e B of the HOPEEIENT The .Jnglg-_-dup'_ﬂ
pioonids dor securities. b be repurchated by o Fund ate reflected a4 a kability
on the Staternents of Assets and Lishilites. A Fund will recognize net incisme
represented by the price dfferential between the price received for the
transferred security and the agreed-upon repurchase price. This is commonly
referred to a5 the price drop’. A price drop consists of ) the forgone inserest
and mBationary income adjusments, if any, a Fundwould hawe ofhensise
received had the security not been sold and (i) the negotiated financing temns,
bebwesn 3 Fund and counterpanty. Foregone interest and inflationary income
acjustments, if any, are recoeded & components of injerest ingme on the
Staterments of Cperations. Intered] payments based upon negatiated finandng
terme madé by a Fund to countemparties are recondisd 25 3 component of
interest expenise on the Statements of Operations. In periods of increased
demand for the seounity, 3 Fend miy recene a fee for we of the sequeiny by
th coumterpaety, whidh may feaulDin interesn income o & Fund. A Fund will
segregale 355ets determanied to be higuid by PIMCO of will o enmse oo ity
o gatcns under sale-tuyback rantaction

idl Short Sales Certain Funds may enter into short sl randactions Shon
sales ane ransactions inwhidh the Fund sells 3 security that it may not cen

A Fumd may muake short saes of sequnities to () offset potential decines in
I pocesitoan & in Sevilar secunities, () o inoease the flexbility of the Fund,
(il Tor inestment retuen, (i) 45 part of a rsk ot Irage drategy, and (V) as
part o il epnral portRalng man a0ement Sratedges mvobang fe use of
derwative insruments. When a Fund engages in & shor sale, it may bomow
the security sold shoet amd defiver it to the counterparty. The Fund wil
ordinasity hawe 1o pay a fee or premium o borow a seauity and be obligated
to repeay thie lender of the secunity any dividend or interest that accues on the
securn by during the period of the loan Sequnties sold in short sale transactions
and the dividend or interest payable on wuch secunities, if any, are reflecied 25

payable for short sales on the Staternents of Assets and Lishilities. Short sabes
expose the Fund to the rigk that it wal be required to cover its short position
at a dmewhen the sequrity or other asset has appredated in value, tus
reslting in boddes b0 the Fund. A shom saleis ~against the boe” if

the Fund holds inits portiolio of has the right to acquine the sscurity sold
shioel, o securities identical 1o the security sold short, 31 no additional cost

A Funed will be subject to addtional ks to the extent that it engages in short
Gales that are not "aganst Se boo ™ A Fund's [oss on & shoft sale oould
[hesoretically be urliemted in cases whine the Fund |5 unsble, Tor whateser
Py, 10 GBoriee U 108 Lhiort poticn

i Line of Credit  PIMCO Bermuds Bank Lean Fund (M) entered into 4 364
dary fenicr uniecured revobing dedil agreerment wath the Bank of Takyo-
Mimsuisha LIE), Led. (" MUEGT) and ether commendal banks 1o be utiized for
Lemporany purposes o fund Unitholder redemplions of fior cthier short-tem
|Il.'|'_lll.'lT,' purpases, MLUFG serves & bath a bank: and as an a0ent for othés
banks thatare partes 1o the agheement. PIMCO Bermeds Bank Loan Furd
(M) pays financing changes based on a combination of LIEGHR-based variable
plus 2 oredit spread  The Fund also pays 2 fee of O 25% per anrum on the
unused commitment mounis. The agreement was renewed on August 21,
2020 and expires on August 28, 2021 unless extended or renewed. There is &
madmiem aailable commitment amount for PIMCOC Bermuda Bank Loan
Fumd (W) equal bo 55,000,000 Prior 10 August 21, 2020, the madimum
Fvalabie commitment amoun] for the Fund was §75,000,000 and the Fund
paid  fee o 027 5% per SnnUm an The unuSsd Cemms et Amounts
Cornmitment, uplront and interest fees of $225.273 pand by PIMCO Bermuda
Bank Loan Fund (M) are included in intenest expense in the Statements of
Oper aSons.

Dunmg the period, thens weng no bomosings on thes. line of oredt

B. FIRARCIAL DERIVATIVE IRSTRUMER TS

The following dsdosures contan information on how andwhy the Funds use
fnandal dervative instruments. and how financial denvative instruments
aftect the Funds” finandal position, results of operaons and cash flows. The
hocation and fair value amounts of these instruments on the Statements of
Aszets and Lisbilities and she net redized gain {Jossh and net change in
unreakzed apprecation {degredation) on the Statements of Operations, sach
caneguodi Zisd by type of financial desmaative Contr SCt and nelsted nde eapcdune,
ane incladed in a st in the Notes to Schedule of ivestiments. The finandal
derivatee INSIIMENDS cutsLanding 2 of period end and the smaunts of net
realized gain (oes) and net change in uneealized appredation (depredation)
on fnandal dervitive nstuments during the period, as dsdosed in the
Ricites. b Sohsecdide of Imestments, serveas inckcasors of the volume of
frandal deivative activity for the Furds

| Forvward Forsign Currency Contracts Certain Funds may engage in
Fonws ardd Foeidn Currendy OORIACH in comnection with setting plardied
purchases or sales of sequrites, 1o hedge the qumendy exposure assodated
with some or 31 of 3 Fund's secuniies of &5 Pt of an investment srategy. A
fonw ard foreign qumency contract is an agreement bebween two parties 1o buy
and sl § umency ata sel price on a future date The market valos of 3
forwrand foreign cumency contract fluchuates with changss in foreign aumency
exchange rates Forward foreign curmency contracts are marked 1o markeq
daily, and the change in value is reconded by a Fund as an unrealized gain o
beess, R b aired OF Lok are edual 10 the difference betaeen the value of
the comnbract at the Grme it was opened and e value 3t the tire ivwas dosed
and are reconded updn defveny or receipd of the urendy. Thede confracts
may inmvohve markel risk in excess of the unrealized gan or loss refected on
the Statements of Assets and Liskdlines. In addion, & Fund could be expoted
Lo sk o Rhee COUNTEpARees Are umable 1o meel Me tems of tie conracts o o
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the value of the asrency changes unfavorably to the fnciional cumency. To
mitigate auch risk, cash or sequrities may be exdhanged & collaterd purasant
to Ehe terms of the underying conracts

Certain Funds, hiaving a hedged Class, ray alo enter mbo foreand fonegn
currency contracts designed o offset the effect of hedging at the Fund bevel in
onder 1o |edve the hedged Class with an exposiee 10 Qamencies other than the
functional aemency. There can Be no quarante: that these Class spedfic
forward foreign cumrency conmracts will be suocessiul

ib] Futures Contracts Certam Fumds may enter into futures confracts A
fulfes CONBRACE 15 40 Sgréement bo by of Sl 3 secunity or ofher asset o &
st price an & future date and is if sded on an exchange. A Fund may use
fulures ConMracts o manage it epasure 1o the wedurilies markets o 1o
crerments im infenest rates and oumency values. The pomany risks assodated
with e use of futures coniracts are the imperfect comelation betueen the
ichange en markel value of e seantes hebd by 3 Fund and the praes of
Tutpres contrects and the posability of an dliqued marker. Rabines contraas
are vaiued based upon their quobed daily settlement prices. Upon enfesing
Inbe & futures confract, @ Fund s required to depositwith its futures broker an
amount of cash, U'S Governmentand Agency Ofiligations, of select sowereign
debt, in accordance with the mitial margin requirements of e broker or
exdhange Futures contracts are marked 1o market dady and based on swch
micwements in the price of the condracts, an appeopiate payable or recesvable
for the change in value may be posted or collected bey the Fund (™ Futures
Wariation Margn ") Futures Vanasion Mangins, if any, are disdosed within
ceiraly deared finandal dervative instruments on the Statements of Asets
and Liatadities. Gains of |ogses ané necodrized but not dordicdéred realized il
the contracts expire of dose. Futures conlracts imvdlve, 10 varying dedgress,
risk: of boss I emcess of the Fuures Vanation Margin induded within
exdhange raded of centrally deaned fimancial desivathe insruments on e
Statermnts of Adsets and Labeliies

el Optiors Contraces  Certain Funds may write or purchase options fo
enhednce fetums of Lo hedge an existing posibon o e mvesrment Cetdin
Funds may waite call snd pul options on seqirites and finandd denvative
instruments they oam of in which they may imdest Winting put options tends
10 inrease & Fund's exposure i the undedying insmument. Wridng call
options tends o dedrease a Fund's exposure bo the ﬂf‘d?":ftl'll:] ST
When & Fand wites a call or pul, 30 amount Quad 1o the prermum recensed 14
recorded and subsequenthy marked tomarket to reBect the current value of
the opticn written. These amounts are induded on the Statements of Assets
and Lizinlities. Fremiums received from writing options which expire are
freated a5 realized gairs. Premiums receved from writing aptions whidh ane
exprdted of dosed are added to the procesds or offset against amounts paid
on the underbing futures, svap, securnily or cumency rancaction to detemine
the realized gain or loss. Certain options may be written wath premiums to be
determined on a fubure date The premiuers for these opfions are based upon
irnplied wolatiity parameters at speified terre. A Fund a5 3 writer of an
aplion has nd conthal ower whether the undeilying instrument may be soid
(Teall™) o purchased (Tput™) and 25 a result bears the market risk of an
uniavorable change in the peice of te insirument underlying the wiithen
option Thene 15 the risk @ Fund may not be able 1o enter into & dosing
ransacuon because of an (B d manke

Certain Funds may also purchase put and call opSons, Purchasing call options
tends to inrease 3 Fund's exposure 1o the ynderying insfrument. Purchasng
put opBons tends to decrease a Fund's exposure to the underhying instument
A Funed part a prermium whadh i4 induded 44 an asset on the Staterments of
Assels and Lishdities and subsequently marked to market to reflect the
current value of the oplion. Premiums paid for pundhasing aptiors which
expure are redted 5 realized losses. Cenain options may be purdhased with
presmuns 1o be deterrined on 2 fubure dite. The premiums for tese apSons

e based wpon implied vol atility parameters at specified tems. The sk
assodated with purchasing put and call options is limited to the premium
paid. Premiums paid for purchasing options which are exerdsed or dosed are
Added o the smaunts paid or off4el sgaindt the proceed on the undeiying
ImseSiment ransacnon 1o determmane the redized gain of loss when the
underhing Iransaction is executed

Credit Default Swapions Ceman Funds may wiite of puichase aedt default
awaptions io hedge expomure to the credt itk of an imestment without
making & commitment to e wnderhing instrument. A qedt default swaption
Is an option to sl or buy oedt protection to 3 speaific reference by entering
inilo & pre-defined swap sgresment by some spedied date in the future

Forgign Currercy Options  Ceain Funds maywiite of purchase foreign
currency options bo be used a5 3 shoet o long hedge aganst possible
warkatons in foreign exchangs rates or 00 Qan exposre W ﬁ}ﬂ?ll}'l (RIS

Indlation-Capped Dptiens Certain Furds may wiile of purchase inflation
capped options to enhanoe fretums of for hedgng opportunities. The purpose
o punchasing inflaton-capped opticans is 10 protect 4 Fund fham nflation
erotion shove 3 certain Fate on 3 given rotional exposure A floor can be
wsed o give downside protection 10 imvestments in inflation-inked products

Iranrest Rate Swaptiens Certain Funds may wiite or purchase interest rate
awaptions which are oplions to enfer inbo a pre-defined swap agreement or
Lo sheetien, extend, cancel of obhensase roddy & exitting Swap agresment,
by some spedfed date in e future. Thewriter of the Svaption becomes the
counterpaty o the swap il e buyer exendses Thie inberest rate svaplion
agreement will spedify whether the buyer of the swaption wil be a feced-race
receier of & fied-rate payer Upon exerdse

Dptiors on Exchange-Traded Futures Comracts Certain Funds may write o
purchase opions on exchange-raded futures confracts (" Rutures Oplion ™) o
Fiscdige A 03N G pOSBOR of Ribiane imesiment, for dpeculative purpses of 1o
Fianage sxporure 10 markel movements. A Futunes Qplion i an option
contractin which the undedying instrument is a snghe fulunes contract

Dptiors on Securities Certan Funds may wite or purchase optices o
securibes 1o enhance returns of 10 hedge an exsling position or fulure
imeestment An oplion on 3 secunity uses 3 spedfied sequnity as the underfying
irstnement fior the option contract

il Swwap Agreemants Certain Funds may imvest in swap agreements. Swap
agreements ane biaterally negotiated agresments between a Fund and 3
counterpany ho exchange o swap investment cash flows, assets, Toreign
currencies of market-linked returns at spedied, future imervals. Swap
agreements may be pevately negotiated in the OTC market or may be deared
throwgh a third party, knowmn as 3 central counberparty or derivatives dearing
organization ("centrally deared swaps”). A Fund may enter inlo asset. cedit
el UL, T osS-Currency, Inbenest fFAE, DOLA return, wansnce and ofer fomns of
SAD AgreRments i Mandge its mdpasire 1 credil, aumendy, inlenest rate,
commodiy, equity and infation msk In connection with theds sgreements,
securibes of Gish may be identified a5 collaterd or margin in accordance with
thoe terms of the respective swap aglesments 1o provice assets of valpe and
recourse in the svent of default o benl naphcyfnsolven oy

Centrally deared swags are marked to market dally barsed upon valuations ac
determined from the underfying coniract or in acooedance with the
requirements of the ceniral counterparty or derivatives dearing orgarization
Changes in market value, if any, are reflected 44 2 component of net dhange
In undeaized appredation (depredation) on the Statements of Operations
sl chamges in valuation of cenftrally deared swaps ("Swap Vanation
Margin™), if ary, are disdosedwithin centrally deared finandd denivative
IFSRAETEATS O (e Statements of Assets and Labilitees. OTC Swap paymments
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received or paid at the beginning of the measurement period are induded on
the Statements of Assets and Liabifities and represant premiums paid or
received upon entering into the swap agreement b compensate for
ditierences between the Wated termd of the swvap agreement and prevailing
market conditions (credt spreads, asrendy eochange rates, interest ranes, and
offer relevant tactors). Upfront premiams recaived §aid) are inidally recorded
as [Eabilities {avsats) and subsequently marked to market 1o réflect the cument
walug of e Swap. These uplront premiurms ae recorded a5 realized gans of
Ipssees. on the Statements of Operations upan Tammination o maturity of e
wap. A hauidaion payment recered of made a1 S lemmnaon of the avap
I reoonded & realiped gam or 085 an the Statements of Opsrations. Net
perodic payments received or pald by 3 Fund are induded a5 part of realized
Qang of |os5es on the Statements of Operations

For pusposes of applding certain of 2 Fund's investment polides and
restrichons, Swap agreements, like other deriwative instruments, may be
vaued by a Fund at market valwe, notiond value or full exposure value in the
e of doredit default ovap, & apphing cerain of she Fund's investment
e ot and restictons, the Fend wall walie the aedindetault swap atits
national value of its bl exposure valae §.e, the sem of the notional amoent
for the contract plus the market value), bul may value the aredit dedault swap
at market value for purposes of apphing certain of ®e Fund's other
iFnvestment pelices and resirictions. For example, She Furd mayvalue aedt
detault swaps 31 full exposure value for purposes of the Furd's oredit quality
guidelines, (if any) because wch value in generd better refiects the Fund's
At economic exposure duning the term of the oredt default swap
agreement. As 3 result, 3 Fund may, at imes, have nosional exposure 1o an
aseet dass (before nertings that & greater of lesser than the stated limit o
restricBon noded in the Fund's Ofeing Memorandum. In this context, both
the noticnal amount and the market value may be posifive of negative
depending on whether the Fund i selling or buying protedion through the
credit default swap The manner in which certain securities or other
InasnusTuen s ane valued by thie Fund lor purpeses of apphang imedmnent

Pt 35 and restrichons may deler tnom the manner in which those
irmeiiments ane valued by ofher bypes ofinvestons. Entening info swap
agresments involves, to vaning degrees. elements of inferest, aedit, market
and dooumentation risk in excess of the AU TS reognized on the
Statements of Assers and Lisbelities. Such fisks invalve the possibaling that
Theesne el e n liquind kgt Tof thedi agresments, thal e Counlerparmy’ o
the agresments may default on its obligation to perfom or disagree &5 o the
meaning of contraciual tenms in the agreements and that there may be
unigvorable changes in interest rates or the values of the assel upon which
the i s bated

A Funed's masdrmum itk of logs Srom cobnberparty credit sk is the discounied
nen vaiue of the cash fows [0 be received from the countepany ower de

O ACES remuning I, bo the extent har amount = posthe. The Ask may
b rrutiganed by haning a mdster fetting arangement betaeen a Fund and
the: counterparty and by the pasting of collateral 1o a Fund 10 cover & Fund's
expasire bo the counberparty

Tio the etent a Fund has 3 policy 1o limit the net amount owed o or 10 be
received fnom a Sngle counterparty under existing swap agreements, such
v taticen anly applies. b colnerpanties 1o OTC fieaps and dess not apply 1o
cenraly dedred swapd whine the Counterparty is 4 cenlr counterparty of
disfirvdives deaning ofganizaton

Credit Delault Swap Agreements Certain Funds may enter into aedt default
swars on corporate, laan, sowerdign, LS. municipal o U5 Treasury issues o
provide 3 meaure of protection aganst defaults of the lssuers 4 &, 00 redie
risk where & Fund oo of has exposune to the relerenced abliganon) of W
take an o long of $hor postcn with respect 1o the Eketitodd of 4
partaoular jssuer's delsuln Credinaedaull swap agresments imohve oni pamy

making a stream of payments (refered 10 a5 the buyer of proteciion) 1o
ancther party (the seler of profection) in exchange for the right 1o receive a
spedfied retum in the event that the referenced endity, obligation or index, 2
spedfied B the swap agreement, undengoes J cerlain cradl evenl A 3 solle
ol protectsan on credit default swap sgreerments, a Find wil generally recenm
frorn the buyer of protection 2 Tooed rate of indome Sroughoat the term of the
swap prowided that there is o dredil event As the seller, a Fundwould
effectively add lewerage b its portiolio because, in aadbion (o it 1wl net
aiats, the Fund wiould be subject [0 imasiment exposune on the notichal
amacaunt of the wwap

if & Fund s & seller of protection and 2 gedit event ooours, & defined under
the terme of that partiodar swap agreement, 3 Fund will either () pay o the
buryer of probection an amount equal 1o the notional amount of the swap and
Lake delivery of the raferenced obligation, ather deliverable obligations or
undeshying secunties comprising the referenced index or (i) pay a net
setement amount in te form of cash of sequrnites squal to the notional
armount of thee 9wap less the redovry value of the referenced obligation of
unclying secunties comprsing the referenced ndex. B 2 Fund 15 4 buyer of
protecton and & credl event ooours, a5 defined under the Lerrre of that
particular wwap agresment, a Fundwall either (i) recahve from the saller of
protecson an amount equal ke e notional amount of e swap and deliver
the referenced obligaton, ofher deliverable obligations of undertying
SECUTIRES COMPNSING he refeninced index o (1) redenie & net setlement
amcamt i Hee form of cash or securities equal bo the nofional amount of the
wap bess the recoveny walue of the referenced obligation or underhing
securites comprising the referenced index. Recovery values are esimated by
market makers considering either industry standard recovery rates of entity
spedfic tactars and congideratons until a credit smentocturs. fa oedit event
has gooumed, the recoveny valie is determined by a fadlitated auction
whereby a minimum rumber of allowable broker bidk, together with a
spedfied valuation metod, are used to caloulate the setlement value The
ity 20 delier other obligytichs may result in 4 dhespedl-lo-dener option
(e barger of prabechon’s nght o dhoose the delnesatie cbligaton wath the
howeeies? vaitu following a aredh event)

Creecy defaslt swap agreements on ed 1 indices imvolve one party making a
stream of payments o ancther pamy in exchange far the Aght o recehve a
ipadified retum in the event of a weite-down, prindpal shortfall, intesest
shortfall or default of all or part of the referenced entiSes comprising the
aedit index. A qedt index is a basket of gedit instruments of exposures
desigred 10 be reprecentative of some part of the gedit market 2 2 whole
These indies are made up of relerence cedits hat ane judged by a poll of
dealers i be the most Bquid entities in the credit defaull swap market based
on the sector of the index Components of the indices may indude, but ane
ok limised bo, imvestment grade secunties, high yeeld sequnies, aset-Dacked
SeOMitES, eangng markets, andionvaious credt ramgs within eadh secor
Crisehi [ irvchoes Are traded udng aredit defaull Swags vath standard ed Lisms
indudng a foed speead and standard maturity dates. An index aredt detaul
awap references all the names in the index, and if there i a default, the oredit
event is settled based on that name's weight in the index. The compositon of
the indces changes perigdically, usually every six months, and for most
Imdices, edch name has an equal weight in the indec, A Fumd may use oedt
default smaps on aredit indices 1o hedge a portiolio of aedit default swaps or
bonds, whidh is less expen sive than it would be b buy many aedt default
awvape o achieve a similar effect Credit default swaps on indces are
imtenmmaents for probecting mwestirs owning bonds against default, and
trackers use them 1o speculate on changes in aredit quality

Inplied et spreads, represenied in absclute tenms, willized in detemining
the ket value of dedit default Swap agresments on cMpTate, loan,
sovereagn. L85 munidpal oe LS. Treasury sues 3 of period end, If any, ae
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dischozed in the Mobes to Schedule of investments. They serve a3 an indicator
of the owrent status of paymentiperformance risk and represent the likelibood
or sk of defaut for the referenced entity. The impled gedit spread of 2
particular referenced entty neSects 1he ookt of buying’eling pratection and
iy indude uptiont payrments requaned to be made to enter iRk he
agreement. Wider credit speeads repoesent A déferiaration of the referenced
entily’s credt soundress and a greater [ikelihood or risk of default or cther
credit event oo0aTing a5 detved wnder the e of the sgeetment. For aredin
default swap sgreemments on aset-backed tecurites snd credit indices, the
quaciid kel praoes and resding values tenve 35 e mocion of the aument
skatus of the paymentperfoemance ik indreasing market values, in abicdute
terms when companed to the nofional amount of the avap, represent a
detericration of the referenced entity's aredit soundness and 3 greater
likefinood o fsk of default or other aedit event ooosming a5 defined ynder
the terms of the agreement

The maxdmum potentia amount of future payments (undsoounted) that

& Fund &5 & seller of probecton ooubd be required to make under 3 dedit
dutault swap agredrment quals e notional amount of the sgnestment
Hational amounts of each individizal aedit defall s ap agreement
outdandng & of pérod end for whids & Fund is e seller of pratection afe
dhischosed in the Mates o Schedule of vestments These potential amounts
wiolhd be parti sty offcet by any recovery values of the respective referenced
obligaticns, upfront payments receled upon enteing Ino the agreement, of
net amounts received from the setlement of buy probection aedit defaut
swap agreements entered inbo by & Fund for the same referenced entify or
enfities

Interest Rate Swap Agrasmants Certain Funds are drbject tainterest rate
risk exposure in the noemal course of pursuing their imesiment ckjecives
The valiee of the fixed rate bomds hat a Fund holds muy decrease if interes
rates ise. To help hedge gama hisnsk and o mantsn it ability to
generade ingome 3t prevailing market rabes, 2 Fund may enter into inferest
rate swap agreements. Interest rabe owap agreements inwodve the exchange
by a Fundwith another party for thedr respective commetment to pay or
receve mierest on the notional smount of prindipal Cenain forms of interest
rate Seap agresments may indude: (i) interest rate caps, under whidh, in
return for 3 premium, one party agress o make payments o the other to the
exfent thal interest rates exceed 3 spedfied rate, or "cap”, (i interest rate
floors, under which, in retum for 2 premium, one party agrees to make
pyrienls b the other 1o the extent hat nenest raties Tl below 4 peafed
rale, of “Hoor”, (i) interest rate oollars, under which & party el 3 cap and
purchases 3 floor of vie virta in an attempl Lo protect teel] aganst intenest
FatE MOVEMen s exceeding grven minimum o maimim |evels, {iv) callatee
Imeerest rate swaps, under which the buyer pays an uplront fee in
conaderation for the Thgh B0 edily (eAminate the swap iransaction 0 whole,
AL Terg cosl &nd At predetermined date and e prod 1o the maturiny dae,
) spreadocks, which aliow the interest rate swap users 10 lodk in the
forwrard differential {oe spread) between the interest rate ssap rate and a
spedified benchmark, or §W) basis svaps, under which two parties can
exchangs vaniable interest rates based on different segments of money
markete

Teotal Retumn Swap Agresments Certain Funds rmay enter Into 100 retwm
S AP EERTHENTS [0 QI OF BN exposure Lo the underdying reference
Total rehem swap agresments innohve corimitmen s where single o multiple
a3 Sows are exchanged based on the price of an underying reference asset
andon a fied o variable interest rate. Tiotal return swap agreements may
Irrvohve commitments 1o pay interest in exchange for 3 market-inked refurn
Omee counterparty pays cat the total return of 3 spediic undedying reference
azel, which may indude a single secunity, 2 batket of secunifies, or an index,
and in retum receives a fimed or variable rate. At the maturity date, a net cash

ot it exchanged where the total rebsn 15 equivalent 1o the return of the
undeehying reference asset less a finandng rate, if any. As a receiver, a
Fund weould receive payments based on amy positve total return and would
o purgTents in the event of 3 negatiee fatal retum. A% the paver, 3

Rimnd would owe payments on any posithve total reharn, and would recénse
payments in the event of 4 el negative total retum

T.PRINCIPAL AND OTHER RISKS

I8 Prircipal Risks In the nomal course of business, the Funds {or Acquired
Fund(sy, if applicable) trade finanda instroments and enter intp finandal
transachond where risk of potential loss exists due 10 such hings a4 dhanges
i the market (market riskh or faune or inability of the ather party 1o 3
transacion to perfam (cedit and counterparty risk) See below for a detailed
desoription of select prndgal rks

Fured of Funds To the extent that certain Funds imvest substantially 2 of their
respecive assets in Acquired Fund(s), e risks assodated with imesting in
thete Funds will be disely redated to the rides assodiabed with the seounties
and ofher irvestments held by the Acquined Fund(s) The ability of the Funds
10 chieve Huer respective mestment objectves may depend upon the ability
of the Aoguired Fund(s) to achiewe their respective investment objecives
There can be no asaurance |al the imvesiment obgecive of any Acquired
Fumniad(s) wall be achosved The MAV of an #E-;}mlﬂg Faired il Biicniane i
FiEspoicie 10 changes in the respacinee NAY of the Acquened Fundis) in which it
Iroests

In the nomal oourse of business, Acquired Fund(s) trade finandal instuments
and enter inkg finandial ransactions where risk of potential loss exss due 1
changes in the market (market nsk), of Lalure or inability of the other party to
2 ransaction 1o perform {oredit and counterparty ridk)

Performarce-Linked Notes Risk T the exent each of the B-J 1605 (FY), B
1605 (USDR, B=1 1609 (1FY), B 1609 (USCY, B-J 1612 (FY) and B 1612
(LAD) Classes of the FIMCO Bammipda income Fund E invest in Performance-
Linkedt Motes, they will forego ceher investment opportunities, which could
negativedy impact the pericemande of sudh Class. I sddition, such
Performance- Linked Mobes are ursecured obligaticns of Credt Susse
ntemational and so the (Rasses are expated to e aredit ridk of Credit Swisse
International . Furthermore, fhe Performance-Linked Notes will be adversaly
aftected in the event of 3 default, reduced credit rating o deterioration in the
sohven 0y of Cred Suitee intsnationa

Market Risks A Find's investments in finangal dervative instruments and
other finand 2 instuments expose the Fund 1o vagious fisks sudh a5, but not
fimiited to, interest rate, foreign {ron-LI 5 ) currendy, equity and commaodity
risks

Inngisal rane risk i e sk Bt Bmed income seaurines and othes mammmNLS
el by 4 Fuined mrdny dedling in value becaute of 30 indresss ininterest rates If
nominal interestranes e, the value of certan Bxed income seorities held by
2 Fundwiotld likely derease. A nominal interest rate can be desoibed &5 the
sum of a real Imterest rane and an expected inflation rate mMerest rane
changes can be sidden and unpredictabie, and a Fund may [ose money @
thete dhanges ae Aol ant opated by Fund management. A Furd may not be
aole iy hedge against changes in interest rates or may choose not to do 5o for
cost or ofher reasons InaddiSon, amy hedges may not work as intended

Duraticn is A measire used b delenming the Wnstaly of a teunty™s prce 1o
changes i interest rates that inoorponates a secusity™ yield, coupon, final
raturity and call features, among other characteristics. Comvenity is an
addfonal meature wsed 10 understand a security™s or Fund's interest rate
sensithaty that medsures the rate of thange of dhration in response 1o
changes o inlefestrates Fosd mooime Seou bes wilh longer durations tend
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to b mmaore sensitive to dhanges in interest rates, wwally making them mone
wolatile than sequrities with shorer dorations. A wide variety of factors can
catrse interest rates of yields of U % Treasury secunties {or vields of other
Typied of bondk) 10 rise (&g, contral bank monetary palices, inflation rabes,
genefal economic conditans, ebe ). This is especially nue under current
condBons because interestrates and bond yields are near historically low
leswels. Thass, the Funds aurrently face a heighten ed level of sk assodated
with risng interest rates andfor bond vields. This could be driven by a variery
of factors, imduding but not Emited 1o ceniral bank monetiry polices,
chandgng inflaton of real of tweih rates, general eoonomec condtions,
increasang bond istuances of reduced rarket demand fof low yielding
Irrvestments. Further, while LS bond markets feave steadily grown over the
past three decades, dealer “marbet making” ability has remained relatvely
stagnant. Given the impomance of imermedary “market making” in geating
A robust and active market, fxed income sequnties are currently

fadng increased wolatilitg and liquidity risks. All of these factors, collectively
andfor indvidudly, could cayse 3 Fund to lose value. B the Fund lost enough
walue, the Fund could face ineased Unitholder redemplions, which could
further impair it perioemance. Ao, the Fund may be sdver ey affected
wihen a large Unitholder pundhases of redeems Lange amounts of units, which
can oo at any e and may impac e Fund in e same manner 5 2 high
vitume of redermption reqeests Large Linithalider mansacions may impad
the Fund's :r]'.ll"ll'y'afl'd met assed value Sudh TanSacmions may a0 noeise
the Fund's Farsaction cosds or odheraise cause e Fund o |2\-:|"f-TI"I'I
ditierently than intended . Moneow, e Fund 15 sutyec o the nd that
oher Unitholders may make imeestment dedsons based on the dholces of 3
large Linithobder

A Funed may have dgnificant exposine 1o issuers in the United Kingdom The
United Kingdom's dedsion 1o leave the European Union may impact Fund
refurns. This dedsion may cause swbstantidl wolatility in foreign exchange
markets, lead toweakness in the exchange rate of the Bnitish pound, residt in
& sustained period of market usostainty, and desLabeize Lomé o all of the
ather Esropean Linion merber counines andior the Eurozon:

Foresgn (non-L1 5. ) sequrities in this report e dassified by the country of
incorporation of & hlding in certain instances, 3 seouity’s country of
incorgoration may be different from its country of economic exposure

it a Fund imvests directly in foreign (non-U 5} camendes of in sequrities that
trade in, and recedve revenues in, foreign {non-LU % ) aemendies, of in finandal
diemative snstruments that provide expodune to boresgn {nan-LS ) curmences,
it il e subject bo thie risk that those currendes will dedine in value redative
16 the base currendy of the Fend, or, in the case of hedging poditions, that
the Fund's base currency will deding in valle relalive 10 the qamency being
hedged Cumency rates in forelon courdries may flecuane significanty over
shoen o, of time for 3 numbser of ressons, indudng dhanges in interest
rales, ntervention (or the Ladune 00 nterene) by LS or fneign governments,
cenfral banks or supranationa enfities such as the infemational Monetany
Fund, of by the impositon of qemency controls of other political developments
in e United $tates or abeoad. AS 3 result. 3 Fund's invesiments in foreign
cumency-denominated secunites may reduce the Rund's rsums

The market values of equities, sudh 2 common stocks and prefemed sequrities
o ety related imvestments such as futures and oplions, have Festorically
risen and fallen n periodic opdes and may dedine due 1o general marke
condiBon which are not specScally relaned to & partiod s company, sidh a8
reall of perciived ddverse sdonofmic condions, changes in the general

oitlock: for corporate eaming, changes 0 intenest of gumency rates, b
health emengendies, such a5 the spread of infecthous liness of dsease, of
adkerse Imvestor sentiment generaily. They may aiso dedine due o tadions
whidh affect a paricular Industny oF incusiies, sich a5 labor shoftages of
ingeased production costs and competitive conditions within an industry

[ufferent types of equity secamities may read differendy to these
dewelopments. Equity sequrities and equity reated investments generally have
greater market price volatiity than fized income sequifes

Certain Fundk may et in Cenain instnaments fat rely in some {askion
upon LIBOR. LIBOR is an pevage inlerest rane, deterrmined by the 1ZE
Benchmark Administraton, that banks change cne another for the use of
hoet-temm morey. The Linited Kingdom’s Finandal Condua Autherity, wiedh
requlates LIBOR, has announced plans 1o phase out te use of LIBOR by the
end of 2021, The rarditon oy result in 4 reduceon i the value of Cerlamn
irstruements held by a Fund o a reduction in the effectivenass of related Fund
tranzacsions such a5 hedges. There remairs uncertamty regarding future
ulilizaticn of LIBCHR and the nature of amy replacement rate (&.q.. e Sequred
Cwermight Finanang Rate, whech is intended 1o replace U5 dollar LIBOR and
regies the cost of owemight bomowings thraugh repurchase agreement
ransactons collateralized with U5 Treasury secunties), and any potential
effiects of the transition away from LIBDR on a Fund or on certain instuments
Ievwitdch 2 Fursd imaests ané nat knowe and coubd result inlosses o a Fund

Begiteiing in Lanuary 2020, global financal markels hawe expetienced and
My continue 1o expenence significant valatlity remlting from the spread of 3
niwed coronavinus known as COVID-19. The outbreak of COVID-19 has
resulled m travel and Dorder resmonons, quarantines, supply chan
disnuptions, lower consumer demand and general marked uncerlainty. The
gobal economy, the economies of certain nations and indiidual issuers have
been and may confinue bo be adversely affected by COVID-19, particulaty in
light of e interconnecivity between economies and Fnandal markets, al of
witnch may negatively impact the Funds’ performance. in addinon, O0VID-19
and governmental responses b COVID-19 may negatively impact the
capabilitees of the Funds' senvice providers and drsrupd the Funds’ operatsons

Credit and Counterparty Risks A Fund wall be expoded 1o credit sk 1
parties with whom it trades and will dso bear the rsk of setfement default
A Funed manimizes concentrations of credit risk by undertaking ransactions
with a large number of qustomens and counterparsies on recogrized and
reputatie exchandges, where appiicable. OTC desivatiee transactions are
subgect 1o the risk that a coumterparty 1o the ramsacton wall not fulfdl its
contracheal obfigations ta the ather party, as many of e protections atforded
to centrally deared denwative transactions might nol be available for OTC
derivate rardactions For demvaives raded on an exdange of Brough 3
Ciiral coun lerparty, (hedin ek resdes with the credibvortin e of

the Fund's deaning broker, of the deannghouse maedl, rather than 1o a
counterpany in an OTC derivatve ransaction. Changes in regulation relating
t & Funed's use of derivatives and refated instruments could patertially limit
of impact the Fund’s akility te mvest in derivatives, Bmit the Furd's abiliny to
employ cefain serategees 131 wse derivalives andior Jdversely affect the value
or perfrmance of dervatives and the Fund. A Fund could lose money if the
issuer or quarantor of 2 fixed ncome seaarity, of the counterparty to a
finandal denivative instnuments contract, reporchase agreement o a boan of
portiolio seourities, is unabbe or svwilling to make Bmely prindpal and'a
initerest payments, of b otheswidse honor it obligations. Seaxities and
fmandal denvative instnuments are subject 10 vanmng dedgrees of aredit mek,
wiich may be reflected in credit ratings

Similar to oredi risk, & Fund may be expdsed b0 counberpanty sk, of the nik
that an insitution of othes entitywit which a Fund has unsemled o open
ransactons will default PIMCE, a5 the Manager, minimizes counterparty
risks to the Funds through a number of ways. Prior to entering into
trassactions with a new counteparty, the PIMCO Counterparty Risk
Commenies conducts an extensive qedt review of sich CoUnBIparty amd must
pprowe the use of such counterparty. Furthermaone, poripant to the terms of
the undeshying confract, bo the exient that unpaid amotents awed o 3 Fund
expeed a predatemined threshold, such counterparty shall advance collateral
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to a Fumd in the form of cath or sequnties equal in valee to the unpaid
amount owed to 3 Fund A Fund mayinvest sudh colaterd in securities or
ather nstruments and will typically pay interest to the counterparty on the
ooilateral recerved. It the unpaid amourt cwed 10 4 Fund wbtequenty
decreases, 3 Fund would be requred to feturmn bo e countemparty all of a
pation of the collateral préviously adwanded. PIMCO™ altempts 1o minimize
cosinferparty nisk may, however, bé unsuccessiul

'-'._'frﬁliﬂ';ﬂ?l'ﬁ converible seaunies (T OoCos™) afe 4 form of hytrid dedR sedunty
s primanly by pon-LLS. issiers, which have loss dbiomplion mechamsms
bult into their terms. Colos have no stated maturity, have fully discreGonany
coupons and are ypicaly isssed in the form of subcrdinated debs
instnements. CoCos generally sither comeertinto equity of the issuer o have
thest prinapal written diwn upon the edorrende of cérain Mggenng ewents
(" iriggers™) Hinked bo regulatcey capital thretholds cr regulatony acticns
relating to the issuer's confinued viabdlity. As a resul, an investment by a
Fundin CoCos is subject to the risk that coupon (.2, intersst) payments may
B cancellnd by the Koo of 8 requlatony suhonty in onder i help thie e
atroit louses AR imvesinent by 3 Fund n CoCors 15 also subyect 1o the ek
that, in the event of the liqedation, dssolubion of winding-up of an e
pitor bo @ mgger evenl, & Fund's nights and daims will generally rank jussor
1o the daims of holders of the iswer's other debt obligations. In add tion, if
CoCos held by 3 Fund are comverned inte the sspes’s underhing equity
seaurities following 3 migger event, the Fund's holding may be furthes
subordinated due to the gvversion from a debt to equityinstrument In
certan soenarios, irvestors in CoCos may auffer a loss of capital ahead of
equity holders o when equity idders do not. There i no guarantee that a
Furnd will receive  retum of prindpal o CoCos. Any indication that an
Autdmatic write-down of ooMerson event may oour can be expected to have
an adverse effect on the market price of CoCos. CoCos are often rated below
imvestment grade ard are swbject to the risks of high yield securities. Bacause
ColCos are issued primarly by finandal institutions, CoCos may present
subrsnantially increased noks at ormes of finandal hemoal, whidh could affec
linancal mshtubons mone than companess in ofher scior and ndus mes
Furthes, the value of an investment in CoCos is unpredicable and will be
infisenced by many factors and isks, induding inferest rate risk, gedit ik,
marked risk and ligudity risk. An imveestment by a Fund in CoCos may result in
losses s the Fand

Al ramsactions in listed securnities are settled/paid for upon delivery using
gpproved counterpartes. The sk of defadt is considered minimal, as delivery
of seawities sold is only made once a Fund has recesved pagment. Fayment is
made on a purchase onoe e searites have been delrened by the
oounterparty. The tradewill fad if either party L2l to meet it obligaion

] Diker Risks In general, each Fund may be swlbject o additional risks,
induding, but not limited to, risks related (o government requlation and
intervenSion in finandal markets, operational risks, rsks assodated with
finangal, ecnomic and gobal market disruptioes, and opbercecurity isks
Mease refer toeach Fund's offering doquments for & more detaled
desiption of the riges of investing in the Fund

Market Disruptions Risk The Funds are subgect 10 mvestment and
operasonal risks asodated with finsnda, economic.and other global market
developments and disruptions, induding those arising fromwar, terroriem,
market manipufation, govemment interventions, defaults and shutdowns,
politcal changes or dplomatc developments, public health emergendies
{such as thie spread of infectios diseases, pandemics and epidermics) and
naturaliemvironmental disasters, which can all negatively impact the seduities
markets, interest rates, auctions, secondary trading, ratings, aed! sk,
inflaticen, deflation and other factars refating to the Fund's irvestments o e
M dged s operatons amd Chuse 4 Furd 10 lose value, These events may have
acherse |l.'l'lg'[l:l'm efects on e U5 snd world economees and markets

generally These events can also mmpar the technaliogy and other operational
gy tens wpon which a Fund’s service providers, induding PIMCO as the
Funds' imvestment adviser, rely, and could otherwize disrupt a Fund’s senvice
providers’ abalty to fulfll their obfigations 1o the relevant Fund. Fof example,
the spread of an nfechons respiratony ilness caused by a novel siram of
coronanes (knicwn a5 COVID-19) has cauted volatility, severe rnarkes
dislocations and ligquidity donsiraints in many markes and may adversiely
affecta Fund's investments and aperations

Goverrmant Intervention in Finencisl Markets Federal, slate, and other
governments, their reguilatony agendes, or self-regul atory organizations may
Lake acbons thal athect the requlation of the instrusnents in which 4 Fund
irneests, oF the jsswers of such Bndtruments, in ways that are unforetesabie
Liegesaten o requlation may also change the way in which 4 Fund itself is
reguiated Such legislation or regulation could limt o predude a Fund's
aoility to dchiewe IS irvestment objective. Furthemmaone, volatle financal
Frarkogts a0 expaose 4 Fund s gredter masket nd liquedity ndk and patendal
dfficulty in vakuing portfolio nsenaments heid by she Fund. The value of a
Funds haldings 14 also generally subyect to Me risk of Tuture local, national, o
gobal economic dsturbances based on unknown weaknesses i the markets
inwhich & Fund invests, i addition, it is not certain that the U S Govemment
will intenvene in response 1 a future market dsturbande and the effed of any
suich future intencention cannot be predicted. it is difault for isners o
prepare for the impact of future financial downturns, although companies can
seek fo identity and manage future uncertainties thaough risk management
programes

Ragulatory Fesk Rnancial entities, such a5 mvesiment companies and
Ienesimient adkisers, are generally subject o extemsive gowernment regula0on
and Inbenen tion Gﬂmmenr.rewla[iqn andior intenenion may change fhe
wry @ Furvd is requlated, affen he expenses inourred divectly by & Fund snd
thee wabue of its imvestments, and Bimit andior predude a Fund's 2bity to
achieve its investment cbjective. Govemment regulation may change
frequently and may have significant sdverse consequences. Moreover,
oemeniment riguladon may hawe unpredictable and uninbénded effeces

Operationsl Risk An investment i & Fund, like ey fund, can invobe
operasional fisks arising from faciors such & processing emors, human erors,
Inadequare or failed intemal o extemal processes, fatures In gystems and
technotoagy, changes in personnel and enrors caused by thind-party service
providers. The ooosrence of any of these falures, emors or breadhes could
resul in @ boss of infommation, regulatony scuting, reputationa damage o
ol evenits, sy of which could have 3 material sdweroe efiect on 3 Fund
While a Fund seeks 1o minimize such events throwgh controls and cversight,
there may still be failures that could caute losses to the Fund

Cyber Seourity Risk A5 the e of technology has Beoome mole phévalent in
the course of business, the funds have become potentially more suscepiibie
to operaSional and information security risks resulSing from breaches in opber
secunty. A breach in cyber sequnity refers to both intentional and
wnintentional opbeer events that may, among other thindgs, cause a fund 1o
I proprietary information, sulfer data comupon andfor desiruction or lose
operabonal capadty, result in the unauthorized release or other misuse of
confidential information, or otherwise disrupt noemal business operations
Cyber seaumity Talures of breadies may result in finan il losses b 2 Fund and
1t shareholders These Talunes of breachis may Suo resul in Flrupaons o
Enisiniss operationd, podendaly reuling in fnancal ldses, internence with
3 Fund's ability 1o caloul ate it et asset value, progess shareholder
transacion: or athenaise Fansact tusnesswith shareholders; impedimenss
tiy tradings violations of appicable privecy and cther laws: regulatony fines;
penalves; reputanonal damage; reimbursemment of gitver CompEnsaion osts;
addiiona compliance and ogber sequrity risk managemen?t costs and other
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adverse consequences In addion, substantial costs may be inoamed in cader
lo prevent any cyber inddents in the future

8. MASTER HETTING ARRAMGEMENTS

The Funds may be subject 10 various netting amangements (" Master

Ay eements ™) with select counterparties. Maiter Agreements govern e
terme of cidmaEn fransactons, and ang inbended o redece e counterparty ik
s sed wath relevant ransactons by spedating credit protection
mechanisms and providing standardization that is intended 1o improwe lagal
certanty. Each type of Master Agreement goverms cestan fypes of
transactions. Different types of rarsactions may be traded out of different
legal entities or affliates of & parficular organization, resuliing in the need for
multiple agreements with 3 sngle counterparty. As the Master Agreementy
e speaific bo unique operatices of different asset hypes, they dlow a Fund te
dose out and net its total exposure 10 3 counberparty in the event of a default
wilh et 0 all the TaNSaCTONS govemesd whoer & Sinde Master
Agreament with & oounnerparty. For frandal repoming porpases the
Statements of Assets and Liabeliities generally present difivative asse1s and
lisbiktios on a gross bads, which reflects the ful s 3nd exparsures pror 1o
netting

Master Agreements can abso hedp limil counterparty mk by spedting
collateral posting amangements. a1 pre-arranged exposure levels Under maost
Master Agreements, oollateral is routinely transferred if the totdl net exposure
to certain fransactions (net of existing collateral alreadyin place) govemed
unadir e rebinvan t Master Agreemint with a counterpay in & given acoount
exteeds a spedfied threshold, which typically ranges fnam 2end o 2 50,000
diepefiding on the counterparty and the type of Master Agresment. Linited
States Treamiry Bills and U%S, dollar cash are generally the preferred fome of
collateral, Sthough other Secunbies may be used dependng on the berme
oullined in the applicable Master Agreeinent. Secunties and cah pledoed a5
collateral are refleched a5 assels on e Stanements of Assers and Liabilises &
Ether 3 component of Imesiments aTvalue (Seaumties) of Depodin with
counterparty. Cash collateral received is not typically held in 3 segregated
acoount and as such is reflected as a Bability on the Statements of Assels and
Liatnbifies a5 Deposits from conterparty. The market valse of sy seouriies
received & oolateral is not refiacted &5 & component of HAY . The Fund™s
orverall enposure 1o counterparty sk can change substantially within a shert
period, as it is affected by each ransaction subject to the relevant Master
Agesment

Matter Repiinchass Agresments and Global Master Repund ste Agreementy
{individually and collectvely “Master Repo Agreements”) govern repunchate,
reverse repurchase, and sae-buvbac Tansactions betaeen the Funds and
select copnterparnes. Master Repo -fcl}'l."l?m-.ﬂl‘.- mEntaEn prosdsions for,
amonig othed things, ket SHon, inoome payTRents, events of default, and
maintenance of collateral The market value of fransacBons under the Master
Repo Agreement, collateral pledged or received, and the nel exposure by
counserparty a5 of pericd end are dsdosed in the Notes to Schedule of
vestments

Master Securities Forward Transaction Adgresments (" Master Forward

Al eaments”) govern certan fonward settling transacions, such as TBA
secuiilied, gl sped-deliveny of sale-buybad: ransacsond by nd

bty the Funds and seled colmberparties. The Masrer Formard
Afesments mantain provisons fon, amang ofher things, mitation and
corfirmation, payment and Tansfer, events of default, termination, and
reaintenanoe of collateral The marker value of forward settling transactions,
cotlateral pledged or received, and the net exposure by counteparty as of
perod end ane dsdosed in the Nates to Schedule of imesiments

Customer Account Agreements and relaned addenda govem deared
derivafves framsactions such as futures, options on futures, and deared OTC
derivatives, Such rarsacticers require posting of initial mangin as debermined
by each redevant dearing agency which i4 segregated in an doount ata
tutures aommission mefchand (TFCMT) regetened wath the Commodity
Futufes Trading Cornmassion {"CFTC™) In the United $ates, counterparty rid
may be reduced as aeditors of an FOM cannot have 3 daim 10 Fund assetin
the segregaied socount. Portatality of expodune in e event of an FCM
defaull scenania Surther reduces sk 10 the Funds. Vanation margn, of
changes i market value, ane generally exchanged daly, but may not be
Lt Dedwen futures and deared OTC deriva tives. unkess the parties hae
agreed fo 3 separate amangement in respedt of fund margning. The market
walpe or aooumedated uneeal zed appredation (depregiation, initlal mangan
posted, and vy unsettied varation margin a5 of period end are disdosed in
the Mates b Schedule of Investments.

Intemational Swaps and Dervatives Assodiation, InC. Master Agreements and
Criet Suppant Annsoes (150 MR Ter Adpeemens™) govern bilaberal OTC
derivate Fansactions entered mio by te Funds wish select counterpaies
[50v4 hLailer Agresrments mainkain provisions for general obligations,
representations, agreements, collateral posting and events of default o
termminaticn. Events of wemenation indude conditions that may entitle
Countepanies (o elect o tenmingte eaty and cuse seitiement of 2
CUESEENCENG IranSBCICNS inder the appicable [S0A BEr Agresment Amy
ehetion 10 erminate eafy could be material bo the nanda statements in
limited droumetances, the 50w Master Agreement may contain additional
provisons that add counterparsy protection beyond coverage of exsong dally
expisure |f e counterparty has 2 dedine in credit quatty below a predefined
lewel. Thete amounts, it any, may be segregated with a thind-party austodian
The market value of OTC financal derivative insiements, oodateral recesed
or pledged, and net exposune by counterparty as of period end &re disdiosed
in the Motes 1o Sdhedule of mestments
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9. FEES AMD EXPENSES

5 payable at the following arnual rates (stated a5 a percentage of the average daily net assets of sach Fund, or Class, if

Fees

Fund Managemsnt Adisory Adminisirative Agency Dizributian
PIMCO Bermusda Emerging Markees Band Fund ||

& Imrlen 0 36% ] e

o IrEr[IFT Ml 0 36% 0 2Ar%"

PIMCO Bermuda Glabal Aggregate Bx-Jupan Bond Fund 8% - 1 2% 2% -~ ~
PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund A&

= Fpy -
= Fsh
. HPT)
L] sl
.
. = =
" = = = =
- [0 =L = =, = =
= PUPY 5% - - - DY
C = = 2 bt
. = = - =
. = - =
= u =
- N -
- BES 1A
- 1 B1%
. =
o YLIF = = - as —
& Y jush - - - — -
. THFY) = = = = i
PIMCD Bermuda Marigage Oppariunities Fund
®  ImstIPT Hedged 045%" - - - -
- LI —
- LD
= UsD
PIMCD Bermuda U5, High Yield Fund Bl (M) %% 120%™
PIMCD Short-Term Mortgage Incoms
* ER 0 46%= = = 5% 040%™
. LIFY. Hedged) = - = = =
& JPY 145%™ = = 5% 040%™
= UsD 045%"" - - 6% 040%™

PIMCD Werkd High Inceme 070% = = %™ 0EER™

® i (T 7 AT T R T oy P T T 1 i e g P i e e o o ke by F el P g g e e e S el vl P v, 1% s g by g 557 walm o oy
FirlY R ], e O O e 0 8 S asT E a Y EET R irmg £ I L Y S T B 500 R i e O 00 1 e Y B

P R Sl Sl AT B M B Pt A € PT80S et e T (T R 1 iy e I i P el L3 e e T 8 e A0 e i T T D e e R e
A 27 e e FoT T T B N ey o T A T e T 8 e 0 i
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Thi mansgement. sasony snd sdminiratve fees, if apphicable, are pad monthly i amears 1o PRCO for peovding of amangng for the prosdsion of sdvisony,
admenitrative and thied-pary serdces indudng sudd, aetodal, rustes, poithoho Soounting, rotine legal, randler dgent nd printing sendces. The agency and
disnniuson hies, if applicabie, are paid monthly in arsss i eemburse finendal incemrmedinies hat provide services and dsmbution reating b te ures of fe
appticable Fund for Class thereof, a5 applicable). In exchange for this fee, PIMCO will bear the costs of certain thind-party services required by the Funds, induding
audit, oustodal, rustes, poerolio sccounting legal, ransfer agent and pringing semvices. PIMCD, and not Unitholders, would benefit Fom sy price degease in the
costof sudh third-party serdices, induding deeases resuliing from an increass in et msets Inaddition, with respect 1o Funds that e subjet 1o an sdminisiraive
fiee, PRACO generdly makes a profit on such a fee

As nofed in the table abowe, certain Funds and Classes of Funds are no? subject 1o management, advisory, administrative, agency of distribution fees. PIMCO lapan
Led, FIMCO's affiliate in Japan, &5 paid a fee from the Japanete Imvesiment Trusts or other imestment vehides that invest in such Funds or Classes and a portion of
such tee is then dlocated to PIVCO 10 compersate it Tor it serioes

For the st fve years Tolloweng the launch of sach of the B-J 1605 (IPY), B-J 1605 (USDY), B-) 1609 (PY), B-) 1609 (LD, B-0 1612 (JFY), and B-J 1612 {USD) Classes
of the PECO Bermuds incoene Fund E, 20 Asset Bated Sales Charge (" ABSC™) of 0. 76% will be mnposed on the swrage dally net asset valie of each Class and
payatle monthly 10 the Fee Agent. Additianally, if sy umits of the B-J 1605 (FY) B 1605 (USDH, B-1 1609 (IFY), B-1 1609 {USCH, B-1 1612 (1Y), and B-J 1602 (LED)
Classes of the PIMCO Bermudy Income Fund E are redesmed of exch i1Q6d Bor one o mone units i another fund within the Dme perds sped fied below, @ COSC will
be imposed an the amount of sudh redemption at the applicable Percentage CDSC

Years Since Inceptan of Each Class Parcentags COSC
1 [eciyging frsoyen anrmsangd 4 00%
2 [enchding] second veal Siravesang 2A0%
3 [enciiing Thind year srni sy 1.80%
& [enciien] douth vaar sevsveman] 1
B [onciuding Irih ye s aevmnensdng 0B
Tharesdter 000%
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With resped to the caloulaBon of the COSC. the valws of the redempion amountwill be the then-qument MAY of the units being repurchased . Furthermore, any
appficable C05Cs will be dedydied from the repurchase procesds and wall be payable to the Fee Agent. For the year ended October 31, 2020, the B-) 1605 (IFY), B
1605 (US00, B-1 1609 (IFY), B0 1609 (S0, BJ 1602 (FY) and B-J 1612 (U500 Classes of the PIMCO Bermuda income Fund E paid ¥143, 545,805 in ABSC and
V18652 00 im COGC tothe Fee Agent

The Funds {or Classes thereof, as applicable) may bear other expenses related to their operation that are not covered by the management, advsory. adminisirative,
agenoy of datribution fees, indwding but not limsted o) @ taxes and governmental fees; §i) brokerage fees and commissions and other portfolio ramsaction expenses;
(iilycosts of bomowing money, mdudng intersst expense; () exracrdnary expences, induding costs of lidgation and indemnification expenses: and (v) sy expenses
alocated or alocable to 3 speafic Olass of units. PIMCO has paid the organizational expenses assodated with the dreation of the Trust, except for PIMCO Short-Tem
Mortgage income

PINVGCO) anidfar s affilates inially advandied 1o PIRCO Short-Term Mortgage incorme 8l aoals and egenres, induding legal expentss, incustid i conaection with e
initeal pusbiic offering of the EUR, 5P and U500 Classes of units of the Fund in Japan ("Offering Expenses™). Ator negr the commencement of the Fund's operations, the
Fund will resmburse PIMCO andfor its affiliates for She Offening Expenses advanced andwill amortize such Offering Expervsas ower the first fiscal year of its operations
However, PIMCO has ageeed o walve reimbursement of the Offering Expenses to the extent that such expenses exceed 0 05% per anrum of the sum of the EUR, IPY
and U0 Classes’ NAY (the " Offering Expense Limitation™) Any Crffering Expenses waived due to the Offering Expense Lamitatian may be recouped by PIMCO andfor
ite afiates for 2 period not exceeding five years from the commencement of the Fund's operations; provided, the amount recooped by PIMCO andfor its affliates shall
not exceed Q.05% per annum of the sum of the EUR, JFY and USD Classes” NAY. H any of the EUR, JPY and USD Classes of units of the Fund are terminated prior to
the full reimbursenent of a8 Offering Expenses, PMCO andior its affiiates shall not seek reimbursement of any remaining unreimbursed amounts from that Class
Furthermare, if all of the EUR, JPY and USD Classes of units of the Fund ane teeminated price 1o the ull reirmborsement of all Offering Bxpenses, PIMCO andfor its
affileates shall not seek reimbursement of any remaning unreimbursed amounts from the Fund . As of October 31, 2020 there wene no recoverable Cffering Expenses io
PIMICC) andfor its affilates

The Trustee and the Manager have appodnted Credit Suisse Intermational a5 the agent for the PIMOO Berruda income Fund £ for purposes of fnandng placement fees
o b pald bo certain damibubors. Under & fee S0ent appointment agresment enlered nbo smong Se T, fie Manager, and Credin s intemational (the "Fes
Agent Appoentment Agresrment ), Credit Suisse Intemnatonal had been appanied b (i) effect parymrent of certan deitrbution fees 1o the lapinete diombubons in
accordance with the Fee Agent Appointment Agreement and the terme of vazious upfront fee letters, and (i) make all caloslations and determen 3Biors required to be
miade ynder the Fee Agent Appointment Agresment

PINGCE) andfor its affikanes will initially advance to the PIMCO Bemuds income Fund E legal expenses incurmed in connection with executing the Fee Agent
Appointment Agreement and assodated legal agresments fior the B-0 1605 {IFY) and B-J 1605 (LUSD) Olasses of units of the PIMCO Bermisda income Fund E (the "Fee
Agent Legal Experies™) Al the end of these Classes” initid offering periods, the Fund will be required toc () reimiburse to FIMCO andior its affiliates the greater of: (3
V10 miSion or (b} 0. 20% of the aggregate amounts imvested in such Classes during their initial offening pericds (such amaount not i excesd the Fee Agent Legal
Expenaes advancedy, and () amortize such Fee Agent Legal Expenses 5o the rélevant Class over the first focal year of its operations. All o & porsion of the remaiming
Fos Agenit Legal Expeermtied advanoed may be expenied t future B shane o svtes added to and offered by ary senes of Bhie Tt FIMCO Bermeds Trost, PIMCO
Besrmruda Trust W, PIMCO Caymuan Trust andior PRMCO Caypman SPC Umitedvathin ofe year fnom the end of the inital oftenng perods of the Bl 1605 (IFY) and B-)
1605 (L0 Classes of units of the AMCO Bermuda ncome Fund £ of spch other period of Gme that the investment Adviser determines in s dsoretion

In addiSon, FIMCO andior its affiliates will inially advance to the PIMCO Berminda Income Fund E legal expenses inasmed in connection with exeqsting the Fee Agent
Appointment Agreement and assodiated legal agreements for the B-1 16049 {IFY) and B-) 16049 (LUSL) Olasses of units of the FIMCO Bermieda income Fund E{also a
part of the Fee Agent Legal Expenses). ARt end of the B-1 1609 (IPY) and B-J 1609 (LED) Clasees Initial affering peniods, the PIMCO Bermued Income Fund Evil
e piecuatied b (i) reimiurse to PIMCO sndor its aftiates the greater of: ) ¥10 mellion of (@) & 20% of the aggregate amounts invested m such Classes dunng s
initial offering periods (uudh amouni not o exceed the 1aral of e Fee Agent Legd Expentes advanced and the unreimbursed portion of amy Fee Agenl Legal Expenses
presiously advanced in connection with the creaBon of any B share dass of any series of the Tnust, FIMCO Bermuda Trust, FIMCO Bermuda Trust IV, PIMCO Cayman
Tewst andfor PIMCO Cayman SPC Limited wathin ane year fom the respeciive ends of the initial offering or such ather period of dme that the investment Adviser
debermenes in i1 discretion], and §i smortize sudh Fee Agent Legal Expenses wo e relevant Class over i first fiscal year of It operatons. A of 3 ponion of the
remaining Fee Agent Legal Expenses sdvanced may be expersed 1o future B share dasses added 1o and offered by any senies of the Trust, PIMCO Bermuda Trust,
PINGC) Berrnarda Trast IV, PIMCO Capman Trust andfor FIMCO Cayman SPC Umited within one year from the respective ends of the initial offering periods o sch
other peniod of ime that the Imvestment Adviser determines in its disoretion

PINGCO andfor mts afhbanes wall also imbally advance 1o the PIMCO Bermidd inosme Fund E legal expentes inaurmed in comfiection with executng the Fee Agent
Appointment Agreement and assodated legal agreaments for the B-0 1612 (IFY) and B=) 1612 (USD) Classes of units of the PIMCO Berrmuada income Furd E (3l &
part of the Fee Agent Legal Expenses) AR the énd of the B0 1612 (P} and B-] 1612 (USD) (Ratsed’ initial offering pericds, the PIMCO Bermuds Income Fund Ewall
bt requered bo: (1) redmiburse to FIMCO and'or its affiliates the greater of: §a) Y10 million or (b) & 20% of the aggregate amaunts invested in such Classes dunng thesr
inlteal ¢'-TEI'-|'l§| peerionk (audh amount not 10 exceed the el of he Fee Agent Legdl Expenses advinced snd the unreimbursed portion tCl-"dﬁ'_.' Fee Agent Legal Expenses
previcudy advanced in connection with the creation of any B share dass of any sefes of the Tk, PIMCO Bermuda Trist, PIMCO Bernuda Trust IV, FIMCO Cayman
Trust andior PIMCO Cayrnan SPC Limited within one year Forn the respective ends of the initial offering of such other period of Grme that e nestment Adviser
determenes in its disorefion), and §i) amortize such Fee Agent Legal Expences to e relevant Class ower the first fiscal year of its operations. All or a portion of the
remaining Fee Agent Legal Expenses advanced may be expersed to future B share dasses added o and offered by any senies of the Trust, FIMCO Bermuda Truss,
PIRSCC) Berrmucta Trust 1V, PINGCO Caymian Trust andfor PIMCO Cayman SPC Limited within one year from the respecive ends of e initial offering periads or such
other peried of fme that the Investiment Adviser detenmines in s discretion. For the year ended October 31, 2000 fere were no mone Fee Agent Legal Expenses
remaining
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13. REGULATORY AHD LITIGATION MATTERS

e & not named 35 defendants in any matesial lifigstion or arbaration procssdngs and are not aare of any materal lifigation o daim pending o

14, IHCOME TAX

c siibsec] o Bermuds

15. SUBSEQUENT EVEHTS

1, the date

The Manager has evaluated the possitlicy

105 woerie gealabie 10 be i
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2021 10
29,967 3,459,390
15,891 1,834,457
14,076 1,624,933
1,305,759.152

10.78 1,244

2021 10
739 95,080
392 50,435
347 44,645
36,121.519
9.61 1,236
2021 10
2,690,286
1,426,609
1,263,677
128,715.119
9,818
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2022
807,608,901.74 932 3,037
850,000
74,205.46
850,000
250,000
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150,000

150,000
1,250,000

2018 192,872,867.64
2019 156,055,242
2020 606,851,577.58
2021 778,167,993.64
2022 807,608,901.74
Managing Member
limited liability company
agreement
2022
L

Adam Gubner

Adam Shukovsky

(Alejandro Kersman)

Alessandro Gandol

Ti

Alfred T. Murata

Andrew Balls

Andrew R. Jessop

Anna Dragesic

Ayman Hindy
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Caleb Pitters

Whitten, Candice Stack

(Cathleen M. Stahl)

Chris Dialynas

Christian Stracke

Craig A. Dawson

Daniel J. lvascyn

Daniel H. Hyman

David C. Flattum

David Fisher

David L. Braun

David Hammer

Dirk Manelski

(Emmanuel Roman)

Eric M. Sutherland

Erin Browne

(Eve Tournier)

Frank Witt

Geraldine Sundstrom

Greg E. Sharenow

(Gregory W. Hall)

Harin de Silva

Jamie Weinstein

Jamil Baz

Jason R. Steiner

Jason Mandinach

Jerome M. Schneider
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Joachim Fels

J
(John J. Kirkowski)

John W. Murray

John J. Studzinski

Jonathan L. Horne

Joshua Anderson

Joshua Davis

Julie Meggers

Kimberley Stafford

Libby Cantrill

Lorenzo Pagani

Mangala V. Ananthanarayanan

Marc P. Seidner

Marcellus Fisher

Mark R. Kiesel

Mathieu Clavel

(Michael A. Cudzil)

Mohit Mittal

J
Nicholas J. Johnson

Nicolas Granger

Patrick Feigley

Peter G. Strelow

Philippe Bodereau

Pramol Dhawan

Qi Wang

Ravi K. Mattu

(Rene Martel)
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Richard R. LeBrun

Rick Chan

Robert Mead

Robert 0. Young

(Robin C. Shanahan)

Russell Gannaway

Ryan P. Blute

Ryan Korinke

(Sachin Gupta)

Scott A. Mather

Sonali Pier

Stephen Chang

Stephen A. Rodosky

Stuart T. Graham

Sudi N. Mariappa

Sung Hee Suh
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1971
1940

60

PIMCO
PIMCO
BMA
BMA

2022 331
818,839,737,131

113 483,773,121,918

23 16,346,250,289

13 25,535,671,388
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69 210,560,961,317
9 9,976,085,145
30 8,661,744,844
36 21,367,506,219
15 25,123,642,578
3 828,178,087
5 2,683,882,153
15 13,982,693,193
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2019 12 31 2020 12 31

131

23 103

UFJ 2022 31
115.44
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2020 2019 12 31

2020 2019
2(d) 670,905,056 77,449,280 422,556,446 48,779,916
2(e),3 30,870,470 3,563,687 30,623,395 3,535,165
2(H) 798,701,996 92,202,158 698,851,736 80,675,444
2(H) 314,822,326 36,343,089 282,546,439 32,617,161
45,702,592 5,275,907 36,373,824 4,198,994
2(H) 23,912,871 2,760,502 25,219,844 2,911,379
2(k),8(e) 19,755,282 2,280,550 19,239,181 2,220,971
7 17,306,918 1,997,911 13,010,339 1,501,914
64,128,683 7,403,015 60,915,714 7,032,110

1,986,106,194 229,276,099  1,589,336,918 183,473,054

2020 12 31

213,677,355 2019 12 31
183,689,431 2(9),5 121,111,682 13,981,133 139,127,937 16,060,929
2().10 195,322,419 22,548,020 209,441,754 24,177,956
2(k),8(e) 855,055,452 98,707,601 669,472,591 77,283,916
2(i) 30,865,176 3,563,076 30,865,176 3,563,076
2(h),6 35,265,467 4,071,046 30,124,648 3,477,589
2(b) 14,710,139 1,698,138 16,086,963 1,857,079
9 51,541,356 5,949,934 33,253,757 3,838,814

1,303,871,691 150,518,948 1,128,372,826 130,259,359

3,289,977,885 379,795,047  2,717,709,744 313,732,413
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2020 2019

398,802,753 46,037,790 409,454,573 47,267,436

7 228,000,000 26,320,320
8 216,289,372 24,968,445 208,752,447 24,098,382
4 122,043,872 14,088,745 124,895,219 14,417,904
23§).10 33,157,779 3,827,734 30,057,351 3,469,821
7 37,379,146 4,315,049 21,460,619 2,477,414
2(s).8(e) 19,755,282 2,280,550 19,239,181 2,220,971
4,928,294 568,922 11,190,145 1,291,790
832,356,498 96,087,234  1,053,049,535 121,564,038
2(s),8(e) 855,055,452 98,707,601 669,472,591 77,283,916
2(j).10 204,137,201 23,565,598 220,717,637 25,479,644
8 152,799,181 17,639,137 164,382,884 18,976,360
4,306,979 497,198 3,022,510 348,919
1,216,298,813 140,409,535  1,057,595,622 122,088,839
2,048,655,311 236,496,769  2,110,645,157 243,652,877
850,000 (103,214,782)  (11,915,114)  (683,902,349)  (78,949,687)
150,000 1,308,035,518 150,999,620  1,288,040,853 148,691,436
2020 12 31 58,608
2019 12 31 48,876 43,399,986 5,010,094 28,952,832 3,342,315
2020 12 31
148,726 2019 12 31 153,400 8(a) 37,843,422 4,368,645 32,501,945 3,762,414
2(p) (44,741,570)  (5,164,967)  (58,618,694)  (6,766,942)

1,241,322,574 143,298,278 607,064,587 70,079,536
3,289,977,885 379,795,047  2,717,709,744 313,732,413

300/396



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 2019 12 31
2020 2019

2(f) 4,012,403,139 463,191,818 3,801,610,877 438,857,960
2(f) 1,095,151,513 126,424,291 1,011,008,189 116,710,785
2(f) 1,155,727,878 133,417,226 1,152,533,169 133,048,429
2(f) 360,487,808 41,614,713 380,555,089 43,931,279
2(f) 46,057,465 5,316,874 23,903,886 2,759,465
6,669,827,803 769,964,922 6,369,611,210 735,307,918
8 2,283,500,614 263,607,311 2,125,025,461 245,312,939
4 777,771,809 89,785,978 857,070,964 98,940,272
2(t) 605,822,180 69,936,112 637,010,892 73,536,537
235,901,474 27,232,466 214,712,229 24,786,380
5,10 168,804,503 19,486,792 159,176,036 18,375,282
2(0) 108,835,693 12,563,992 120,596,262 13,921,632
43,316,136 5,000,415 50,264,299 5,802,511
44,512,301 5,138,500 27,702,379 3,197,963
4,268,464,710 492,751,566 4,191,558,522 483,873,516
2,401,363,093 277,213,355 2,178,052,688 251,434,402
52,168,123 6,022,288 57,347,069 6,620,146

23D,
10 (6,676,919) (770,784) (10,703,929) (1,235,662)
2(b) (1,321,069) (152,504) (1,278,635) (147,,606)
2,445,533,228 282,312,356 2,223,417,193 256,671,281
9 103,991,820 12,004,816 98,821,295 11,407,930
2,341,541,408 270,307,540 2,124,595,898 245,263,350
2(p) 13,877,124 1,601,975 6,577,523 759,309
2,355,418,532 271,909,515 2,131,173,421 246,022,660
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2019 12 31

PIMCO

2020 12 31

2020 2019 12 31
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850,000 (792,957,184) (91,538,977) 150,000 1,267,204,122 146,286,044 45,705 23,722,086 2,738,478

1,556,133,972 179,640,106 472,136,883 54,503,482 96,325,043 11,119,763
(1,459,197,453)  (168,449,754) (451,300,152) (52,098,090) (91,397,156)  (10,550,888)

1,444,428 166,745 - )

10,673,888 1,232,194 302,859 34,962

850,000 (683,902,349) (78,949,687) 150,000 1,288,040,853 148,691,436 48,876 28,952,832 3,342,315

1,694,470,162 195,609,636 520,315,348 60,065,204 126,755,898 14,632,701
(1,133,305,426)  (130,828,778) (500,320,683) (57,757,020) (116,146,639)  (13,407,968)

12,785,179 1,475,921
6,737,652 777,795 3,837,895 443,047
850,000 (103,214,782) (11,915,114) 150,000 1,308,035,518 150,999,620 58,608 43,399,986 5,010,094
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2020 2019 12 31

143,858 28,576,118 3,298,827 (65,196,217) (7,526,251) 461,348,925 53,258,120
2,124,595,898 245,263,350
(2,001,894,761) (231,098,731)
1,444,428 166,745
14,992,574 1,730,743 14,992,574 1,730,743

(10,976,747) (1,267,156)
6,577,523 759,309 6,577,523 759,309
153,400 32,591,945 3,762,414 (58,618,694) (6,766,942) 607,064,587 70,079,536
2,341,541,408 270,307,540
(1,749,772,748) (201,993, 766)
12,785,179 1,475,921
15,827,024 1,827,072 15,827,024 1,827,072

(10,575,547) (1,220,841)
13,877,124 1,601,975 13,877,124 1,601,975
148,726 37,843,422 4,368,645 (44,741,570) (5.164,967) 1,241,322,574 143,298,278
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2020 2019 12 31
2020 2019
2,341,541,408 270,307,540 2,124,595,898 245,263,350
15,508,853 1,790,342 14,579,559 1,683,064
65,464,604 7,557,234 65,882,645 7,605,493
6,676,919 770,784 10,703,929 1,235,662
1,321,069 152,504 1,278,635 147,606
12,114 1,398 59,310 6,847
(44,308) (5,115) (99,913) (11,534)
14,256,907 1,645,817 28,852,954 3,330,785
15,010,423 1,732,803 14,132,707 1,631,480
(11,695,316) (1,350,107) (11,771,410) (1,358,892)
(146,673,050) (16,931,937) (133,320,387) (15,390,505)
(6,762,761) (780,693) (10,822,134) (1,249,307)
(130,819,174) (15,101,765) (168,718,254) (19,476,835)
(25,708,793) (2,967,823) (28,864,869) (3.332,160)
103,679,079 11,968,713 175,692,797 20,281,976
10,538,563 1,216,572 3,895,278 449,671
2,252,306, 537 260,006,267 2,086,076, 745 240,816,699
(51,884,452) (5,989,541)
6,500,203 750,383
(7,078,726) (817,168) (29,716,676) (3.430,493)
(13,730,247) (1,585,020) (640,695) (73,962)
(18,000) (2,078) (4,017,970) (463,834)
(14,326,770) (1,653,882) (86,259,793) (9,957,831)
416,000,000 48,023,040 2,239,000,000 258,470,160
(644,000, 000) (74,343,360)  (2,223,000,000)  (256,623,120)
(1,749,772,748) (201,993,766)  (2,001,894,761)  (231,098,731)
4,984,931 575,460 1,444,428 166,745
(30,720,464) (3,546,370) (28,608,691) (3,302,587)

(2,003,508,281) (231,284,996) _ (2,013,059,024) __ (232,387,534)

13,877,124 1,601,975 6,577,523 759,309
248,348,610 28,669,364 (6,664,549) (769,356)
422,556,446 48,779,916 429,220,995 49,549,272
670,905,056 77,449,280 422,556,446 48,779,916
1,300,045 150,077

233,931,730 27,005,079

(274,626,538) (31,702,888)

40,694,808 4,697,809
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2020 2019 12 31
AAM LP
PIMCO
AAM LP 850,000 150,000
AAM LLC
AAM Holding 250,000
PIMCO
2020 12 31 58,608
AAM LP  AAM LLC AAM Holding
PIMCO PIMCO Pl
LLC
Pl LLC PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO
PI LLC
FINRA
2020 2019 12 31
0.00206 0.00190

2020 12
2020 12
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PEG

PIMCO

PGA

FINMA

AREOA

1ASB IFRS
IFRS

306/396



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 23

PIMCO

PIMCO
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IAS 17

16

2018
2019

2019

2019

2020

12 31
12 31

IFRS 16
IFRIC
2019 12 31
2020

2019
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2019

274.6

347.1

2019 12 31
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IFRS 16

2.59

IFRS 16

IFRS

206,586,026

(96,826)
106,291,903
90,806

(38,245,371)

274,626,538

AAM LP

27

FDIC
FDIC
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PIMCO

PIMCO
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12

12

IFRS
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PIMCO

PIMCO PIMCO
30

2020 2019 12 31

IFRS
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IAS 19

IFRS
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2020 2019 12 31 30.9 30.6
2020 2019
2020 2019 12 31
NAV
2020 2019 12 31
PIMCO 0.10 1.00
P1 LLC
P1 LLC 2020 12 31
2019 12 31 39.8 51.4

PIMCO
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Pl LLC 2020 12 31 2019 12 31 5.2
2.0
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2018 12 31

2019 12 31

2020 12 31

2020

2018 12 31

2019 12 31

2020 12 31

2020

PIMCO

2020
36.1

PIMCO
PIMCO
31
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50,681,246 83,658,168 1,021,436 135,360,850
18,961,101 12,515,207 31,476,308
(353,453) (353,453)
(19,443,474) (7,912,294) (27,355,768)
49,845,420 88,261,081 1,021,436 139,127,937
8,445,092 1,289,112 50,174 9,784,378
(12,114) (12,114)
(16,946,736) (10,841,783) (27,788,519)
41,331,662 78,708,410 1,071,610 121,111,682
2019 27.8 27.4
11,501,756 11,501,756
640,695 25,600,000 1,500,000 300,000 28,040,695
(5,180) (5,180)
(6,425,726) (2,080,000) (706,897) (200,000) (9,412,623)
5,711,545 23,520,000 793,103 100,000 30,124,648
13,838,448 - 13,838,448
(5,879,698) (2,080,000) (637,931) (100,000) (8,697,629)
13,670,295 21,440,000 155,172 35,265,467
2019 8.7 9.4
AAM LP AAM LLC
2019 24.7
AAM LP AAM LLC
2020 2019
8.6 11.1

315/396
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LIBOR 0.2
90 AAM LP PIMCO 2020 2019
PIMCO AAM LP
PIMCO 2020 12 31 2019 12 31
228.0
PIMCO 2020 2019
373 3.7
2020 12 31 822.6
2019 724.1
2020 2019 52.4
45.8
PIMCO
2020 2019
7.8 8.6
PEG
PEG PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO
2020
PEG PEG 92.2
2019 40.3
PEG 2020 PEG
41.3 2019 33.3
2020 12 31
13.5 2019 9.8 PEG 28.8 2019 10.3
PEG
AAM LP 2023 11
600.0 LIBOR LIBOR 20
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2020 12 31 0.278
LIBOR LIBOR
AAM LP PIMCO
2020 2019 12 31
PIMCO PIMCO PIMCO
AAM LP EDCP
PIMCO
PIMCO
250,000 2020
2020 2019 12 31 148,726
153,400 58,608
OPAD

2020 2019
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2020 2019
17,806 14,519
3.84 3.84
25.1 17.9
11.1 13.2
0.6 2.4
2020
2019
2018 12 31 143,858 143,858 13,606
39,751 39,751 14,519
23,492 (23,492)
(23,492) (23,492) 16,178
(6,717) (6,717) 12,618
2019 12 31 153,400 153,400 13,492
29,802 29,802 17,806
27,775 (27,775)
(27,775) (27,775) 11,567
(6,701) (6,701) 14,416
2020 12 31 148,726 148,726 14,674
2020 12 31
2020 12 31 11,319 17,806
2.52
17,806 2020
14,622 2019 2020 27,775
2020 30
9,732
2020 12 31 58,177
431 AAM LLC
2019 23,492 2019 29

3,171
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14

LTIP

AAM LP

AAM LP

401

13

2019

2019 12 31

48.4

24.5

LTIP

1974

15.5

LTIP

401
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2020 2019
14.6
2020 12 31 2025 12 31
2020 2019
LTIP
2020
54.8 50.5
2020
116.3 111.1
100
2020 2019 55.1
201 301
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2020 2019 12 31
874.8 688.7

250,000

2.0
2020 167 2019
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12 31
2020 2019
29,332 11,770
3,432,731 2,022,507
121,394,722 100,158,160
124,856,785 102,192,437
(20, 864,965) (3.371,142)
(20, 864,965) (3.371,142)
103,991,820 98,821,295
2020 2019 12 31 23.2 36.7
2020
2019 12 31 44.8 21.4 2020
2019 12 31 247 61
10
2020 12 31
29,593,350
6,304,014
240,983
376,312
2,179,123
2020 12 31 39.8

12 31
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2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
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38,461,023
34,822,467
36,457,152
22,087,757
32,862,009
96,750,859

261,441,267

(24,146,287)

237,294,980
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2020 12 31

2020 12 31 2020 12

13

PIMCO
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2020

13
Pl LLC

14

731.2

15
2020 10
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15
66.8
2019 12 31
250

2019

2019

covibD 19
PIMCO CovID 19
CovID 19
1934
2020 12 31 Pl LLC
250 66.5
Pl LLC 57.5
57.2
2020
535.5
2020
582,606,016
222,021
AREOA AAM LLC AAM LP

AREOA 7.8
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16

2021 23

2021 15 40,974 PIMCO
2021 31
15,582
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition
December 31, 2020 and 2019

Assets
Note 2020 2019
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 2(d) $ 670,905,056 422,556,446
Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 2(e), 3 30,870,470 30,623,395
Investment advisory and administrative fees receivable:
Pooled funds 2(f) 798,701,996 698,851,736
Private accounts 2(f) 314,822,326 282,546,439
Prepaid expenses 45,702,592 36,373,824
Distribution and servicing fees receivable 2(f) 23,912,871 25,219,844
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(k), 8(e) 19,755,282 19,239,181
Receivables from affiliates 7 17,306,918 13,010,339
Other current assets 64,128,683 60,915,714
Total current assets 1,986,106,194 1,589,336,918
Noncurrent assets:
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $213,677,355
and $183,689,431 at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively 2(9), 5 121,111,682 139,127,937
Right-of-use assets 2(j), 10 195,322,419 209,441,754
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(k), 8(e) 855,055,452 669,472,591
Goodwill 2(i) 30,865,176 30,865,176
Intangible assets 2(h), 6 35,265,467 30,124,648
Investments in associates 2(b) 14,710,139 16,086,963
Other noncurrent assets 9 51,541,356 33,253,757
Total noncurrent assets 1,303,871,691 1,128,372,826
Total assets $ 3,289,977,885 2,717,709,744
Liabilities and Capital
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 398,802,753 409,454,573
Short-term borrowings from affiliates 7 - 228,000,000
Accrued compensation 8 216,289,372 208,752,447
Commissions payable 4 122,043,872 124,895,219
Lease liabilities 2(), 10 33,157,779 30,057,351
Payables to affiliates 7 37,379,146 21,460,619
Deferred compensation 2(s), 8(e) 19,755,282 19,239,181
Other current liabilities 4,928,294 11,190,145
Total current liabilities 832,356,498 1,053,049,535
Noncurrent liabilities:
Deferred compensation 2(s), 8(e) 855,055,452 669,472,591
Lease liabilities 2(j), 10 204,137,201 220,717,637
Other accrued compensation 8 152,799,181 164,382,884
Other noncurrent liabilities 4,306,979 3,022,510
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,216,298,813 1,057,595,622
Totd liabilities 2,048,655,311 2,110,645,157
Capitd:
Class A members (issued and outstanding 850,000 units) (103,214,782) (683,902,349)
Class B members (issued and outstanding 150,000 units) 1,308,035,518 1,288,040,853
Class M members (58,608 units issued and outstanding at December 31, 2020
and 48,876 units issued and outstanding at December 31, 2019) 43,399,986 28,952,832
Class M unit option holders (148,726 options issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2020 and 153,400 options issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2019) 8(a) 37,843,422 32,591,945
Cumulative translation adjustment 2(p) (44,741,570) (58,618,694)
Tota capital 1,241,322,574 607,064,587
Totd liabilities and capital $ 3,289,977,885 2,717,709,744

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income
Y ears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

Revenues: Note 2020 2019
Investment advisory fees:
Pooled funds 2(f) $  4,012,403,139 3,801,610,877
Private accounts 2(f) 1,095,151,513 1,011,008,189
Administrative fees - pooled funds 2(f) 1,155,727,878 1,152,533,169
Distribution and servicing fees 2(f) 360,487,808 380,555,089
Other 2(f) 46,057,465 23,903,886
Total revenues 6,669,827,803 6,369,611,210
Expenses:
Compensation and benefits 8 2,283,500,614 2,125,025,461
Commissions 4 777,771,809 857,070,964
General and administrative 2(t) 605,822,180 637,010,892
Professional fees 235,901,474 214,712,229
Occupancy and equipment 5,10 168,804,503 159,176,036
Marketing and promotional 2(0) 108,835,693 120,596,262
Subadvisory and subadministrative services 43,316,136 50,264,299
Other 44,512,301 27,702,379
Tota expenses 4,268,464,710 4,191,558,522
Operating income 2,401,363,093 2,178,052,688
Other income, net 52,168,123 57,347,069
Finance costs 2(j), 10 (6,676,919) (20,703,929)
Equity in loss of associates 2(b) (1,321,069) (1,278,635)
Net income before income taxes 2,445,533,228 2,223,417,193
Income tax expense 9 103,991,820 98,821,295
Net income 2,341,541,408 2,124,595,898

Other comprehensive income:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Foreign currency translation adjustment 2(p) 13,877,124 6,577,523
Comprehensive income $ 2,355,418,532 2,131,173,421

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Capital
Y ears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

Cumulative
Class A members Class B members ClassM members Class M unit option holders trandation Tota
Units Amounts Units Amounts Units Amounts Options Amounts adjustment capital

Balances at December 31, 2018 850,000 $ (792,957,184) 150,000 $ 1,267,204,122 45,705 $ 23,722,086 143,858 $ 28,576,118 $  (65196,217) $ 461,348,925
Net income 1,556,133,972 472,136,883 96,325,043 - - 2,124,595,898
Distributions (1,459,197,453) (451,300,152) (91,397,156) - - (2,001,894,761)
Contribution 1,444,428 - - - - 1,444,428
PIMCO Class M unit equity plan:

Compensation expense - - - 14,992,574 - 14,992,574

Reallocation of basis on vested options 10,673,888 - 302,859 (10,976,747) - -
Other comprehensive income - - - - 6,577,523 6,577,523
Balances at December 31, 2019 850,000 (683,902,349) 150,000 1,288,040,853 48,876 28,952,832 153,400 32,591,945 (58,618,694) 607,064,587
Net income 1,694,470,162 520,315,348 126,755,898 - - 2,341,541,408
Distributions (1,133,305,426) (500,320,683) (116,146,639) - - (1,749,772,748)
Contributions 12,785,179 - - - - 12,785,179
PIMCO Class M unit equity plan:

Compensation expense - - - 15,827,024 - 15,827,024

Reallocation of basis on vested options 6,737,652 - 3,837,895 (10,575,547) - -
Other comprehensive income - - - - 13,877,124 13,877,124
Baances at December 30, 2020 850,000 $ (103,214,782) 150,000 $ 1,308,035,518 58,608 ¢ 43,399,986 148,726 3 37,843,422 ¢ (44,741,570) $ 1,241,322,574

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Y ears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 2,341,541,408 2,124,595,898
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Equity compensation 15,508,853 14,579,559
Depreciation and amortization 65,464,604 65,882,645
Finance costs 6,676,919 10,703,929
Equity inloss of associates 1,321,069 1,278,635
Net loss on disposal of property and equipment 12,114 59,310
Unrealized and realized net gain on investments carried at fair value through
profit and loss (44,308) (99,913)
Contingent consideration fair value adjustments 14,256,907 28,852,954
Proceeds from sale of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 15,010,423 14,132,707
Purchases of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss (11,695,316) (11,771,410)
Income taxes paid (146,673,050) (133,320,387)
Interest paid (6,762,761) (10,822,134)
Change in operating assets, liabilities, and income tax expense:
Feesreceivable (130,819,174) (168,718,254)
Receivables from affiliates, prepaid expenses, and other assets (25,708,793) (28,864,869)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses, commissions payable, accrued
compensation, and income tax expense 103,679,079 175,692,797
Other liabilities and payables to affiliates 10,538,563 3,895,278
Net cash provided by operating activities 2.252.306,537 2086,076,745
Cash flows from investing activities:
Payment for acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired - (51,884,452)
Cash acquired through acquisition 6,500,203 -
Purchases of property and equipment (7,078,726) (29,716,676)
Purchases of intangible assets (13,730,247) (640,695)
Purchases of investments in associates (18,000) (4,017,970)
Net cash used in investing activities (14,326,770) (86,259,793)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from short-term borrowings from affiliates 416,000,000 2,239,000,000
Repayment of short-term borrowings from affiliates (644,000,000) (2,223,000,000)
Distributions paid (1,749,772,748) (2,001,894,761)
Contributions received 4,984,931 1,444,428
Principal elements of lease payments (30,720,464) (28,608,691)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,003,508,281) (2,013,059,024)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 13,877,124 6,577,523
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 248,348,610 (6,664,549)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 422,556,446 429,220,995
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 670,905,056 422,556,446
Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities:
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition, net $ 1,300,045 -
Initial recognition of right-of-use assets - 233,931,730
Initial recognition of lease liabilities - (274,626,538)
Derecognition of future lease obligation - 40,694,808

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

(D) Organization and Business

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC (PIMCO or the Company), a Delaware limited liability company
and subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management of AmericaL P. (AAM LP), the Managing Member, is a registered
investment adviser, headquartered in Newport Beach, California. The Company manages a variety of
predominately fixed-income portfolios for a wide range of investors located throughout the world. Investors
include public and private pensions and retirement plans, educational institutions, foundations, endowments,
corporations, financial advisers, individuals, and others through the use of private accounts and pooled funds.

Capitalization

AAM LP owns al 850,000 Class A units of the Company. There are atotal of 150,000 Class B units, which are
owned by Allianz Asset Management of AmericaLLC (AAM LLC) and Allianz Asset Management U.S. Holding
Il LLC (AAM Holding II). The Company has authorized 250,000 nonvoting Class M units for issuance and
options on Class M units have been granted to certain employees of PIMCO. As of December 31, 2020, 58,608
Class M units have been issued and are outstanding. Class B units have priority over Class A and M units with
respect to income and distributions.

AAM LP, AAM LLC, and AAM Holding Il are indirectly wholly owned by Allianz SE. Allianz SE is a global
financial services provider predominantly in the insurance and asset management business.

Consolidation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany items have been eliminated in the accompanying consolidated financia
statements.
PIMCO, as the primary investment adviser, has several wholly owned subsidiaries including PIMCO Investments
LLC (PI LLC) aswell asinternational subsidiaries that are included in these consolidated financial statements as
follows:
Pl LLC isabroker/dealer that is the primary distributor and provides shareholder services to institutional and
retail mutual funds (PIMCO Mutual Funds) and exchange traded funds that are managed and advised by

PIMCO (collectively, PIMCO Funds). Pl LLC is aregistered broker/dealer with the Securities and Exchange
Commission and is a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA).

StocksPLUS Management, Inc. (StocksPLUS) owns approximately 0.00206% interest and 0.00190% interest
in, and isthe general partner of, StocksPLUSL P. as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

PIMCO Europe Ltd (PIMCO Europe) is a registered investment adviser in the United Kingdom, with a
branch in Italy until December 1, 2020, at which time the branch was sold to the Italian branch of PIMCO
Europe GmbH (PEG), formally PIMCO Deutschland GmbH.

PIMCO Japan Ltd (PIMCO Japan) is aregistered investment adviser in Japan.

PIMCO Austraia Pty Limited (PIMCO Australia) is aregistered investment adviser in Australia.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

PIMCO Australia Management Limited is aregistered responsible entity in Australia.
PIMCO AsiaPte Ltd (PIMCO Asia) is aregistered investment adviser in Singapore.
PIMCO AsiaLimited (PIMCO Hong Kong) is aregistered investment adviser in Hong Kong.

PIMCO Globa Advisors (Resources) LLC (PIMCO Resources) provides certain global payroll services to
PIMCO and its subsidiaries.

PIMCO Canada Corp is aregistered investment adviser in Canada.
PIMCO Globa Holdings LLC isthe holding company for PIMCO Canada Corp.

PGA Global Services LLC is a holding company, with branches in the United Kingdom, Hong Kong, and
Ireland.

PIMCO Globa Advisors LLC isaholding company, with abranch in Argentina.

PIMCO (Schweiz) GmbH provides certain services to PIMCO Europe in Switzerland and is a registered
distributor with Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA).

PIMCO Latin America Administradora de Carteiras Ltda. is aregistered investment adviser in Brazil.
PIMCO Global Advisors (Ireland) Limited provides management services to certain international funds.

PIMCO Global Advisors (Luxembourg) S.A. administers and manages an investment fund under the laws of
Luxembourg.

PIMCO Taiwan Limited is aregistered investment advisor in Taiwan.
PIMCO Investment Management (Shanghai) Limited is an investment advisor in China.
Gurtin Municipal Bond Management LLC is aregistered investment advisor inthe U.S.

Allianz Real Estate of AmericaLLC (AREOA) is acaptive real estate investment and asset manager.

Third-party assets managed in an agency or fiduciary capacity are not assets of the Company and are not
presented in these consolidated financia statements.

(20 Significant Accounting Policies
(@) Basisof Preparation

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), which are in compliance with standards and interpretations approved by either the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) or the IFRS Interpretations Committee or their predecessors. The accounting
policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the consolidated financial statements. These
consolidated financial statements are presented in U.S. dollars.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis as well as a going-concern basis
using the historical cost convention modified for certain financial assets that have been measured at fair value.
After reviewing the Company’s current plans and forecasts, the Managing Member considers that the Company
has adequate resources to continue operating for the foreseeable future.

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Managing Member on April 23, 2021.
(b) Basisof Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of the other entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Management
must make judgments when it assesses these various elements and al related facts and circumstances to determine
whether control exists.

Investments are classified as associates when it is determined that PIMCO does not control these entities;
however, the Company has significant influence. The Company accounts for investments in associates under the
equity method of accounting. An investment in an associate is recorded at its initial cost and adjusted thereafter
for the post acquisition change in PIMCO'’s share of net assets of the investee. The equity income or loss
primarily represents the Company’s proportionate share of the unrealized and realized gains and losses from
changes in fair value of the investments held by these associates.

In evaluating its involvement with, and exposure to, interests in structured entities, as well as the requirement as
to whether or not any identified interest in a structured entity should be consolidated, the Company considers
factors including the nature of the Company’s investment (if any), the nature of the fees earned by the Company
from the structured entities, powers held by other entities associated with the structured entities, including the
power to direct or control operations, and the rights and restrictions of the investors in the structured entities.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting and similar rights are not the dominant factor
in deciding who controls the entity, for example, when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks only, and
key activities are directed by contractual agreement. Structured entities often have restricted activities and a
narrow and well defined objective.

(©) Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

The Company adopted |FRS 16 Leases (IFRS 16), on January 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective approach.
Under IFRS 16, the Company, as a lessee, recognizes a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the
underlying asset and a corresponding financial liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.

The Company used the following practical expedients for all leases:

The need not to reassess whether expired or existing contracts are or contain leases; or reassess any initial
direct costs for existing leases.

Use hindsight in determining the lease term and in assessing impairment of the right-of-use assets.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

At transition, lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at
the Company’s estimated incremental borrowing rate as at January 1, 2019. The weighted average incremental
borrowing rate applied at the date of initial application was 2.59%. A liability of $274.6 million was initially
recognized for operating leases. The right-of-use asset was measured at an amount equal to the lease liability and
adjusted by the remaining balance of the future lease obligation. The adoption of IFRS 16 did not have a
significant impact to the results of operations.

The operating lease commitments reported under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 can be reconciled to the lease liabilities
reported under IFRS 16 as follows:

Operating lease commitment as of December 31, 2018 $ 206,586,026
Recognition exemption for leases expiring
before December 31, 2019 (96,826)
Extension options reasonably certain to be exercised 106,291,903
Other 90,806
Discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at
January 1, 2019 (38,245,371)
L ease liabilities recognized at January 1, 2019 $ 274,626,538

(d) Cashand Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all liquid financia instruments with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents may include cash on deposit with financial institutions, nonaffiliated
money market accounts, and cash deposited into a cash pool, through AAM LP, administered by Allianz SE.
There was $347.1 million and $179.1 million invested in nonaffiliated money market accounts at December 31,
2020 and 2019, respectively. Cash equivalents deposited in the cash pool with Allianz SE totaled $2.3 million and
$27 thousand at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Management considers investments in money market
accounts to be cash equivalents for purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows. These investments are
carried at amortized cost, which approximates fair value. The Company maintains its remaining cash and cash
equivalents in various federally insured banking institutions. The account balances at each institution generally
exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation's (FDIC) insurance coverage (or similar federal foreign
programs), and as a result, there is a concentration of credit risk related to amounts in excess of FDIC insurance
coverage.

(e Investments Carried at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss represent financial assets in the held for trading business
model. Investments held for trading consist primarily of investments in PIMCO pooled funds with a short-to-
moderate term duration objective. Investments held for trading are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value

are recognized directly in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. Transactions in these
investments are recorded on a trade-date basis.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

() Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue as it transfers services to customers at an amount that the Company expects to
be entitled to in exchange for those services.

Investment Advisory and Administrative Fees

Investment advisory and administrative fees are recognized as the services are performed. These fees are earned in
exchange for investment advisory services and, in many cases, providing or procuring administrative services for
the customer including audit, custodial, portfolio accounting, legal, transfer agency, and printing costs. The
performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day that are substantially the
same. Such fees are primarily based on percentages of the fair value of the assets under management and
recognized for services provided during the period, which are distinct from services provided in other periods. As
the investment advisory and administrative fees are primarily based on a percentage of assets under management,
the consideration for this revenue is variable and deemed constrained due to the dependence on unpredictable
asset values. Revenue is recognized once the constraint is removed which is generally once these values can be
determined.

Private accounts and pooled funds may also generate a fee based on investment performance. The Company may
also receive carried interest from certain alternative investment products that exceed performance hurdles. Such
fees are recognized when it is no longer probable that there will be a significant reversal, which is usually at the
end of the respective measurement period if the prescribed performance hurdles have been achieved and the fees
are no longer subject to claw back.

Distribution and Servicing Fees

Distribution and servicing fees are an ongoing fee that the Company receives for completing the performance
obligation of distribution and servicing activities on behaf of PIMCO Mutual Funds. For distribution and
servicing fee revenue, the performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day
that are substantially the same. This revenue is earned ratably over time to match the delivery of the performance
obligation each day over the life of the contract. As the distribution and servicing revenue amounts are based on
percentages of the average daily net assets of the PIMCO Mutual Funds, the consideration for this revenue is
variable and deemed constrained due to dependence of unpredictable asset values. The constraint is removed
once these val ues can be determined.

Contract assets and liabilities

Receivables related to investment advisory and administration revenue are included in investment advisory and
administrative fees receivable in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. Receivables
related to distribution and servicing fees revenue are included in distribution and servicing fees receivable in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. There was no impairment of any receivables
recognized during the year related to revenue from contracts with customers. There are no contract liabilities
related to these contracts.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

(g) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Office equipment,
furniture, and fixtures are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, generally three to
five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining terms of the related
leases or the useful lives of such improvements, whichever is shorter.

The assets useful economic lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial period-end and adjusted if
appropriate. An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal of the asset, calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item, is included in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income in the year the item is sold or retired.

(h) Intangible assets

Intangible assets consist of computer software and assets acquired in a business combination which include
customer relationships, developed technology and trade name. Computer software is amortized on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, generally three to five years. The fair values of the acquired assets were
determined using the multi-period excess earnings method for the customer relationships; the replacement cost
method for the developed technology; and the relief-from-royalty approach for the trade name. The intangible
assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives, which range from 18 months to three years, using the
straight-line method. Certain contracts to manage funds without a specified termination date are classified as
indefinite-lived intangible assets.

(i) Goodwill

On an annual basis, management assesses certain qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than
not that the fair value of the Company’s reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. This assessment is
performed as of September 30th or sooner if events or circumstances exist that indicate that it is more likely than
not that a goodwill impairment exists.

(i) Leases

The Company’s leases consist of leases for real estate for corporate offices and other facilities. The Company has
measured the lease liability using its estimated incremental borrowing rate and the index or market rate of variable
lease payments at commencement date. Any subsequent changes to the index or market rate result in a
remeasurement of the lease liability and adjusted against the right-of-use asset. The portion of lease liabilities that
is expected to be extinguished over the next 12 months has been classified as a current liability in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

Certain leases contain an option for the Company to extend the term of the lease. We have included options to
extend the lease term to the extent we are reasonably certain to exercise the options after considering all factors
that create an economic incentive for the Company, including significant leasehold improvements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

We recognize the finance cost of lease payments in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income on a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability each period.
The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease
term and is included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income.

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low values assets
and short-term leases that have alease term of 12 months or less. Lease payments associated with these leases are
recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(K Interest in Non-consolidated Deferred Compensation Trust

The Company elected the fair value option under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments for the interest in the non-
consolidated deferred compensation trust.

() Income Taxes

The Company is not subject to U.S. federal income tax as it is organized as a limited liability company and is
taxed as a partnership. Ultimately, the members of PIMCO are responsible for taxes on their proportionate share
of the Company’s taxable income. The Company is subject to state taxes in certain jurisdictions in the United
States.

Certain consolidated entities are subject to federal, foreign, state, and local income tax, and file separate tax
returns and account for income taxes under the asset and liability method. This method gives recognition to
deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the expected future tax consequences of events that have been
recognized in the consolidated financial statements or tax returns. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized
for al taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis.

(m) Distributions

Although there is no contractual requirement, PIMCO generaly distributes its operating income (as defined
within the PIMCO Limited Liability Company Agreement) for each calendar quarter no later than 30 days after
the end of such quarter. At the Company’s discretion, distributions can be reduced in an amount reasonably
necessary or appropriate for the Company to conduct its business in the normal course.

(n) Share-Based Compensation Plans

The Company accounts for share-based payment arrangements by determining the value of employee services
received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant date fair value of the share-based
award. The cost of employee services is recognized as an expense, with a corresponding increase to capital, over
the period during which an employee provides service in exchange for the share-based payment award. As the
Company’s equity instruments have no publicly traded market price, fair value is determined by the Company’s
management based in part on a comprehensive analysis of trading values of comparable public entities, discounted
cash flows, market transactions of comparable entities, and consideration as to the Company’s historical and
forecasted financial performance.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

(0) Marketing and Promational

The Company incurs marketing expenses to promote its products to retail and institutional investors by creating
marketing materials and supporting third party intermediaries. The Company expenses marketing and
promotional fees asincurred.

(p) Foreign Currency Trandation

The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries have been tranglated into U.S. dollars at the current rate of
exchange existing at year-end. Revenues and expenses are trandated primarily at the exchange rate on the date on
which the transactions are recognized. The effects of trandating the results of operations of subsidiaries with a
functional currency other than the U.S. dollar are included in other comprehensive income. The cumulative
trandation adjustment of translating the balance sheet of subsidiaries with a functional currency other than the
U.S. dollar is included as a component of capital in the consolidated statements of financial condition as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019.

() Useof Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions about future events. These estimates and the underlying assumptions affect the
amounts of assets and liabilities reported, disclosures about contingent assets and liabilities, reported amounts of
revenues and expenses, and the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. These estimates and
assumptions are based on management’s best judgment. Management evaluates its estimates and assumptions on
an ongoing basis using historical experience and other known factors, including the current economic
environment, which management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management adjusts such
estimates and assumptions when facts and circumstances dictate. As future events and their effects cannot be
determined with precision, actual results could differ significantly from these estimates. Changes in those
estimates resulting from continuing changes in the economic environment will be reflected in the financial
statements in future periods as they occur. Management believes that the significant areas where judgment is
necessarily applied are those which relate to the:

Measurement of share-based payment arrangements, which includes estimates of fair value of the Company’
s membership units. These estimates can be particularly sensitive to assumptions in regards to the Company’
sfuture earnings; and

Assessment of provisions.

Critical judgments have been made by management in applying accounting policies. Those that have the most
significant effect on amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements include the following:

Evauation of the measurement criteria associated with the recognition of revenues associated with
performance fees (as discussed in note 2(f)).

Evaluation of control associated over entities (as discussed in note 2(b)), and the impact to consolidation of
such entities.
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(r) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The amount
recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the obligation at the reporting date. If the effect is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. Future events that
may affect the amount required to settle an obligation are reflected in the amount of a provision where there is
sufficient objective evidence that they will occur. Where some or al of the expenditure is expected to be
reimbursed by insurance or some other party, and it is virtually certain, the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset on the consolidated statements of financial condition, and the amount is recorded in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

(s Defared Compensation

The Company accounts for its deferred compensation liability in accordance with IAS 19 and adjusts the carrying
value of the liability for changes in the fair value of the interest in the non-consolidated deferred compensation
trust in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and compensation and benefits in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

() General and administrative

General and administrative expenses are mainly comprised of costs related to performance obligations under the
administrative fees contracts that do not meet the criteria as costs to obtain or fulfill a contract. The Company is
considered the principal in these arrangements and recognizes these costs on a gross basis.

(u) Reclassification
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation.
(3) Fair Vdue of Financia Instruments

IFRS 7 requires that financial instruments carried at fair value in the consolidated statements of financial
condition are classified into a three-level hierarchy depending on the valuation techniques used and whether the
inputs to those valuation techniques are observable in the market.

Level 1 - Financia instruments for which the fair value is determined by using quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities are classified into this category. A financial instrument is
regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily available and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Level 2 - Financia instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with
any significant input being based on observable market data (observable inputs), are classified into this
category.

Level 3 - Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with at

least one significant input not being based on observable market data (nonobservable inputs), are classified
into this category.
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The Company has evaluated its investments carried at fair value through profit and loss totaling $30.9 million and
$30.6 million as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and determined that based on the unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets used to determine fair value that the investments are classified as Level 1
instruments for 2020 and 2019.

The underlying investments of the non-consolidated deferred compensation trust consist of mutual funds and
equity securities which are classified as Level 1 instruments, and investment partnerships which are measured at
net asset value (NAV) of the respective investment partnership, at December 31, 2020 and 2019.

There have been no changes to the Company’s valuation policies during the year ended December 31, 2020 or
2019.

The fair value of investment advisory fees and administrative fees receivable, distribution and servicing fees
receivable, receivables from affiliates, and payables to affiliates has been deemed to approximate their carrying
value through reference to their short maturity as well as low credit risk. The fair value of short-term borrowings
from affiliates is based upon the Company’s comparison to current market rates available to the Company for
comparable debt. It isthe Company’s intention to hold such instruments until maturity or collection.

(4) Commissions and Deferred Sales Charges

Trail commissions consist of distribution and servicing payments to participating brokers for the distribution of
shares, providing personal services to shareholders, and maintaining shareholder accounts. Such trail
commissions, in total, can range from 0.10% to 1.00% of the average daily net assets for PIMCO Mutual Funds.

In connection with the distribution of certain Class A and Class C shares, Pl LLC advances commissions to third
party intermediaries, which are expensed as incurred. Initial commissions are generally paid at arate of up to 1%
for Class A shares (primarily on sales of $1 million or more) and for Class C shares. Pl LLC incurred $39.8
million and $51.4 million in commissions to third party intermediaries for the year ended December 31, 2020 and
December 31, 2019, respectively, and isincluded in commissions in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.

The contingent deferred sales charges are collected on certain early redemptions of the shares, unless an
applicable exemption applies such as if the redemption relates to balances accumulated through reinvested
dividends or capital gain distributions or appreciation on the account over the amount that was invested. The
contingent deferred sales charges on Class C shares is generaly 1% if redeemed during the first year following
purchase for applicable PIMCO Mutual Funds. Contingent deferred sales charges may also be received on the
redemption of certain Class A shares at a rate of 1% of the net asset value of the redeemed shares, if the initial
purchase of such Class A shares exceeded certain thresholds. Pl LLC received $5.2 million and $2.0 million in
contingent deferred sales charges for the year ended December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, respectively,
which isincluded in other revenues in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive
income.
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(5) Property and Equipment

The major classifications of property and equipment are as follows:

Office
equipment,
furniture, and Leasehold
fixtures improvements Art Total
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2018 $ 50,681,246 83,658,168 1,021,436 135,360,850
Additions 18,961,101 12,515,207 - 31,476,308
Disposals (353,453) - - (353,453)
Depreciation and amortization (19,443,474) (7,912,294) - (27,355,768)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2019 49,845,420 88,261,081 1,021,436 139,127,937
Additions 8,445,092 1,289,112 50,174 9,784,378
Disposals (12,114) - - (12,114)
Depreciation and amortization (16,946,736) (10,841,783) - (27,788,519)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2020 $ 41,331,662 78,708,410 1,071,610 121,111,682

The Company recorded depreciation and amortization expense of $27.8 million and $27.4 million during 2020
and 2019, respectively, which is included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income.

(6) Intangible Assets

The major classifications of intangible assets are as follows:

Computer Customer Developed Trade
software relationships  technology name Total
Carrying amount as of
December31,2018 $ 11,501,756 - - - 11,501,756
Additions 640,695 25,600,000 1,500,000 300,000 28,040,695
Disposals (5,180) - - - (5,180)
Amortization (6,425,726) (2,080,000) (706,897) (200,000)  (9,412,623)
Carrying amount as of
December31,2019 5,711,545 23,520,000 793,103 100,000 30,124,648
Additions 13,838,448 - - - 13,838,448
Disposals - - - - -
Amortization (5,879,698) (2,080,000) (637,931) (100,000)  (8,697,629)
Carrying amount as of
December31,2020 $ 13,670,295 21,440,000 155,172 - 35,265,467

The Company recorded amortization expense of $8.7 million and $9.4 million during 2020 and 2019,
respectively, which is included in other expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income.
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(7) Related-Party Transactions

PIMCO and its subsidiaries reimburse AAM LP and AAM LLC for certain overhead, administrative services, and
occupancy costs, including short-term lease costs, that are allocated based on time and usage factors. These
expenses generally consist of rental costs and salaries and related benefits for legal, internal audit, and other
general and administrative services. The amount charged for such services totaled $24.7 million and $36.1 million
during 2020 and 2019, respectively, which is a component of general and administrative and occupancy and
equipment in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The payable to affiliates includes
aliability to be paid to AAM LP and AAM LLC in connection with these services and payables to other &ffiliates
in connection with services they have provided to PIMCO and for expenses that have been paid on behalf of
PIMCO over the ordinary course of business, totaling $8.6 million and $11.1 million as of December 31, 2020 and
2019, respectively.

From time to time, short-term interest-bearing advances are granted between AAM LP and PIMCO for generaly
less than 90 days, at arate of overnight LIBOR plus 0.2% to cover short-term operating cash needs. During 2020
and 2019, PIMCO borrowed and fully repaid several of these short-term cash loans from AAM LP to cover its
operating cash needs. At December 31, 2020, PIMCO had no outstanding short-term loans, and at December 31,
2019 had outstanding short-term loans of $228.0 million, which is shown as short-term borrowings from affiliates
in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. During 2020 and 2019, PIMCO incurred
$373 thousand and $3.7 million, respectively, in interest expense on loans, which isincluded in other expenses in
the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

The Company earns investment advisory fees, administrative fees, and distribution and servicing fees from
affiliated fund complexes, which comprise substantially all of the amounts included in the consolidated statements
of income and comprehensive income as investment advisory fees - pooled funds, administrative fees - pooled
funds, and distribution and servicing fees, respectively. As of December 31, 2020, the Company had $822.6
million (2019: $724.1 million) in related receivables from affiliated fund complexes.

The Company manages private accounts for certain affiliated subsidiaries of Allianz SE. Investment advisory fees
earned on these accounts totaled $52.4 million and $45.8 million during 2020 and 2019, respectively, which are
primarily included in investment advisory fees - private accounts in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.

Allianz Life Insurance of New York, an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE, provides certain
services on behalf of the Company to certain variable annuity and/or variable life insurance contracts invested in
PIMCO Funds. The total fees paid for these services by the Company were $7.8 million and $8.6 million during
2020 and 2019, respectively, and are included in general and administrative expenses and marketing and
promotional expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
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For certain advisory contracts with institutional clients, the Company shares the responsibility of fulfilling such
service contracts with PEG and its branches, a wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management GmbH,
who in turn, is a wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE. PEG, together with all of the PIMCO subsidiaries, are
subject to PIMCO’ s Global Transfer Pricing Policy (Transfer Pricing Policy) for shared management services that
are provided by al PIMCO entities. Shared management services provided include portfolio management, account
management, and business management and administration. Revenues earned from third parties for shared
management services are alocated in accordance with the Transfer Pricing Policy. In 2020, the revenue earned
from third parties for shared management services alocated to PEG was $92.2 million (2019: $40.3 million)
greater than the revenue allocated from PEG and is presented as a reduction of investment advisory fees - pooled
funds in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. In addition, costs for
performing other shared services are alocated to PEG based on headcount and estimated time and usage factors.
During 2020, costs alocated to PEG were $41.3 million (2019: $33.3 million) and are included as a reduction of
compensation and benefits and general and administrative in the accompanying consolidated statements of income
and comprehensive income. As of December 31, 2020, the Company had a $13.5 million (2019: $9.8 million)
receivable from PEG and a $28.8 million (2019: $10.3 million) payable to PEG, which are included within
receivables from affiliates and payables to ffiliates, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated statements of
financia condition.

AAM LP has a $600.0 million revolving credit facility with Allianz SE to cover short-term operating cash needs,
which expires in November 2023. The facility permits short-term borrowings at a floating rate of interest of
LIBOR plus 20bps (interest rate of 0.278% as of December 31, 2020) until LIBOR has ceased to be quoted, at
which time the parties of the agreement shall determine in good faith and in line with market practice the
successor rate of LIBOR. To the extent necessary, AAM LP could draw on this revolving credit facility on behalf
of its subsidiaries, including PIMCO. There were no amounts outstanding under this agreement at December 31,
2020 and 2019.

Managing Directors and certain other executive officers are considered to be key members of management.
Management believes that these individuals provide significant contributions to the Company. In return for their
service, they receive remuneration, which management believes to be in line with its select group of peers. In
addition to an annual base salary, key management participates in each of the benefit plans that are discussed in
note 8. Total compensation of key members of management comprises the magjority of compensation and benefits
included in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(8) Benefit Plans
(@) ClassM Unit Equity Participation Plan

PIMCO has established a Class M Unit Equity Participation Plan (the M Unit Plan) for certain individuas
providing services to PIMCO and certain of its affiliates. Participants in the M Unit Plan are granted options to
acquire M units, which vest in one third increments on the third, fourth, and fifth anniversary of the option grant
date. M unit options are converted to M units based on the appreciation of fair value of the M unit over the related
vesting period. At the exercise date, vested options will be automatically exercised in a cashless transaction unless
the participant has elected to defer the receipt of M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan. As disclosed in note 8
(e), participants can defer their M units into the AAM LP Executive Deferred Compensation Plan (the EDCP). If,
at the time of vesting, the PIMCO Class M unit estimated fair value is less than the exercise price of the option
award, no Class M units will be issued. Class M units are nonvoting units of PIMCO and entitle the holder to
receive quarterly distributions in accordance with the Company’s Second Amended and Restated Limited
Liability Company Agreement. Those participants electing to defer the receipt of M units through the M Unit
Deferral Plan continue to receive quarterly distributions.
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A maximum of 250,000 M units were originally authorized for issuance under the M Unit Plan. During 2020, the
M Unit Plan was amended to stop the granting of options to acquire M units and no further M units shall be
issued, except pursuant to the exercise of options that were outstanding prior to the plan amendment. As of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, 148,726 and 153,400 M unit options, respectively, were outstanding, and 58,608 M
units have been issued from the exercise of options.

Thefair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black Scholes option pricing model.
The model requires management to develop estimates regarding certain input variables. A third-party valuation
was completed to assist management in determining the fair value of a Class M unit. The dividend yield was
estimated based upon the historical Operating Profit Available for Distribution (OPAD) distributed to M unit
holders. Expected volatilities are based on the average historical and implied volatility of a select group of peers
using the Merton Method. The expected life was calculated based upon treating the three vesting tranches (one
third in years 3, 4, and 5) as separate options.

The following table provides the assumptions used in calculating the fair value of the M unit options granted
during 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019
Weighted average grant date fair value $ 17,806 14,519
Assumptions:
Expected term (years) 3.84 3.84
Expected volatility 25.1% 17.9%
Expected dividends 11.1% 13.2%
Risk free rate of return 0.6% 2.4%

A summary of the activity in 2020 and 2019 related to the number and weighted average exercise price of the M
unit options outstanding and exercisable is as follows:

Weighted
average
Number of options grant date
Vested Nonvested Total fair value
Outstanding at
December 31, 2018 - 143,858 143,858 $ 13,606
Changes during the year:
Granted - 39,751 39,751 14,519
Vested 23,492 (23,492) - -
Exercised (23,492 - (23,492) 16,178
Forfeited - (6,717) (6,717) 12,618
Outstanding at
December 31, 2019 - 153,400 153,400 $ 13,492
Changes during the year:
Granted - 29,802 29,802 17,806
Vested 27,775 (27,775) - -
Exercised (27,775) - (27,775) 11,567
Forfeited - (6,701) (6,701) 14,416
Outstanding at
December 31, 2020 - 148,726 148,726 $ 14,674
Exercisable as of
December 31, 2020 - - - % -
(Continued)

343/396



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

The M unit options outstanding as of December 31, 2020 have an exercise price between $11,319 and $17,806
and aweighted average remaining contractual life of 2.52 years.

The weighted average fair value per unit at the date the options were exercised was $17,806 for 2020 and $14,622
for 2019. M unit options totaling 27,775 vested during 2020. On March 30, 2020, these vested awards exercised
under the cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of approximately 9,732
M units. No other M unit activity occurred during the year. As of December 31, 2020, 58,177 M units are owned
by current and former employees and 431 M units are owned by AAM LLC.

M unit options totaling 23,492 vested during 2019. On March 29, 2019, these vested awards exercised under the
cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of approximately 3,171 M units.

The fair value of M unit option awards is amortized to compensation expense on a graded vesting attribution
method over the related vesting period of each separate tranche. The total number of M unit option awards
expected to vest is adjusted for estimated forfeitures. Compensation expense recognized under the M Unit Plan
during 2020 and 2019 was $15.5 million and $14.6 million, respectively, and is included in compensation and
benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. As of December 31,
2020, the total estimated compensation cost related to nonvested M unit option awards, net of estimated
forfeitures, expected to be recognized in future periods through December 31, 2025 is $24.5 million.

(b) Profit Sharing and Incentive Plans

PIMCO and its subsidiaries have various profit sharing and incentive plans that compensate participants on the
basis of profitability and discretionary bonuses. Compensation recorded under these programs was $1.4 billion
and $1.3 billion during 2020 and 2019, respectively, and is included in compensation and benefits in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(©) Long-Term Incentive Plan

The Company has a Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) for certain key employees. Awards are primarily based
upon achieving specified operating earnings targets and vest over three years. This plan is accounted for as a
liability award and expensed as compensation over the related vesting period. The Company had recognized
compensation expense under the LTIP of $54.8 million and $50.5 million during 2020 and 2019, respectively.
LTIP compensation expense is included in compensation and benefits in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income. The total accrued LTIP liability was $116.3 million and $111.1
million at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and is included within current accrued compensation and
noncurrent other accrued compensation in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

(d) Savingsand Investment Plans

AAM LPisthe sponsor of adefined contribution employee savings and retirement plan covering substantially all
employees of the Company and subsidiaries. The plan qualifies under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue
Code and allows eligible employees to contribute up to 100% of their annual compensation, as defined, and is
subject to a maximum dollar amount determined from time to time by the Internal Revenue Code. Employees are
generally eligible to participate on the first day of the month following their start date. After the completion of one
year of credited service, the Company matches an amount of annual compensation, subject to Interna Revenue
Code limits, contributed by the employees. In addition, certain subsidiaries can contribute an additional amount to
the plan of eligible compensation to the retirement plan. The amount expensed by the Company related to this
plan during 2020 and 2019 was $55.1 million and $48.4 million, respectively, and is included in compensation
and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
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(e) Executive Deferred Compensation Plan

AAM LP has a nonqualified deferred compensation plan pursuant to which a portion of the compensation
otherwise payable to certain eligible employees of the Company and subsidiaries may be deferred at the election
of the employees. The plan is maintained primarily for the purpose of providing deferred compensation for a
select group of management or highly compensated employees, within the meaning of Sections 201(2), 301(a)(3),
and 401(a)(1) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended. Amounts deferred under the
plan are invested in marketable securities and M units or other investment partnerships as directed by the
employees and are held in a grantor trust. The assets held in grantor trust are not available to fund ongoing
activities of the Company and only would be available to the Company’s creditors in the event of insolvency.
Total investments and restricted cash and cash equivalents held in trust and the related liability at December 31,
2020 and 2019 was $874.8 million and $688.7 million, respectively, and are included in interest in non-
consolidated deferred compensation trust and deferred compensation on the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial condition.

() Employee Sock Purchase Plan

Allianz SE has an Employee Stock Purchase Plan that is designed to provide eligible employees with an
opportunity to purchase American Depository Shares of Allianz SE annually at a discounted price on a
predetermined date. An aggregate of 250,000 American Depository Shares are reserved for this plan. Allianz SE
determines the gross purchase price of the shares, and a committee appointed by the Company determines the
discount price. Employees are not allowed to sell or transfer the shares for an one-year period following the
purchase date. The difference between the market price and the discount price, or the discount, was paid by the
Company and totaled $2.0 million in 2020 and $167 thousand million in 2019, and is included in compensation
and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(9) Income Tax
The provisions for income tax expense (benefits) are as follows:

Y ear ended December 31

2020 2019
Current:

Federa $ 29,332 11,770
State 3,432,731 2,022,507
Foreign 121,394,722 100,158,160
Tota current 124,856,785 102,192,437

Deferred:
Foreign (20,864,965) (3,371,142)
Total deferred (20,864,965) (3,371,142)
Total provision $ 103,991,820 98,821,295

The differences between the reported amount of income tax expense and the amount that would result from
applying the federal corporate statutory tax rates to pretax income arise primarily from the Company’s status as a
partnership for U.S. tax purposes as well as the effects of state and international taxes and nondeductible expense.
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At December 31, 2020 and 2019, income taxes payable amounted to $23.2 million and $36.7 million,
respectively, and are included in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial condition. Additionally, at December 31, 2020 and 2019, deferred tax assets amounted to
$44.8 million and $21.4 million, respectively. The deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2020 and 2019,
amounted to $247 thousand and $61 thousand, respectively. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
included in other noncurrent assets and other noncurrent liabilities, respectively, in the accompanying

consolidated statements of financial condition.

(10) Lease Arrangements

The following table represents lease costs during the year ended December 31, 2020 that are included in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income:

Depreciation of ROU asset

Interest expense on lease liabilities
Variable lease cost

Short-term lease cost

Expenses of |eases of low value assets

$ 29,593,350
6,304,014

240,983

376,312

2,179,123

For the year ended December 31, 2020, total cash outflow for leases amounted to $39.8 million.

The following table represents a maturity analysis of the Company’s lease liabilities:

Year ending December 31:
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter

Total operating lease payments
Lessimputed interest

Present value of lease liabilities

(11) Financia Risk Management

$ 38,461,023
34,822,467
36,457,152
22,087,757
32,862,009
96,750,859

261,441,267
(24,146,287)

$ 237,294,980

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

Credit risk
Liquidity risk

Market Risk
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Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Company. Management continually monitors the
Company’s risk management process to ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s
activities. Management reports its significant activity to the Risk and Controls Committee of Allianz Asset
Management GmbH, a subsidiary of Allianz SE.

(8 Credit Risk

Credit risk isthe risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to afinancial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers, bank
deposits, and investment securities.

Investment advisory and other receivables: The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the Company’s client base, including the default
risk of the industry and country in which client operates, has less of an influence on credit risk. However,
geographically there is no concentration of credit risk, and no single customer who is individually material to the
Company’s operations.

The creditworthiness of customersis assessed as part of new client acceptance procedures. The Company does not
require collateral in respect of trade or other receivables, but monitors the assets under management for each
customer in relation to their outstanding receivable balance. The Company has an excellent history of collection
on outstanding receivables and establishes an alowance for impairment only when an individual customer has
been identified as at risk for collection.

Interest Bearing Deposits with Banks: The interest bearing deposits with banks are due from major institutions.
The Company reviews the creditworthiness of such banks and does not deal with such institutions if it is not
satisfied with the institution’s financial strength.

Investments: The Company’s investments are within investment vehicles, which it manages subject to detailed
investment guidelines. Compliance procedures are in place to ensure that the individual vehicles operate within
their applicable credit and liquidity risk limitations.

(b) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The majority of non-derivative financia
liahilities have a contractual maturity of less than six months at December 31, 2020.

The Company seeks to actively monitor its cash flow requirements. Typically, the Company ensures that it has
sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses, including the servicing of financia obligations;

this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural
disasters. In addition, the Company has accessto AAM LP's line of credit with Allianz SE as discussed in note 7.

(Continued)

347/396



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

(c) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect
the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the
return.

Currency risk: The Company is exposed to currency risk on revenues, purchases, and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company. The majority of the Company’s
transactions are in U.S. dollars, but transactions also occur on a more limited basis primarily in Euros, British
Pounds Sterling, and Japanese Y en.

The Company considers its exposure to currency risk to be limited, and currently does not actively employ any
hedging or other techniques to limit such risk.

Interest rate risk: The Company is subject to interest rate risk only to the extent of its borrowing arrangements
with affiliates, al of which are short term in nature. As management considers this risk to be minimal, no active
hedging or other strategies are employed to limit such risk.

Other market price risk: Market price risk arises from investment securities held within the investment funds the
Company holds and manages, each of which are subject to specific investment guidelines. Material investments in
such funds are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are made in accordance with client
guidelines or the funds governing documents.

In monitoring the Company’s exposure to market risks, management evaluates the Company’s sensitivity to
changes in currency rates, interest rates, and other market risk factors. As of December 31, 2020, there were no
changes in such factors that were deemed reasonably possible that would have resulted in any material differences
to members capital as of December 31, 2020 or the reported comprehensive income for the year then ended.

(d) Capital Management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to preserve investor, creditor, and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. There were no changes in the Company’s approach
to capital management during the year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries, with the exception of Pl
LLC (see note 13) and certain foreign subsidiaries, are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

(12) Provisions

The Company is subject to various pending and threatened legal actions as well as regulatory inquiries, which
arise in the normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the disposition of these matters currently
pending and threatened will not have a material adverse effect on PIMCO and its subsidiaries financia position,
results of operations, or cash flows. Management believes that they have made appropriate estimates for
provisions in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The Company expenses related legal fees as
incurred.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

In early 2020, the existence of a new coronavirus (COVID-19) was confirmed which spread across a significant
number of countries leading to disruption to economic activity and global markets. During periods of high
volatility and uncertainty experienced by markets in 2020, PIMCO Funds and private accounts experienced net
asset outflows and negative returns relating to the disruption caused by COVID-19, but it did not result in a
material adverse impact to the Company during the year. Given the inherent uncertainties, it is not practical to
determine what impact COVID-19 will have on the Company in the future.

(13) Net Capital

Pl LLC is subject to the Uniform Net Capital Rule (Rule 15¢3-1) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
which requires the maintenance of minimum net capital. As of December 31, 2020, Pl LLC had net capital of
$66.8 million for regulatory purposes, which was $66.5 million in excess of its required net capital of $250
thousand. As of December 31, 2019, Pl LLC had net capital of $57.5 million for regulatory purposes, which was
$57.2 million in excess of its required net capital of $250 thousand.

(14) Interest in Unconsolidated Structured Entities

The Company manages a number of structured products and other funds for the purpose of investing monies on
behalf of the Company’s clients in a range of investment strategies. In most cases investment vehicles managed
by the Company have substantive removal or liquidation rights. Investment vehicles for which substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist have been identified as structured entities. The vehicles are separate
legal entities, and are financed by investments made by the Company’s clients. The Company is paid for the
investment management services it provides to the vehicle directly from the vehicle. The Company earned $731.2
thousand and $535.5 thousand in investment advisory fees from structured entities during 2020 and 2019,
respectively, which is included in investment advisory fees - pooled funds in the accompanying statements of
income and comprehensive income.

The following table summarizes both the size of the unconsolidated investment vehicles where substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist and the Company’s interests in those vehicles:

December 31
2020 2019
Net assets of unconsolidated structured
entities $ 582,606,016 $ 493,340,219
Investment advisory fees
receivable - pooled funds 222,021 170,996

The Company’s maximum exposure to loss from unconsolidated structured entities is limited to the investment
advisory fees receivable.

(Continued)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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(15) Acquisition

On October 1, 2020, AREOA was contributed to the Company from Allianz of America, Inc., an indirectly wholly
owned subsidiary of Allianz SE, through AAM LLC and AAM LP. Asthe contribution qualified as a transaction
between entities under common control, AREOA was contributed at a net book value of $7.8 million, which is
included in contributions in the accompanying consolidated statements of changes in capital.

(16) Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events occurring after the date of the consolidated statements of financia condition
through April 23, 2021, the date the consolidated financia statements were available to be issued to determine
whether any subsequent events necessitated adjustment to or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements,
noting the Company has identified the following event to disclose:

PIMCO M unit options totaling 40,974 vested on January 15, 2021. On March 31, 2021, these vested awards
were exercised under the cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of
approximately 15,582 M units.
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2021 30

1,218,980,021 140,719,054
24,143,992 2,787,182
640,599,756 73,950,836
323,112,265 37,300,080
45,041,939 5,199,641
21,334,131 2,462,812
23,002,042 2,655,356
26,850,035 3,099,568
63,200,555 7,295,872
2,386,264,736 275,470,401
226,717,390 114,004,405 13,160,669
189,975,621 21,930,786
974,184,449 112,459,853
30,865,176 3,563,076
33,187,129 3,831,122
39,183,015 4,523,287
55,254,579 6,378,589
1,436,654,374 165,847,381
3,822,919,110 441,317,782
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395,823,404 45,693,854
602,171,423 69,514,669

97,046,294 11,203,024

31,084,922 3,588,443

63,658,292 7,348,713

23,002,042 2,655,356

5,815,416 671,332

1,218,601,793 140,675,391

974,184,449 112,459,853

200,119,987 23,101,851

155,480,580 17,948,678

4,060,949 468,796

1,333,845,965 153,979,178

2,552,447,758 294,654,569

850,000 (85,381,560) (9,856,447)
150,000 1,313,915,921 151,678,454
74,190 62,594,657 7,225,927
103,555 26,537,533 3,063,493
(47,195,199) (5,448,214)

1,270,471,352 146,663,213

3,822,919,110 441,317,782
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2021 30

2,077,603, 355 239,838,531
605,560,698 69,905,927
611,553,473 70,597,733
174,139,153 20,102,624

18,174,820 2,098,101

3,487,031,499 402,542,916

1,256,149, 699 145,009,921
389,891,600 45,009,086
312,358,275 36,058,639
109,509,733 12,641,804

84,905,818 9,801,528
52,028,090 6,006,123
23,765,858 2,743,531
20,100,930 2,320,451
2,248,710,003 259,591,083
1,238,321,496 142,951,833
98,732,681 11,397,701
(2,910,107) (335,943)
995,294 114,897
1,335,139, 364 154,128,488
46,340,393 5,349,535
1,288,798,971 148,778,953
(2,453,629) (283,247)
1,286,345,342 148,495,706
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2021 30
850,000 (103,214,782) (11,915,114) 150,000 1,308,035,518 150,999, 620 58,608 43,399,986 5,010,094
910,405,280 105,097,186 290,446,808 33,529,180 87,946,883 10,152,588
(909,072,477)  (104,943,327) (284,566, 405) (32,850, 346) (77,649,354)  (8,963,841)
8,451,432 975,633
8,048,987 929,175 8,897,142 1,027,086
850,000 (85,381,560) (9,856,447) 150,000 1,313,915,921 151,678,454 74,190 62,594,657 7,225,927
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2021 30

148,726 37,843,422 4,368,645 (44,741,570) (5,164,967) 1,241,322,574 143,298,278
1,288,798,971 148,778,953
(1,271,288,236) (146,757,514)
8,451,432 975,633
5,640,240 651,109 5,640,240 651,109

(16,946,129) (1,956,261)
(2,453,629) (283,247) (2.453,629) (283,247)
103,555 26,537,533 3,063,493 (47,195,199) (5.448,214) 1,270,471,352 146,663,213
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2021 30

1,288,798,971

148,778,953

5,527,181 638,058
32,361,814 3,735,848
2,910,107 335,943
(995,294) (114,897)
(327,452) (37,801)
2,103,482 242,826
15,036,589 1,735,824
(7,960,091) (918,913)
(54,843,368) (6,331,118)
(2,910,107) (335,943)
152,391,041 17,592,022
(11,554,500) (1,333,851)
413,326,409 47,714,401
26,920,238 3,107,672

1,860,785,020

214,809,023

(6,180,581) (713,486)
(1,488,667) (171,852)
(23,500,150) (2,712,857)
(31,169,398) (3,598,195)
337,000,000 38,903,280

(337,000,000)

(1,271,288,236)
8,451,432

(16,250,224)

(38,903, 280)
(146,757,514)
975,633
(1,875,926)

(1,279,087,028)

(147,657,807)

(2,453,629) (283,247)
548,074,965 63,269,774
670,905,056 77,449,280

1,218,980,021

140,719,054
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Pacific Investment Management Campany LLC

2022 807,608,901.74 932 3,037

1971
1940 PIMCO

PIMCO

Maples

Trustee Services Bermuda Limited

2022 25 2,886

2016

Brown Brothers Harriman and Company

2022 10 4,000 1,200 5,760

Brown Brothers Harriman Luxembourg S.C.A

2022 1,209 13 9,567
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust |1

We have audited the accompanying financia statements of each of the funds listed in the table below (collectively
referred to as the “Funds’), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of
investments, as of October 31, 2021, and the related statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the
financial highlights for the periods indicated in the table below. These financial statements and financia highlights are
hereafter collectively referred to as"financia statements'.

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund (M) @) PIMCO Bermuda U.S. High Yield Fund (M) @

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund A PIMCO Bermuda U.S. High Yield Fund 11 (M) Y

PIMCO Core Income Corporate Bond Fund 2020-10
©)

PIMCO Emerging Bond (Y en-Hedged) Income Fund
@

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund B

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund ¢

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund D @ PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund @

PIMCO Bermuda Dynamic Multi-Asset Strategy Fund
@

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund (M) @)

e

PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) @

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund |

PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund |1 @

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund 111 @)

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan (Y en-
Hedged) Bond Fund

PIMCO Short-Term Mortgage Income @

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond

Fund @)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond
Fund (M)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund 11 ¥

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund (M) @)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Fund

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund A &)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Fund 11 Y

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund D @)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Strategy Fund ¥

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund E @

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Strategy Fund 11 Y

PIMCO Bermuda Low Duration Income Fund @

PIMCO World High Income @

PIMCO Bermuda Mortgage Opportunities Fund @)

31, 2021

@) Statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the financial highlights for the year ended October

(@) Statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the financial highlights for the period from
October 30, 2020 (inception date) to October 31, 2021
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@ Statements of operations and of changes in net assets for the year ended October 31, 2021, and the
financia highlights for each of the periods indicated therein

@ Statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the financia highlights for the period from October
15, 2020 (inception date) to October 31, 2021
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Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financia
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the Funds preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Funds internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financia statements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al material respects, the financia position of
each of the Funds indicated in the table above as of October 31, 2021, and the results of each of their operations, the
changes in each of their net assets and each of their financial highlights for the periods indicated in the table above, in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
January 25, 2022
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the management of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC
and its subsidiaries the “Company” , which comprise the consolidated statements of financial condition as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, changesin

capital, and cash flows for the years then ended.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financia Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair

presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsihility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial

statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
we consider internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al materia respects, the
financia position of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2020 and
2019, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with International

Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.
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Emphasis of Matter
As discussed in Note 2(c) to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which it

accounts for leasesin 2019. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

April 23, 2021
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust |1

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of each of the Funds listed in the table below (collectively
referred to as the “Funds’), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of
investments, as of October 31, 2020, and the related statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the
financial highlights for the periods indicated in the table below. These financial statements and financia highlights are
hereafter collectively referred to as"financia statements'.

@

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund (M) PIMCO Bermuda U.S. High Yield Fund (M) @

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund A PIMCO Bermuda U.S. High Yield Fund 11 (M) ¥

PIMCO Emerging Bond (Y en-Hedged) Income Fund
@

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund B

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund C @ PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund @

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund D @ PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund (M) @

PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) ) PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund || @)

PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund |1 @ PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund 111 @

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan (Y en- (1)

PIMCO Short-Term Mortgage Income
Hedged) Bond Fund @)

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond
(€Y
d

PIMCO U.S. High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund ¥
Fun

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond

PIMCO U.S. High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund 11
Fund (M)

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund (M) ! PIMCO U.S. High Yield Fund ¥

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund A PIMCO U.S. High Yield Fund 11

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund D @ PIMCO U.S. High Yield Strategy Fund @
PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund E @) PIMCO U.S. High Yield Strategy Fund |1 @
PIMCO Bermuda L ow Duration Income Fund @ PIMCO World High Income @

PIMCO Bermuda Mortgage Opportunities Fund &

@) Statements of operations and of changesin net assets and the financia highlights for the year ended October
31, 2020

& Statements of operations and of changes in net assets for the year ended October 31, 2020, and the
financial highlights for each of the periods indicated therein

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
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Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
mi sstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of materia
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the Funds preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Funds internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financia statements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al material respects, the financial position of
each of the Funds indicated in the table above as of October 31, 2020, and the results of each of their operations, the
changes in each of their net assets and each of their financial highlights for the periods indicated in the table above, in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
January 19, 2021
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